3

V.

For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!



http://www.adobe.com/go/reader


City of Carroll
¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO:  Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager i\f’\'?Q/(b
FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerk JQD
DATE: November 4, 2016

SUBJECT: $2,290,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2016B
¢ Resolution Appointing Paying Agent, Note Registrar, and Transfer Agent,
Approving the Paying Agent and Note Registrar and Transfer Agent
Agreement and Authorizing the Execution of the Agreement
e Resolution approving and authorizing a form of Loan Agreement and
authorizing and providing for the issuance, and levying a tax to pay the
Notes; Approval of the Tax Exemption Certificate and Continuing Disclosure
Certificate

At the October 24, 2016 Council meeting, Council approved a resolution directing the sale of the
$2,290,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2016B to Bankers’ Bank of Madison,
Wisconsin with a true interest rate of 1.4404%. Enclosed are the required forms to complete the
capital loan note sale process.

The first resolution appoints Bankers Trust Company to serve as paying agent, bond registrar and
transfer agent. The City has used Banks Trust Company for many years and has a good working
relationship with them. The second resolution authorizing the form of loan agreement and issuance
also approves the Tax Exemption Certificate and Continuing Disclosure Certificate.

The Tax Exemption Certificate sets out in detail a number of facts, promises and obligations which
must be met and agreed to by the City in order to maintain these Notes as tax exempt. A copy of the
Tax Exemption Certificate is enclosed. This certificate is very common with this type of issuance and
has been a requirement of other Note issuances in the past.

The Continuing Disclosure Certificate requires the City to provide annual financial information and
operating data to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal Market Access
system (“EMMA”) so long as the Notes are outstanding. This, too, is a common requirement for this
type of issuance.

If you have any questions, please feel free to stop by City Hall or call me.






RECOMMENDATION:  Council consideration and approval of the following:

1. Resolution appointing Bankers Trust Company of Des Moines, lowa, to serve as
Paying Agent, Note Registrar and Transfer Agent and approving the Paying Agent
and Note Registrar and Transfer Agent Agreement and Authorizing the Execution
of the Agreement

2. Resolution approving and authorizing a form of Loan Agreement and authorizing
and providing for the issuance, and levying a tax to pay the Notes; Approval of the
Tax Exemption Certificate and Continuing Disclosure Certificate.






November 14, 2016

The City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa, met in regular session, in the Council
Chambers, City Hall, 112 E. 5th Street, Carroll, Iowa, at 5:15 P.M., on the above date. There
were present Mayor , in the chair, and the following named Council Members:

Absent:

Vacant:

ok ok %k ok ok ook






Council Member introduced the following resolution entitled
"RESOLUTION APPOINTING BANKERS TRUST COMPANY OF DES MOINES, IOWA,
TO SERVE AS PAYING AGENT, NOTE REGISTRAR, AND TRANSFER AGENT,
APPROVING THE PAYING AGENT AND NOTE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT
AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE AGREEMENT", and
moved that the resolution be adopted. Council Member seconded the
motion to adopt. The roll was called and the vote was,

AYES:

NAYS:

Whereupon, the Mayor declared said Resolution duly adopted as follows:

RESOLUTION APPOINTING BANKERS TRUST COMPANY
OF DES MOINES, IOWA, TO SERVE AS PAYING AGENT,
NOTE REGISTRAR, AND TRANSFER AGENT, APPROVING
THE PAYING AGENT AND NOTE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER AGENT AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION OF THE AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, $2,290,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2016B, dated
November 30, 2016, have been sold and action should now be taken to provide for the
maintenance of records, registration of certificates and payment of principal and interest in
connection with the issuance of the Notes; and

WHEREAS, this Council has deemed that the services offered by Bankers Trust
Company of Des Moines, lowa, are necessary for compliance with rules, regulations, and
requirements governing the registration, transfer and payment of registered Notes; and

WHEREAS, a Paying Agent, Bond Registrar and Transfer Agent Agreement (hereafter
"Agreement") has been prepared to be entered into between the City and Bankers Trust

Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF CARROLL, IOWA:

1. That Bankers Trust Company of Des Moines, lowa, is hereby appointed to serve

as Paying Agent, Bond Registrar and Transfer Agent in connection with the issuance of
$2,290,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2016B, dated November 30, 2016.

-2






2. That the Agreement with Bankers Trust Company of Des Moines, lowa, is hereby
approved and that the Mayor and Clerk are authorized to sign the Agreement on behalf of the

City.
PASSED AND APPROVED this 14th day of November, 2016.

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk






Council Member introduced the following Resolution entitled
"RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING A FORM OF LOAN AGREEMENT
AND AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF $2,290,000 GENERAL
OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2016B, AND LEVYING A TAX TO PAY
SAID NOTES; APPROVAL OF THE TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE AND
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE" and moved that it be adopted. Council
Member seconded the motion to adopt, and the roll being called

thereon, the vote was as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

Whereupon, the Mayor declared said Resolution duly adopted as follows:

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING A FORM
OF LOAN AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING AND
PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF $2,290,000 GENERAL
OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2016B, AND
LEVYING A TAX TO PAY SAID NOTES; APPROVAL OF
THE TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE AND CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

WHEREAS, the Issuer is duly incorporated, organized and exists under and by virtue of
the laws and Constitution of the State of Iowa; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer is in need of funds to pay costs of the construction of a cemetery
maintenance building at the Carroll City Cemetery, and the Third Street Storm Sewer
Improvements, consisting of acquisition, construction and equipping of storm water drainage
improvements along and adjacent to Third Street near the Middle Raccoon, essential corporate
purpose(s), and it is deemed necessary and advisable that General Obligation Capital Loan
Notes, to the amount of not to exceed $1,220,000 be authorized for said purpose(s); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by Sections 384.24A and 384.25 of
the Code of Towa, this Council has held a public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to
institute proceedings for the issuance of the Notes, and the Council is therefore now authorized
to proceed with the issuance of said Notes for such purpose(s); and






WHEREAS, after determining that costs for the Project would exceed $1,220,000, the

Issuer deemed it necessary to hold a subsequent meeting and hearing upon the proposal to
authorize an additional $1,180,000 for total project costs of not to exceed $2,400,000 for the
purpose of providing funds to pay costs of carrying out the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by Sections 384.24A and 384.25 of

the Code of Towa, this Council has held a public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to
institute proceedings for the issuance of the Notes, and the Council is therefore now authorized
to proceed with the issuance of said Notes for such purpose(s) in the total amount of $2,290,000;

WHEREAS, the above mentioned Notes were heretofore sold and action should now be

taken to issue said Notes conforming to the terms and conditions of the best bid received at the

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY

OF CARROLL, IOWA:

Section 1. Definitions. The following terms shall have the following meanings in this

Resolution unless the text expressly or by necessary implication requires otherwise:

. "Authorized Denominations" shall mean $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof.

. "Beneficial Owner" shall mean, whenever used with respect to a Note, the
person in whose name such Note is recorded as the beneficial owner of such Note by a
Participant on the records of such Participant or such person's subrogee.

. "Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations” shall mean the Representation
Letter from the Issuer to DTC, with respect to the Notes.

. "Cede & Co." shall mean Cede & Co., the nominee of DTC, and any
successor nominee of DTC with respect to the Notes.

. "Continuing Disclosure Certificate" shall mean that certain Continuing
Disclosure Certificate approved under the terms of this Resolution and to be executed by
the Issuer and dated the date of issuance and delivery of the Notes, as originally executed
and as it may be amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof.

. "Depository Notes " shall mean the Notes as issued in the form of one
global certificate for each maturity, registered in the Registration Books maintained by
the Registrar in the name of DTC or its nominee.

. "DTC" shall mean The Depository Trust Company, New York,
New York, which will act as security depository for the Notes pursuant to the
Representation Letter.






. "Issuer” and "City" shall mean the City of Carroll, Iowa.

. "Loan Agreement" shall mean a Loan Agreement between the Issuer and a
lender or lenders in substantially the form attached to and approved by this Resolution.

. "Note Fund" shall mean the fund created in Section 3 of this Resolution.

. "Notes" shall mean $2,290,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes,
Series 2016B, authorized to be issued by this Resolution.

. "Participants" shall mean those broker-dealers, banks and other financial
institutions for which DTC holds Notes as securities depository.

. "Paying Agent" shall mean Bankers Trust Company, or such successor as
may be approved by Issuer as provided herein and who shall carry out the duties
prescribed herein as Issuet's agent to provide for the payment of principal of and interest
on the Notes as the same shall become due.

. "Project" shall mean the costs of the construction of a cemetery
maintenance building at the Carroll City Cemetery, and the Third Street Storm Sewer
Improvements, consisting of acquisition, construction and equipping of storm water
drainage improvements along and adjacent to Third Street near the Middle Raccoon

River.

. "Project Fund" shall mean the fund required to be established by this
Resolution for the deposit of the proceeds of the Notes.

. "Rebate Fund" shall mean the fund so defined in and established pursuant
to the Tax Exemption Certificate.

. "Registrar" shall mean Bankers Trust Company of Des Moines, lowa, or
such successor as may be approved by Issuer as provided herein and who shall carry out
the duties prescribed herein with respect to maintaining a register of the owners of the
Notes. Unless otherwise specified, the Registrar shall also act as Transfer Agent for the

Notes.

. "Resolution" shall mean this resolution authorizing the Notes.

. "Tax Exemption Certificate" shall mean the Tax Exemption Certificate
approved under the terms of this Resolution and to be executed by the Treasurer and
delivered at the time of issuance and delivery of the Notes.

. "Treasurer”" shall mean the Finance Director or such other officer as shall
succeed to the same duties and responsibilities with respect to the recording and payment
of the Notes issued hereunder.






Section 2. Levy and Certification of Annual Tax: Other Funds to be Used.

a) Levy of Annual Tax. That for the purpose of providing funds to pay the
principal and interest of the Notes hereinafter authorized to be issued, there is hereby
levied for each future year the following direct annual tax on all of the taxable property in
Carroll, Iowa, to-wit:

FISCAL YEAR (JULY 1 TO JUNE 30)

AMOUNT YEAR OF COLLECTION
$298,745 2016/2017*
$340,058 2017/2018
$292,223 2018/2019
$294,523 2019/2020
$291,498 2020/2021
$298,060 2021/2022
$299,070 2022/2023
$299,720 202372024

* A levy of $298,007 has been included in the budget previously certified and will be
used together with other available City funds to pay the principal and interest of the Note
coming due in fiscal year 2016/2017.

(NOTE: For example the levy to be made and certified against the taxable valuations of
January 1, 2016 will be collected during the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2017.)

b) Resolution to be Filed With County Auditor. A certified copy of this
Resolution shall be filed with the Auditor of Carroll County, lowa and the Auditor is
hereby instructed in and for each of the years as provided, to levy and assess the tax
hereby authorized in Section 2 of this Resolution, in like manner as other taxes are levied
and assessed, and such taxes so levied in and for each of the years aforesaid be collected
in like manner as other taxes of the City are collected, and when collected be used for the
purpose of paying principal and interest on said Notes issued in anticipation of the tax,
and for no other purpose whatsoever.

¢) Additional City Funds Available. Principal and interest coming due at any
time when the proceeds of said tax on hand shall be insufficient to pay the same shall be
promptly paid when due from current funds of the City available for that purpose and
reimbursement shall be made from such special fund in the amounts thus advanced.

Section 3. Note Fund. Said tax shall be assessed and collected each year at the same time
and in the same manner as, and in addition to, all other taxes in and for the City, and when
collected they shall be converted into a special fund within the Debt Service Fund to be known
as the "2016B GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTE FUND NO. 2" (the "Note
Fund"), which is hereby pledged for and shall be used only for the payment of the principal of
and interest on the Notes hereinafter authorized to be issued; and also there shall be apportioned

-7






to said fund its proportion of taxes received by the City from property that is centrally assessed
by the State of lowa.

Section 4. Application of Note Proceeds. Proceeds of the Notes, other than accrued
interest except as may be provided below, shall be credited to the Project Fund and expended
therefrom for the purposes of issuance. Any amounts on hand in the Project Fund shall be
available for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Notes at any time that other funds
shall be insufficient to the purpose, in which event such funds shall be repaid to the Project Fund
at the earliest opportunity. Any balance on hand in the Project Fund and not immediately
required for its purposes may be invested not inconsistent with limitations provided by law or
this Resolution.

Section 5. Investment of Note Fund Proceeds. All moneys held in the Note Fund,
provided for by Section 3 of this Resolution shall be invested in investments permitted by
Chapter 12B, Code of lowa, 2015, as amended, or deposited in financial institutions which are
members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the deposits in which are insured
thereby and all such deposits exceeding the maximum amount insured from time to time by
FDIC or its equivalent successor in any one financial institution shall be continuously secured in
compliance with Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa, 2015, as amended, or otherwise by a valid
pledge of direct obligations of the United States Government having an equivalent market value.
All such interim investments shall mature before the date on which the moneys are required for
payment of principal of or interest on the Notes as herein provided.

Section 6. Note Details, Execution and Redemption.

a) Note Details. General Obligation Capital Loan Notes of the City in the amount
of $2,290,000, shall be issued to evidence the obligations of the Issuer under the Loan
Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Sections 384.24A and 384.25 of the Code of
Iowa for the aforesaid purposes. The Notes shall be issued in one or more series and
shall be on a parity and secured equally and ratably from the sources provided in Section
3 of this Resolution. The Notes shall be designated "GENERAL OBLIGATION
CAPITAL LOAN NOTE, SERIES 2016B", be dated November 30, 2016, and bear
interest from the date thereof, until payment thereof, at the office of the Paying Agent,
said interest payable on June 1, 2017, and semiannually thereafter on the 1st day of June
and December in each year until maturity at the rates hereinafter provided.

The Notes shall be executed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor
and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk, and impressed or printed
with the seal of the City and shall be fully registered as to both principal and interest as
provided in this Resolution; principal, interest and premium, if any, shall be payable at
the office of the Paying Agent by mailing of a check to the registered owner of the Note.
The Notes shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or multiples thereof. The Notes shall
mature and bear interest as follows:






Principal Interest Maturity

Amount Rate June 1st
$285,000 0.800% 2017
$315,000 0.900% 2018
$270,000 1.000% 2019
$275,000 1.100% 2020
$275,000 1.250% 2021
$285,000 1.400% 2022
$290,000 1.500% 2023
$295,000 1.600% 2024

b) Redemption. The Notes are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

Section 7. Issuance of Notes in Book-Entry Form: Replacement Notes.

a) Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Resolution regarding registration,
ownership, transfer, payment and exchange of the Notes, unless the Issuer determines to
permit the exchange of Depository Notes for Notes in Authorized Denominations, the
Notes shall be issued as Depository Notes in denominations of the entire principal
amount of each maturity of Notes (or, if a portion of said principal amount is prepaid,
said principal amount less the prepaid amount). The Notes must be registered in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. Payment of semiannual interest for any Notes
registered in the name of Cede & Co. will be made by wire transfer or New York
Clearing House or equivalent next day funds to the account of Cede & Co. on the interest
payment date for the Notes at the address indicated or in the Representation Letter.

b) The Notes will be initially issued in the form of separate single authenticated
fully registered bonds in the amount of each stated maturity of the Notes. Upon initial
issuance, the ownership of the Notes will be registered in the registry books of the
Bankers Trust Company kept by the Paying Agent and Registrar in the name of Cede &
Co., as nominee of DTC. The Paying Agent and Registrar and the Issuer may treat DTC
(or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive owner of the Notes registered in its name for
the purposes of payment of the principal or redemption price of or interest on the Notes,
selecting the Notes or portions to be redeemed, giving any notice permitted or required to
be given to registered owners of Notes under the Resolution of the Issuer, registering the
transfer of Notes, obtaining any consent or other action to be taken by registered owners
of the Notes and for other purposes. The Paying Agent, Registrar and the Issuer have no
responsibility or obligation to any Participant or Beneficial Owner of the Notes under or
through DTC with respect to the accuracy of records maintained by DTC or any
Participant; with respect to the payment by DTC or Participant of an amount of principal
or redemption price of or interest on the Notes; with respect to any notice given to owners
of Notes under the Resolution; with respect to the Participant(s) selected to receive
payment in the event of a partial redemption of the Notes, or a consent given or other
action taken by DTC as registered owner of the Notes. The Paying Agent and Registrar
shall pay all principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Notes only to Cede &
Co. in accordance with the Representation Letter, and all payments are valid and

-9.






effective to fully satisfy and discharge the Issuer's obligations with respect to the
principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Notes to the extent of the sum paid.
DTC must receive an authenticated Bond for each separate stated maturity evidencing the
obligation of the Issuer to make payments of principal of and premium, if any, and
interest. Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent and Registrar of written notice that
DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., the Notes will
be transferable to the new nominee in accordance with this Section.

¢) In the event the Issuer determines that it is in the best interest of the Beneficial
Owners that they be able to obtain Notes certificates, the Issuer may notify DTC and the
Paying Agent and Registrar, whereupon DTC will notify the Participants, of the
availability through DTC of Notes certificates. The Notes will be transferable in
accordance with this Section. DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services
with respect to the Notes at any time by giving notice to the Issuer and the Paying Agent
and Registrar and discharging its responsibilities under applicable law. In this event, the
Notes will be transferable in accordance with this Section.

d) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resolution to the contrary, so long
as any Note is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments
with respect to the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Note and all
notices must be made and given, respectively to DTC as provided in the Representation
letter.

e) In connection with any notice or other communication to be provided to
Noteholders by the Issuer or the Paying Agent and Registrar with respect to a consent or
other action to be taken by Noteholders, the Issuer or the Paying Agent and Registrar, as
the case may be, shall establish a record date for the consent or other action and give
DTC notice of the record date not less than 15 calendar days in advance of the record
date to the extent possible. Notice to DTC must be given only when DTC is the sole

Noteholder.

) The Representation Letter is on file with DTC and sets forth certain matters
with respect to, among other things, notices, consents and approvals by Noteholders and
payments on the Notes. The execution and delivery of the Representation Letter to DTC
by the Issuer is ratified and confirmed.

g) In the event that a transfer or exchange of the Notes is permitted under this
Section, the transfer or exchange may be accomplished upon receipt by the Registrar
from the registered owners of the Notes to be transferred or exchanged and appropriate
instruments of transfer. In the event Note certificates are issued to holders other than
Cede & Co., its successor as nominee for DTC as holder of all the Notes, or other
securities depository as holder of all the Notes, the provisions of the Resolution apply to,
among other things, the printing of certificates and the method or payment of principal of
and interest on the certificates. Any substitute depository shall be designated in writing
by the Issuer to the Paying Agent. Any such substitute depository shall be a qualified and
registered "clearing agency" as provided in Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended. The substitute depository shall provide for (i) immobilization of

-10 -






the Depository Notes, (ii) registration and transfer of interests in Depository Notes by
book entries made on records of the depository or its nominee and (iii) payment of
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes in accordance with and as such
interests may appear with respect to such book entries.

h) The officers of the Issuer are authorized and directed to prepare and furnish to
the purchaser, and to the attorneys approving the legality of Notes, certified copies of
proceedings, ordinances, resolutions and records and all certificates and affidavits and
other instruments as may be required to evidence the legality and marketability of the
Notes, and all certified copies, certificates, affidavits and other instruments constitute
representations of the Issuer as to the correctness of all stated or recited facts.

Section 8. Registration of Notes: Appointment of Registrar; Transfer; Ownership;
Delivery: and Cancellation.

a) Registration. The ownership of Notes may be transferred only by the making
of an entry upon the books kept for the registration and transfer of ownership of the
Notes, and in no other way. Bankers Trust Company is hereby appointed as Note
Registrar under the terms of this Resolution and under the provisions of a separate
agreement with the Issuer filed herewith which is made a part hereof by this reference.
Registrar shall maintain the books of the Issuer for the registration of ownership of the
Notes for the payment of principal of and interest on the Notes as provided in this
Resolution. All Notes shall be negotiable as provided in Article 8 of the Uniform
Commercial Code and Section 384.31 of the Code of Iowa, subject to the provisions for
registration and transfer contained in the Notes and in this Resolution.

b) Transfer. The ownership of any Note may be transferred only upon the
Registration Books kept for the registration and transfer of Notes and only upon
surrender thereof at the office of the Registrar together with an assignment duly executed
by the holder or his duly authorized attorney in fact in such form as shall be satisfactory
to the Registrar, along with the address and social security number or federal employer
identification number of such transferee (or, if registration is to be made in the name of
multiple individuals, of all such transferees). In the event that the address of the
registered owner of a Note (other than a registered owner which is the nominee of the
broker or dealer in question) is that of a broker or dealer, there must be disclosed on the
Registration Books the information pertaining to the registered owner required above.
Upon the transfer of any such Note, a new fully registered Note, of any denomination or
denominations permitted by this Resolution in aggregate principal amount equal to the
unmatured and unredeemed principal amount of such transferred fully registered Note,
and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date or dates shall be
delivered by the Registrar.

¢) Registration of Transferred Notes. In all cases of the transfer of the Notes, the
Registrar shall register, at the earliest practicable time, on the Registration Books, the
Notes, in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution.

-11 -






d) Ownership. As to any Note, the person in whose name the ownership of the
same shall be registered on the Registration Books of the Registrar shall be deemed and
regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of or on account of
the principal of any such Notes and the premium, if any, and interest thereon shall be
made only to or upon the order of the registered owner thereof or his legal representative.
All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon
such Note, including the interest thereon, to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

e) Cancellation. All Notes which have been redeemed shall not be reissued but
shall be cancelled by the Registrar. All Notes which are cancelled by the Registrar shall
be destroyed and a certificate of the destruction thereof shall be furnished promptly to the
Issuer; provided that if the Issuer shall so direct, the Registrar shall forward the cancelled
Notes to the Issuer.

f) Non-Presentment of Notes. In the event any payment check representing
payment of principal of or interest on the Notes is returned to the Paying Agent or if any
note is not presented for payment of principal at the maturity or redemption date, if funds
sufficient to pay such principal of or interest on Notes shall have been made available to
the Paying Agent for the benefit of the owner thereof, all liability of the Issuer to the
owner thereof for such interest or payment of such Notes shall forthwith cease, terminate
and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the duty of the Paying Agent to
hold such funds, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the owner of such
Notes who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such funds for any claim of
whatever nature on his part under this Resolution or on, or with respect to, such interest
or Notes. The Paying Agent's obligation to hold such funds shall continue for a period
equal to two years and six months following the date on which such interest or principal
became due, whether at maturity, or at the date fixed for redemption thereof, or
otherwise, at which time the Paying Agent, shall surrender any remaining funds so held
to the Issuer, whereupon any claim under this Resolution by the Owners of such interest
or Notes of whatever nature shall be made upon the Issuer.

g) Registration and Transfer Fees. The Registrar may furnish to each owner, at
the Issuer's expense, one note for each annual maturity. The Registrar shall furnish
additional Notes in lesser denominations (but not less than the minimum denomination)

to an owner who so requests.

Section 9. Reissuance of Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost Notes. In case any
outstanding Note shall become mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the Issuer shall at the
request of Registrar authenticate and deliver a new Note of like tenor and amount as the Note so
mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated Note to
Registrar, upon surrender of such mutilated Note, or in lieu of and substitution for the Note
destroyed, stolen or lost, upon filing with the Registrar evidence satisfactory to the Registrar and
Issuer that such Note has been destroyed, stolen or lost and proof of ownership thereof, and upon
furnishing the Registrar and Issuer with satisfactory indemnity and complying with such other
reasonable regulations as the Issuer or its agent may prescribe and paying such expenses as the
Issuer may incur in connection therewith.

-12 -






Section 10. Record Date. Payments of principal and interest, otherwise than upon full
redemption, made in respect of any Note, shall be made to the registered holder thereof or to
their designated agent as the same appear on the books of the Registrar on the 15th day of the
month preceding the payment date. All such payments shall fully discharge the obligations of
the Issuer in respect of such Notes to the extent of the payments so made. Payment of principal
shall only be made upon surrender of the Note to the Paying Agent.

Section 11. Execution, Authentication and Delivery of the Notes. Upon the adoption of
this Resolution, the Mayor and Clerk shall execute and deliver the Notes to the Registrar, who
shall authenticate the Notes and deliver the same to or upon order of the Purchaser. No Note
shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or shall be entitled to any right or benefit hereunder
unless the Registrar shall duly endorse and execute on such Note a Certificate of Authentication
substantially in the form of the Certificate herein set forth. Such Certificate upon any Note
executed on behalf of the Issuer shall be conclusive evidence that the Note so authenticated has
been duly issued under this Resolution and that the holder thereof is entitled to the benefits of

this Resolution.

No Notes shall be authenticated and delivered by the Registrar unless and until there shall
have been provided the following:

1. A certified copy of the resolution of Issuer approving the execution of a Loan
Agreement and a copy of the Loan Agreement;

2. A written order of Issuer signed by the Treasurer of the Issuer directing the
authentication and delivery of the Notes to or upon the order of the Purchaser
upon payment of the purchase price as set forth therein;

3. The approving opinion of Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., Bond Counsel, concerning the
validity and legality of all the Notes proposed to be issued.

Section 12. Right to Name Substitute Paying Agent or Registrar. Issuer reserves the right
to name a substitute, successor Registrar or Paying Agent upon giving prompt written notice to
each registered noteholder.

-13 -






Section 13. Form of Note. Notes shall be printed substantially in the form as follows:

"STATE OF IOWA"
"COUNTY OF CARROLL"
"CITY OF CARROLL"
"GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTE"
"SERIES 2016B"

Rate:
Maturity:
Note Date: November 30, 2016
CUSIP No.:
"Registered"
Certificate No.
Principal Amount: $

The City of Carroll, Iowa, a municipal corporation organized and existing under and by
virtue of the Constitution and laws of the State of Iowa (the "Issuer"), for value received,
promises to pay from the source and as hereinafter provided, on the maturity date indicated

above, to

(Registration panel to be completed by Registrar or Printer with name of Registered
Owner).

or registered assigns, the principal sum of (enter principal amount in long form) THOUSAND
DOLLARS in lawful money of the United States of America, on the maturity date shown above,
only upon presentation and surrender hereof at the office of Bankers Trust Company, Paying
Agent of this issue, or its successor, with interest on the sum from the date hereof until paid at
the rate per annum specified above, payable on June 1, 2017, and semiannually thereafter on the
Ist day of June and December in each year.

Interest and principal shall be paid to the registered holder of the Note as shown on the
records of ownership maintained by the Registrar as of the 15th day of the month preceding such
interest payment date. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-

day months.

This Note is issued pursuant to the provisions of Sections 384.24A and 384.25 of the
Code of Iowa, for the purpose of paying costs of the construction of a cemetery maintenance
building at the Carroll City Cemetery, and the Third Street Storm Sewer Improvements,
consisting of acquisition, construction and equipping of storm water drainage improvements
along and adjacent to Third Street near the Middle Raccoon River, and in order to evidence the
obligations of the Issuer under a certain Loan Agreement dated the date hereof, in conformity to
a Resolution of the Council of said City duly passed and approved. For a complete statement of
the revenues and funds from which and the conditions under which this Note is payable, a
statement of the conditions under which additional Notes of equal standing may be issued, and

-14 -






the general covenants and provisions pursuant to which this Note is issued, reference is made to
the above described Loan Agreement and Resolution.

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository
Trust Company, a limited purpose trust company ("DTC"), to the Issuer or its agent for
registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name
of Cede & Co. or such other name as requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any
payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other Issuer as is requested by an authorized
representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE
OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered
owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

The Notes are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

Ownership of this Note may be transferred only by transfer upon the books kept for such
purpose by Bankers Trust Company, the Registrar. Such transfer on the books shall occur only
upon presentation and surrender of this Note at the office of the Registrar as designated below,
together with an assignment duly executed by the owner hereof or his duly authorized attorney in
the form as shall be satisfactory to the Registrar. Issuer reserves the right to substitute the
Registrar and Paying Agent but shall, however, promptly give notice to registered Noteholders of
such change. All notes shall be negotiable as provided in Article 8 of the Uniform Commercial
Code and Section 384.31 of the Code of Iowa, subject to the provisions for registration and
transfer contained in the Note Resolution.

This Note is a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" designated by the City for purposes of
Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

And it is hereby represented and certified that all acts, conditions and things requisite,
according to the laws and Constitution of the State of Iowa, to exist, to be had, to be done, or to
be performed precedent to the lawful issue of this Note, have been existent, had, done and
performed as required by law; that provision has been made for the levy of a sufficient
continuing annual tax on all the taxable property within the territory of the Issuer for the payment
of the principal and interest of this Note as the same will respectively become due; that such
taxes have been irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment hereof, both principal and interest;
and the total indebtedness of the Issuer including this Note, does not exceed the constitutional or

statutory limitations.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, the Issuer by its Council, has caused this Note to be
signed by the manual or facsimile signature of its Mayor and attested by the manual or facsimile
signature of its City Clerk, with the seal of the City printed or impressed hereon, and to be
authenticated by the manual signature of an authorized representative of the Registrar, Bankers
Trust Company, Des Moines, lowa.

Date of authentication:
This is one of the Notes described in the within mentioned
Resolution, as registered by Bankers Trust Company.

-15 -






BANKERS TRUST COMPANY, Registrar

By:

Authorized Signature
Registrar and Transfer Agent: Bankers Trust Company
Paying Agent: Bankers Trust Company

SEE REVERSE FOR CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

(Seal)
(Signature Block)

CITY OF CARROLL, STATE OF IOWA

By: (manual or facsimile signature)
Mayor

ATTEST:

By: (manual or facsimile signature)
City Clerk

(Information Required for Registration)
ASSIGNMENT

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

(Social Security or Tax Identification No. ) the
within Note and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint
attorney in fact to transfer the said Note on the books kept for registration of the within Note,
with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

(Person(s) executing this Assignment sign(s) here)

SIGNATURE )
GUARANTEED)

-16 -






IMPORTANT - READ CAREFULLY

The signature(s) to this Power must correspond with the name(s) as written upon the face
of the certificate(s) or note(s) in every particular without alteration or enlargement or any
change whatever. Signature guarantee must be provided in accordance with the
prevailing standards and procedures of the Registrar and Transfer Agent. Such standards
and procedures may require signature to be guaranteed by certain eligible guarantor
institutions that participate in a recognized signature guarantee program.

INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER

Name of Transferee(s)

Address of Transferee(s)

Social Security or Tax Identification
Number of Transferee(s)

Transferee is a(n):
Individual* Corporation

Partnership Trust

*If the Note is to be registered in the names of multiple individual owners, the names of all such
owners and one address and social security number must be provided.

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Note, shall
be construed as though written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM - as tenants in common
TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties
JT TEN - as joint tenants with rights of survivorship and not as tenants in common
IA UNIF TRANS MIN ACT S TTTON Custodian ..........
(Cust) (Minor)
Under Iowa Uniform Transfers to Minors Act........cceceeune.

ADDITIONAL ABBREVIATIONS MAY
ALSO BE USED THOUGH NOT IN THE ABOVE LIST

(End of form of Note)

Section 14. Loan Agreement and Closing Documents. The form of Looan Agreement in
substantially the form attached to this Resolution is hereby approved and is authorized to be
executed and issued on behalf of the Issuer by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk. The
Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver for and on
behalf of the City any other additional certificates, documents, or other papers and perform all
other acts, including without limitation the execution of all closing documents, as they may deem

-17 -






necessary or appropriate in order to implement and carry out the intent and purposes of this
Resolution.

Section 15. Contract Between Issuer and Purchaser. This Resolution constitutes a
contract between said City and the purchaser of the Notes.

Section 16. Non-Arbitrage Covenants. The Issuer reasonably expects and covenants that
no use will be made of the proceeds from the issuance and sale of the Notes issued hereunder
which will cause any of the Notes to be classified as arbitrage notes within the meaning of
Sections 148(a) and (b) of the Internal Revenue Code of the United States, as amended, and that
throughout the term of the Notes it will comply with the requirements of statutes and regulations
issued thereunder.

To the best knowledge and belief of the Issuer, there are no facts or circumstances that
would materially change the foregoing statements or the conclusion that it is not expected that
the proceeds of the Notes will be used in a manner that would cause the Notes to be arbitrage

notes.

Section 17. Approval of Tax Exemption Certificate. Attached hereto is a form of Tax
Exemption Certificate stating the Issuer's reasonable expectations as to the use of the proceeds of
the Notes. The form of Tax Exemption Certificate is approved. The Issuer hereby agrees to
comply with the provisions of the Tax Exemption Certificate and the provisions of the Tax
Exemption Certificate are hereby incorporated by reference as part of this Resolution. The
Finance Director is hereby directed to make and insert all calculations and determinations
necessary to complete the Tax Exemption Certificate at issuance of the Notes to certify as to the
reasonable expectations and covenants of the Issuer at that date.

Section 18. Continuing Disclosure. The Issuer hereby covenants and agrees that it will
comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, and the
provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate are hereby incorporated by reference as part
of this Resolution and made a part hereof. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Resolution, failure of the Issuer to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall not
be considered an event of default under this Resolution; however, any holder of the Notes or
Beneficial Owner may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking
specific performance by court order, to cause the Issuer to comply with its obligations under the
Continuing Disclosure Certificate. For purposes of this section, "Beneficial Owner" means any
person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or consent with respect to, or to
dispose of ownership of, any Note (including persons holding Notes through nominees,
depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Notes for federal

income tax purposes.

Section 19. Additional Covenants, Representations and Warranties of the Issuer. The
Issuer certifies and covenants with the purchasers and holders of the Notes from time to time
outstanding that the Issuer through its officers, (a) will make such further specific covenants,
representations and assurances as may be necessary or advisable; (b) comply with all
representations, covenants and assurances contained in the Tax Exemption Certificate, which
Tax Exemption Certificate shall constitute a part of the contract between the Issuer and the

-18 -






owners of the Notes;(c) consult with Bond Counsel (as defined in the Tax Exemption
Certificate); (d) pay to the United States, as necessary, such sums of money representing required
rebates of excess arbitrage profits relating to the Notes;(e) file such forms, statements and
supporting documents as may be required and in a timely manner; and (f) if deemed necessary or
advisable by its officers, to employ and pay fiscal agents, financial advisors, attorneys and other
persons to assist the Issuer in such compliance.

Section 20. Amendment of Resolution to Maintain Tax Exemption. This Resolution may
be amended without the consent of any owner of the Notes if, in the opinion of Bond Counsel,
such amendment is necessary to maintain tax exemption with respect to the Notes under
applicable Federal law or regulations.

Section 21. Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. For the sole purpose of qualifying the
Notes as "Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations" pursuant to Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal
Revenue Code of the United States, the Issuer hereby designates the Notes as qualified tax-
exempt obligations and represents that the reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt
governmental and qualified 501(c)(3) obligations which will be issued during the current
calendar year will not exceed Ten (10) Million Dollars.

Section 22. Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions or Ordinances. All ordinances and
resolutions and patts of ordinances and resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

Section 23. Severability Clause. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this
Resolution be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining provisions
hereof, and this Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 14th day of November, 2016.

Mayor
ATTEST:

City Clerk

-19-






PAYING AGENT:; NOTE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into the date hereof between Bankers Trust Company
("Agent" or "Paying Agent") and the City of Carroll, Iowa ("Issuer").

1. Definition of Terms. The terms "item", "receipt", "transfer", "turnaround",
"process", "business day", and other terms used throughout this Agreement shall be deemed to
have the meanings provided in Rules 17Ad-1 and 17Ad-2 of the Regulations promulgated
pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Section 76.10(4) of the Code of Iowa, as

amended and in effect from time to time.

2. Note Resolution Incorporated by Reference. Agent agrees to act on behalf of
Issuer pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and pursuant to the Resolution Authorizing and
Providing for the Execution of a Loan Agreement and the Issuance of $2,290,000 General
Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2016B, dated November 30, 2016 (the "Obligations").
The Resolution and the terms thereof are hereby incorporated by reference and the provisions of
this Agreement are to be construed to be consistent with the Resolution. The Resolution defines
among other items lost, stolen and mutilated Notes and manner of notice to parties. In the event
of inconsistent language between the Resolution and this Agreement, the terms of the Resolution

shall prevail.

3. Registrar Function. Agent shall maintain records of the identity of the owners of
the Obligations in order to carry out its function as Registrar and upon request of Issuer shall
from time to time deliver to Issuer records, documents and other writings made or accumulated
in the performance of its duties as Registrar, In such capacity Agent is authorized at any time to
register for original issue certificates representing the Obligations and not exceeding the total
principal amount of the Obligations ("certificates") and upon surrender for cancellation of
certificates to register new certificates for the principal amount of Obligations represented by the
certificates so canceled and to redeliver such new certificates.

4, Transfer Agent Function. For the purpose of the original issue of certificates
Agent is hereby directed to record and authenticate certificates signed by or bearing the facsimile
signatures of the officers of Issuer authorized to sign certificates, in such names and in such

amounts as Issuer may direct.

Agent shall make transfers, from time to time upon the records of Issuer of any
outstanding certificates and of certificates issued in exchange therefor signed by the officers of
Issuer upon surrender thereof for transfer properly endorsed and upon reasonable assurance that
such endorsements are genuine and effective in accordance with Section 554.8401, Code of
Iowa. Upon request for cancellation of such certificates Agent shall record and authenticate new
certificates duly signed and deliver such certificates to or upon the order of the person entitled

thereto.

Agent shall furnish to each owner, at Issuet's expense, one certificate for each annual
maturity. Agent shall furnish additional certificates of lesser denomination to an owner who so
requests,






Certified specimen signatures of the officers of Issuer and certified specimen certificates
in the form duly approved by Issuer shall be lodged with Agent and upon request of Agent the
Issuer will deliver to the Agent a sufficient supply of certificates in the form approved. :

_ 5. Paying Agent Function. Agent is hereby authorized and shall make payments of
principal and interest to the registered holders of the Obligations as follows:

a) At least three business days prior to each payment date Issuer will deposit with
the Agent in immediately available funds such amount as is required to make such

payment.

b) One business day before each payment date Agent will pay interest and, upon
presentation and surrender of the matured or called Obligations, will pay principal to each
registered owner of the Obligations as of the record date by mailing a check to each such
owner. In any case where the date of maturity of interest on or principal of the
Obligations or the date fixed for redemption of any Obligations shall be a Sunday or a
legal holiday or a day on which the banking institutions are authorized by law to close,
then payment of interest or principal may be made on the succeeding business day with
the same force and effect as if made on the date of maturity or the date fixed for
redemption. Provided, however, that payment of principal shall be made not later than
the second day after receipt of the matured Obligation,

c) When the Agent shall receive notice from Issuer of its option to redeem
Obligations prior to maturity, the Agent shall select the Obligations to be redeemed and
give notice of the redemption thereof, all in accordance with the terms of the Obligations

and the Resolution. ’

6. Form of Records. The records of Agent shall be in such form as to be in
compliance with standards issued from time to time by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking
" Board of the United States and any other securities industry standard and the requirements of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and Chapter 76 of the Code of Iowa.

7. Confidentiality of Records. -Agent's records in connection with the Obligations

~ shall remain confidential records entitled to protection and confidentiality pursuant to Section
22.7(17), Code of Iowa. Agent agrees that its use of the records will be limited to the purposes
of this Agreement and that Agent will make no private use or permit any private access thereto.

8. Reliance Upon Certain Certifications and Representations. Agent may rely

conclusively and act, without further investigation, upon any list, instruction, certification,
~ authorization, certificate or other instrument or paper suitably guaranteed and believed by it in

good faith and due diligence in performing its functions to be genuine and to have been signed,
countersigned or executed by any duly authorized person or persons or upon the instruction of
any authorized officer of Issuer or upon the advice of Issuer's counsel; and may register any
certificate representing the Obligations or may refuse to register any such certificate if in good
faith Agent deems such refusal necessary in order to avoid any liability on the part of either
Issuer or Agent, and Issuer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Agent from and against
any and all losses, costs, claims and liability for so relying or acting or refusing to act.

-






9. Rules and Regulations Governing Registration. Agent shall comply at all times
with such rules, regulations, and requirements as may govern the registration, transfer and
payment of registered Obligations including without limitation Chapters 76 and 384 and Section
554.8101 et seq. Code of lowa and standards issued from time to time by the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board of the United States and any other securities industry standard and
the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

10. Signature of Officers. In case any of the officers of Issuer whose manual or
facsimile signature appear on any certificate, bond or other record delivered to the Agent shall
cease to be such officer prior to.the registration, processing or transfer thereof, the Agent may
nevertheless process such documents as though the person signing the same or whose facsimile
signature appears thereon had not ceased to be such officer unless written instruction of the

Issuer to the contrary is received.

11.  Record Date. For purposes of determining the registered owners of the
Obligations, the record date shall be deemed to be the fifteenth day of the month preceding the
date on which payment of principal, premium, if any, or interest is payable to the registered
owners of the Obligations ("payment date") whether such payment is due to optlonal redemption,

operation of a sinking fund, or for any other reason.

12.  Three Days Turnaround. Agent agrees that it will turnaround within three
business days of receipt all items received in proper form for transfer, process or other action
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement,

13. Delivery of Obligations. Agent will promptly cancel and deliver to Issuer all
Obligations or certificates representing the Obligations surrendered to it upon payment of the
principal, premium, if any, and interest owing on such Obligations.

14, Payment of Unclaimed Amounts. In the event any payment check representmg
payment of interest or principal on the Obligations is returned to the Paying Agent or is not
presented for payment, or if any Obligation is not presented for payment of principal or
premium, if any, at the maturity or redemption date, if funds sufficient to pay such interest on
Obligations shall have been made available to the Paying Agent for the benefit of the owner
thereof, all liability of the Issuer to the owner thereof for such interest or payment of such
Obligations shall forthwith cease, terminate and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall
be the duty of the Paying Agent to hold such funds, without liability for interest thereon, for the
benefit of the owner of such Obligations who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such
funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part under this Agreement or on, or with respect to,
such interest or Obligations. The Paying Agent's obligation to hold such funds shall continue for
a period equal to two years and six months following the date on which such interest or principal
became due, whether at maturity, or at the date fixed for redemption thereof, or otherwise, at ‘
which time the Paying Agent, shall surrender any remaining funds so held to the Issuer,
whereupon any claim under this Agreement by the Owners of such interest or Obligations of

whatever nature shall be made upon the Issuer.

15. No Obligation to Invest. Agent will have no obligation to invest any funds in its
possession.

3-






16. Compensation of Agent. The Issuer will pay Agent reasonable compensation-for
its services, based upon the schedule of fees attached or such other schedule of fees as may be
agreed upon from time to time between Agent and Issuer. Agent's compensation may include
the amount of any attorney fees incurred by it under Section 17 hereof.

17.  Bond Counsel. When Agent deems it necessary or reasonable it may apply to
bond counsel for the Issuer, or such other law firm or attorney approved by Issuer for

instructions or advice. :

18.  Termination of Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated by either party by
giving the other party at least 90 days advance written notice. At termination of the Agreement,
Agent shall deliver to Issuer any and all records, documents or other writings made or
accumulated in the performance of its duties under this Agreement and shall refund the unearned

balance, if any, of fees paid in advance by Issuer.

19.  Examination of Records. Issuer or its duly authorized agents may examine all
records relating to the Obligations at the principal office of the Agent at reasonable times as
agreed upon with the Agent and such records shall be subject to audit from time to time at the
request of Issuer or Agent. The Agent, on request, will furnish Issuer with a list of the names,
addresses, and other information concerning the owners of the Obligations or any of them.

20. Obligations, Rights and Privileges of Agent. Agent shall have, with regard to the
particular functions it performs, the same obligation to the holder or owner of the Obligations
and shall have the same rights and privileges as the Issuer has in regard to those functions.

Dated this day of , 2016.
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA, ISSUER

By:

Mayor
ATTEST:

By:

City Clerk






LOAN AGREEMENT

This Loan Agreement is entered into as of the 30th day of November, 2016, by and
between the City of Carroll, Iowa (the "City") acting through its City Council (the "Council")
and Bankers' Bank of Madison, Wisconsin (the "Lender"). The parties agree as follows:

1. The Lender shall loan to the City the sum of $2,28 1,985;00, and the City's
obligation to repay hereunder shall be evidenced by the issuance of General Obligation Capital
Loan Notes, Series 2016B, in the aggregate principal amount of $2,290,000 (the "Notes").

2. The loan proceeds shall be used to pay costs of the construction of a cemetery
maintenance building at the Carroll City. Cemetery, and the Third Street Storm Sewer
Improvements, consisting of acquisition, construction and equipping of storm water drainage
improvements along and adjacent to Third Street near the Middle Raccoon River (the "Project™).
Any remaining loan proceeds, including accrued interest, if any, shall be deposited in the Note
Fund (defined in the Resolution hereinafter referred to) and shall be held therein and used, along
with other amounts therein, to pay interest on the Notes on June 1, 2017.

3. The City agrees to repay the loan and interest thereon as hereinafter provided.
The Notes, in substantially the form set forth in the Resolution hereinafter referred to, shall be
executed and delivered to the Lender to evidence the City's obligation to repay the amounts
payable hereunder. The Notes shall be dated November 30, 2016, shall bear interest payable
June 1, 2017, and semiannually thereafter on the first day of June and December in each year at
_ the respective rates and shall mature in principal amounts in each of the respective years, as

follows:
Principal Interest Maturity
Amount Rate June st
$285,000 0.800% 2017
$315,000 0.900% 2018
$270,000 ' 1.000% 2019
$275,000 - 1.100% 2020
$275,000 1.250% 2021
$285,000 1.400% 2022
$290,000 1.500% 2023
$295,000 1.600% 2024






4. The Council has adopted a Resolution (the "Resolution") authorizing and
approving the form of this Loan Agreement and providing for the issuance and securing the
payment of the Notes and establishing the terms thereof, and the Resolution is incorporated
herein by reference, and the parties agree to abide by the terms and provisions of the Resolution.
The Notes and the interest thereon shall be payable from the levy of a sufficient continuing
annual tax on all the taxable property within the territory of the City and provision has been
made in the Resolution for the levy and collection of such tax.

5. The City may borrow additional money, issue general obligation bonds or enter
into other loan agreements and issue additional Notes which are at the time of their issuance on a
parity and equality of rank with the Notes with respect to the lien and claim of such collection of
taxes thereof provided that the total indebtedness of the City including this Loan Agreement and
Notes issued hereunder does not exceed the Constitutional or statutory limitations,

6. The Lender is acquiring the Notes with the intent of making offers and sales of
the Notes to the public. The Lender agrees to comply with all federal and state securities laws
and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board, including but not limited to Rules 15¢2-12 and 10b-5, in making

offers and sales of the Notes to the public.

7. The Lender and the City represent and agree that no financial advisory |
relationship as defined by Rule G-23 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board has existed
between them with respect to this Loan Agreement or presently exists between them with respect
to other similar matters and that no employee of the Lender is an employee or official of the

City.
8. This Loan Agreement is executed pursuant to the provisions of Sections 384.24A
and 384.25 of the Code of Iowa, as amended, and shall be read and construed as conforming to

all provisions and requirements thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto affixed our signatures all as of the date first
above written. '

(SEAL) | CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA (City)
By:
Mayor
ATTEST:
By:
City Clerk






TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE
of

CITY OF CARROLL, COUNTY OF CARROLL, STATE OF IOWA, ISSUER

$2,29OV,OOO General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2016B

This instrument was prepared by:

Abhlers & Cooney, P.C.
100 Court Avenue, Suite 600
Des Moines, Iowa 50309
(515) 243-7611






TABLE OF CONTENTS

This Table of Contents is not a part of this Tax Exemption Certificate and is provided only for
convenience of reference.

INTRODUCTION.....uconterreeriessserecrssescassassosssorssssssassassssssssssassssssssssnsssssssassasssssraasssosassssessesassasnsesses 1
ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS ..cveorteecrrerssssessorssssssossassessssssssssasssesssssssassasssssssssessassnsssassassasssessssses 1
ARTICLE II SPECIFIC CERTIFICATIONS, REPRESENTATIONS AND
AGREEMENTS ....oiviieniirnnnssessassissississssssosssssssssssssssssssasssssssssonssssssassnsasasssassassssonsessonsossesse 4
Section 2.1  Authority to Certify and EXpectations ........cceevveivevveveniinionresieineecne v 4
Section 2.2 Receipts and Expenditures of Sale Proceeds ........cocvvicviiviererivenreevnieeennn, 7
Section 2.3 Purpose of BONAS ...c..cciviniiiiiviniiiicicrese et 7
Section 2.4  Facts Supporting Tax-Exemption Classification .........ccccovvrrrecenecnnnen. 7
Section 2.5  Facts Supporting Temporary Periods for Proceeds ........ocovvirvervennnee. eeriees 7
Section 2.6  Resolution Funds at Restricted or Unrestricted Yield .........ccovvvviviiinnnnne. 8
Section 2.7  Pertaining to YIClds......covcevrimrirriiiriceicreiiiinie e e e e cne et s e 8
Section 2.8  Reimbursement BONAS .....cccvviviriirireiiiiiiiiie e snre s esaeesseenns 9
ARTICLE IIL REBATE ....cocvcrinininecsisionnosiosiossisessssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssssassessssssossssssnssssassrsssaes 10
SeCtion 3.1 RECOTAS wuvviircririrerircenieiieie sttt e ee it sreestaesne b e erbbesbassebesanestesves 10
Section 3.2 Rebate FUnd ......covvvvinieniiiiiini et 10
Section 3.3 Exceptions to Rebate.......cccvurveriiiininicrienieseennecnennnesne e ene e enes 11
Section 3.4  Calculation of Rebate AMOUNT......cccuveevviivviiiiiireiiiriniesoreisreeessreesseeesees 12
Section 3.5  Rebate Requirements and the Bond Fund...........cccevevvivvevinecreiniiniinnns 12
Section 3.6 Investment of the Rebate Fund...........cooeivviiiiiiiniicnneenn 12
Section 3.7  Payment to the United States.......oceevrvrieiiiiiieiinsiiereeirinirieeeesesreonvenneen 13
Section 3.8  Records .......coevvuvenne e ettt e e e ebe e e b an e reeser e e et bn et aeertesereasrres 13
Section 3.9  Additional PAyments.......ccocciviiiriiieiieniieniinieesiesnenienrerenernsreereeseeresnssens 13
ARTICLE IV INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS.....ccvcisvirneseosessrecssasssessssssasesssessessesnasnseses 14
Section4.1  Avoidance of Prohibited Payments..........cccvevveerviviiiiniieineinecessereereennes 14
Section 4.2  Market Price ReqUITemMent ........ccovverivviniinenesecviciireciene et e siesennenns 14
Section 4.3  Investment in Certificates 0f DepoSit ...cccvvvvvevierveviiiicreininiieseireeee e 14
Section 4.4  Investment Pursuant to Investment Contracts and Agreements ................ 15
SECtion 4.5 RECOTAS 1vviviiviiririiiiririeirieniiteereesinreresre e estaeesteessesrresssessssssssssessnessneses 17
. Section 4.6  Investments t0 e LEZAL ..v.viviiiivirireriretieiriseeeeercrieieeseereseeseneseessenens 17
ARTICLE V GENERAL COVENANTS ..cooiinrinirnnsissnssssisssssessasessasssssssssensesasssssssesssssassasrass 17
ARTICLE VI AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS ...cccorveveeneneereersecses 17
Section 6.1  Opinion of Bond Counsel; Amendments.........oveecerveeriernnieorieeneeensaenns 17
Section 6.2  Additional Covenants, AIEEMENLS .....cvvvirreirrereeeiierinrresirreorreeereesnieeesnnees 18
Section 6.3  Internal Revenue Service AUILS .....cocvvivirinieeeivinenienie oo eneen 18
Section 6.4  AMENAMEIES ..eovvererivierierieereruesieesiereisinerersseatrresiraesisessrerssssesesssssseessesns 18
ARTICLE VII QUALIFIED TAX EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS....ccccvvtnerreerereeseersecseesaessesreccses 18
EXHIBIT "A" ovioreireirnennssssssessrsssssassassssssessssssossessssssssesssssssssssassssssssorssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssrsssasenes 21






TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE
CITY OF CARROLL, STATE OF IOWA

THIS TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE made and entered into on November 30,
2016, by the City of Carroll, County of Carroll, State of Towa (the "Issuer").

INTRODUCTION

This Certificate is executed and delivered in connection with the issuance by the Issuer of
its $2,290,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2016B (the "Bonds"). The Bonds
are issued pursuant to the provisions of the Resolution of the Issuer authorizing the issuance of
the Bonds. Such Resolution provides that the covenants contained in this Certificate constitute a

part of the Issuer's contract with the owners of the Bonds.

The Issuer recognizes that under the Code (as defined below) the tax-exempt status of the
interest received by the owners of the Bonds is dependent upon, among other things, the facts,
circumstances, and reasonable expectations of the Issuer as to future facts not in existence at this
time, as well as the observance of certain covenants in the future. The Issuer covenants that it
will take such action with respect to the Bonds as may be required by the Code, and pertinent
legal regulations issued thereunder in order to establish and maintain the tax-exempt status of the
Bonds, including the observance of all specific covenants contained in the Resolution and this

Certificate.
ARTICLET

DEFINITIONS

‘The following terms as used in this Certificate shall have the meanings set forth below.
The terms defined in the Resolution shall retain the meanings set forth therein when used in this
Certificate. Other terms used in this Certificate shall have the meanings set forth in the Code or

in the Regulations.

. "Annual Debt Service" means the principal of and interest on the Bonds
scheduled to be paid during a given Bond Year.

. "Bonds" means the $2,290,000 aggregate principal amount of General
Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2016B, of the Issuer issued in registered form

pursuant to the Resolution.

. "Bond Counsel" means Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., Des Moines, Iowa, or an
attorney at law or a firm of attorneys of nationally recognized standing in matters
pertaining to the tax-exempt status of interest on obligations issued by states and their
political subdivisions, duly admitted to the practice of law before the highest court of any

State of the United States of America.

. "Bond Fund" means th(; Sinking Fund described in the Reso_lution.
1






. "Bond Purchase Agreement" means the binding contract in writing for the
sale of the Bonds.

. "Bond Year" as defined in Regulation 1.148-1(b), means a one-year period
beginning on the day after expiration of the preceding Bond Year. The first Bond Year
shall be the one-year or shorter period beginning on the Closing Date and ending on a
principal or interest payment date, unless Issuer selects another date.

.. "Bond Yield" means that discount rate which produces an amount equal to
the Issue Price of the Bonds when used in computing the present value of all payments of
principal and interest to be paid on the Bonds, using semiannual compounding on a 360-

day year as computed under Regulation 1.148-4.
. "Certificate" means this Tax Exemption Certificate.

. "Closing" means the delivery of the Bonds in exchange for the agreed
upon purchase price.

. "Closing Date" means the date of Closing.

. "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and any
statutes which replace or supplement the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

. "Computation Date" means each five-year period from the Closing Date
through the last day of the fifth and each succeeding fifth Bond Year.

. "Excess Earnings" means the amount earned on all Nonpurpose
Investments minus the amount which would have been earned if such Nonpurpose
Investments were invested at a rate equal to the Bond Yield, plus any income attributable

to such excess.

. "Final Bond Retirement Date" means the date 'on which the Bonds are
actually paid in full.
. "Governmental Obligations" means direct general obligations of, or

obligations the timely payment of the principal of and interest on which is
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States.

. "Gross Proceeds" as defined in Reguiation 1.148-1(b), means any Proceeds
of the Bonds and any replacement proceeds (as defined in Regulation 1.148-1(c)) of the

Bonds.
. "Gross Proceeds Funds" means the Project Fund, Proceeds held to pay

cost of issuance, and any other fund or account held for the benefit of the owners of the
Bonds or containing Gross Proceeds of the Bonds except the Bond Fund and the Rebate

Fund.






. "Issue Price" as defined in Regulation 1.148-1(b), means the initial
offering price of the Bonds to the public (not including bond houses, brokers or similar
persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) at which
price a substantial amount of the Bonds (not less than 10% of each maturity) were sold to
the public. For those maturities where less than 10% of such maturity has been sold at
the initial offering price, the price for that maturity is determined as of the date of the
Bond Purchase Agreement based upon the reasonably expected initial offering price to
the public. The Purchasers have certified the Issue Price to be not more than $2,290,000.

. "Issuer" means the City of Carroll, a municipal corporation in the County
of Carroll, State of Iowa.

. "Minor Portion of the Bonds", as defined in Regulation 1.148-2(g), means
the lesser of five (5) percent of Proceeds or $100,000. The Minor Portion of the Bonds is

computed to be $100,000.

. "Nonpurpose Investments" means any investment property which is
acquired with Gross Proceeds and is not acquired to carry out the governmental purpose
of the Bonds, and may include but is not limited to U.S. Treasury bonds, corporate bonds,

or certificates of deposit.

. "Proceeds" as defined in Regulation 1.148-1(b), means Sale Proceeds,
investment proceeds and transferred proceeds of the Bonds.

. "Project" means the construction of a cemetery maintenance building at
the Carroll City Cemetery, and the Third Street Storm Sewer Improvements, consisting of
acquisition, construction and equipping of storm water drainage improvements along and
adjacent to Third Street near the Middle Raccoon River including sums already expended
that meet the requirements of Section 2.8 hereof, as more fully described in the

Resolution.

. "Project Fund" shall mean the fund required to be established by the
Resolution for the deposit of the Proceeds of the Notes.

. "Purchasers" means Bankers' Bank of Madison, Wisconsin, constituting
the initial purchasers of the Bonds from the Issuer.

. "Rebate Amount" means the amount computed as described in this
Certificate. :

. "Rebate Fund" means the fund to be created, if necessary, pursuant to this
Certificate. :

. "Rebate Payment Date" means a date chosen by the Issuer which is not

more than 60 days following each Computation Date or the Final Bond Retirement Date.

. "Regulations" means the Income Tax Regulations, amendments and
successor provisions promulgated by the Department of the Treasury under Sections 103,

3






148 and 149 of the Code, or other Sections of the Code relating to "arbitrage bonds",
including without limitation Regulations 1.148-1 through 1.148-11, 1.149(b)-1, 1.149-

d(1), 1.150-1 and 1.150-2.

. "Replacement Proceeds" include, but are not limited to, sinking funds,
amounts that are pledged as security for an issue, and amounts that are replaced because
of a sufficiently direct nexus to a governmental purpose of an issue.

. "Resolution" means the resolution of the Issuer adopted on November 14,
2016, authorizing the issuance of the Bonds.

‘ . "Sale Proceeds" as defined in Regulation 1.148-1(b), means any amounts
actually or constructively received from the sale of the Bonds, including amounts used to
pay underwriter's discount or compensation and accrued interest other than pre-issuance

accrued interest.

. "Sinking Fund" means the Bond Fund.

. "SLGS" means demand deposit Treasury securities of the State and Local
Government Series. :

. e "Tax Exempt Obligations" means bonds or other obligations the interest
on which is excludable from the gross income of the owners thereof under Section 103 of
the Code and include certain regulated investment companies, stock in tax-exempt mutual

funds and demand deposit SLGS.

. "Taxable Obligations" means all investment property, obligations or
securities other than Tax Exempt Obligations.

. "Verification Certificate" means the certificate attached to this Certificate
as Exhibit A, setting forth the offering prices at which the Purchaser will reoffer and sell

the Bonds to the public.
ARTICLE II

SPECIFIC CERTIFICATIONS, REPRESENTATIONS
AND AGREEMENTS

The Issuer hereby certifies, represents and agrees as follows:

Section 2.1 Authority to Certify and Expectations

(a) The undersigned officer of the Issuer along with other officers of the
Issuer, are charged with the responsibility of issuing the Bonds.

(b)  This Certificate is being executed and delivered in part for the purposes
specified in Section 1.148-2(b)(2) of the Regulations and is intended (among other
purposes) to establish reasonable expectations of the Issuer at this time.

4






(c) The Issuer has not been notified of any disqualification or proposed
disqualification of it by the Commissioner of the Internal Revenue Service as a bond
issuer which may certify bond issues under Section 1.148-2(b)(2) of the Regulations.

(d)  The certifications, representations and agreements set forth in this Article
II are made on the basis of the facts, estimates and circumstances in existence on the date
hereof, including the following: (1) with respect to amounts expected to be received from
delivery of the Bonds, amounts actually received, (2) with respect to payments of
amounts into various funds or accounts, review of the authorizations or directions for
such payments made by the Issuer pursuant to the Resolution and this Certificate, (3)
with respect to the Issue Price, the certifications of the Purchasers as set forth in the
Verification Certificate, (4) with respect fo expenditure of the Proceeds of the Bonds,
actual expenditures and reasonable expectations of the Issuer as to when the Proceeds
will be spent for purposes of the Project, (5) with respect to Bond Yield, review of the
Verification Certificate, and (6) with respect to the amount of governmental and qualified
501(c)(3) bonds to be issued during the calendar year, the budgeting and present planning
of Issuer. The Issuer has no reason to believe such facts, estimates or circumstances are

untrue or incomplete in any material way.

(e) To the best of the knowledge and belief of the undersigned officer of the
Issuer, there are no facts, estimates or circumstances that would materially change the
representations, certifications or agreements set forth in this Certificate, and the

“expectations herein set out are reasonable.

® No arrangement exists under which the payment of principal or interest on
the Bonds would be directly or indirectly guaranteed by the United States or any agency

or instrumentality thereof.

(g)  After the expiration of any applicable temporary periods, and excluding
investments in a bona fide debt service fund or reserve fund, not more than five percent
(5%) of the Proceeds of the Bonds will be (a) used to make loans which are guaranteed
by the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof, or (b) invested in federally

insured deposits or accounts.

(h)  The Issuer will file with the Internal Revenue Service in a timely fashion
Form 8038-G, Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Obligations with
respect to the Bonds and such other reports required to comply with the Code and

applicable Regulations.

(1) The Issuer will take no action which would cause the Bonds to become
"private activity bonds" as defined in Séction 141 (a) of the Code, including any use of
the Project by any person other than a governmental unit if such use will be by other than
a member of the general public. None of the Proceeds of the Bonds will be used directly
" or indirectly to make or finance loans to any person other than a governmental unit.

6)) The Issuer will make no change in the nature or purpose of the Project
except as provided in Section 6.1 hereof.

5






(k)  Except as provided in the Resolution, the Issuer will not establish any
sinking fund, bond fund, reserve fund, debt service fund or other fund reasonably
expected to be used to pay debt service on the Bonds (other than the Bond Fund and any
Reserve Fund), exercise its option to redeem Bonds prior to maturity or effect a refunding

of the Bonds.

O No bonds or other obligations of the Issuer (1) were sold in the 15 days
preceding the date of sale of the Bonds, (2) were sold or will be sold within the 15 days
after the date of sale of the Bonds, (3) have been delivered in the past 15 days or (4) will
be delivered in the next 15 days pursuant to a common plan of financing for the issuance
of the Bonds and payable out of substantially the same source of revenues.

(m) None of the Proceeds of the Bonds will be used directly or indirectly to
replace funds of the Issuer used directly or indirectly to acquire obligations having a yield

higher than the Bond Yield.

(n)  No portion of the Bonds is issued for the purpose of investing such portion
at a higher yield than the Bond Yield.

(o)  The Issuer does not expect that the Proceeds of the Bonds will be used in a
manner that would cause them to be "arbitrage bonds" as defined in Section 148(a) of the
Code. The Issuer does not expéct that the Proceeds of the Bonds will be used in a
manner that would cause the interest on the Bonds to be includible in the gross income of
the owners of the Bonds under the Code. The Issuer will not intentionally use any
portion of the Proceeds to acquire higher yielding investments.

(p)  The Issuer will not use the Proceeds of the Bonds to exploit the difference
between tax-exempt and taxable interest rates to obtain a material financial advantage.

(@)  The Issuer has not issued more Bonds, issued the Bonds eatlier, or allowed
the Bonds to remain outstanding longer than is reasonably necessary to accomplish the
governmental purposes of the Bonds. In fact, the Bonds will not remain outstanding
longer than 120% of the economic useful life of the assets financed with the Proceeds of

the Bonds.

® The Bonds will not be Hedge Bonds as described in Section 149(g)(3) of
the Code because the Issuer reasonably expects that it will meet the Expenditure test set
forth in Section 2.5(b) hereof and that 50% or more of the Proceeds will not be invested
in Nonpurpose Investments having a substantially guaranteed yield for four or more

years.

Except for costs of issuance, all Sale Proceeds and investment earnings thereon will be .

expended for costs of the type that would be chargeable to capital accounts under the Code
pursuant to federal income tax principles if the Issuer were treated as a corporation subject to

federal income taxation.






Section 2.2  Receipts and Expenditures of Sale Proceeds

Sale Proceeds (par plus re-offering premium of $0), less underwriter's discount of $8,015,
received at Closing are expected to be deposited and expended as follows:

(a) $29,800 representing costs of issuing the Bonds will be used within six
months of the Closing Date to pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds (with any excess
remaining on deposit in the Project Fund); and

(b) $2,252,185 will be deposited into the Project Fund and will be used
together with earnings thereon to pay the costs of the Project and will not exceed the
amount necessary to accomplish the governmental purposes of the Bonds; and

Section 2.3 Purpose of Bonds

The Issuer is issuing the Bonds to pay the costs of construction of a cemetery
maintenance building at the Carroll City Cemetery, and the Third Street Storm Sewer
Improvements, consisting of acquisition, construction and equipping of storm water drainage
improvements along and adjacent to Third Street near the Middle Raccoon River.

Section 2.4  Facts Supporting Tax-Exemption Classification

Governmental Bonds

Private Business Use/Private Security or Payment Tests

The Bonds are considered to be governmental bonds, not subject to the provisions

of the alternate minimum tax. The Proceeds will be used for the purposes described in
. Section 2.3 hereof. These bonds are not private activity bonds because no amount of

Proceeds of the Bonds is to be used in a trade or business carried on by a non-
governmental unit. Rather, the Proceeds will be used to finance the general government
operations and facilities of the Issuer described in Section 2.3 hereof. None of the
payment of principal or interest on the Bonds will be derived from, or secured by, money
or property used in a trade or business of a non-governmental unit. In addition, none of
the governmental operations or facilities of the Issuer being financed with the Proceeds of
the Bonds are subject to any lease, management contract-or other similar arrangement or
to any arrangement for use other than as by the general public.

Private Loan Financing Test

No amount of Proceeds of the Bonds is to be used directly or indirectly to make or
finance loans to persons other than governmental units.

Section 2.5  Facts Supporting Temporary Periods for Proceeds

(a)  Time Test. Not later than six months after the Closing Date, the Issuer
will incur a substantial binding obligation to a third party to expend at least 5% of the net

Sale Proceeds of the Bonds. '






(b)  Expenditure Test. Not less than 85% of the net Sale Proceeds will be
expended for Project costs, including the reimbursement of other funds expended to date,
within a three-year temporary period from the Closing Date.

" (c) Due Diligence Test. Not later than six months after Closing, work on the
Project will have commenced and will proceed with due diligence to completion.

(d)  Proceeds of the Bonds representing less than six months accrued interest
on the Bonds will be spent within six months of this date to pay interest on the Bonds,
and will be invested without restriction as to yield for a temporary period not in excess of

six months.

Section 2.6  Resolution Funds at Restricted or Unrestricted Yield

(a) Proceeds of the Bonds will be held and accounted for in the manner
provided in the Resolution. The Issuer has not and does not expect to create or establish
any other bond fund, reserve fund, or similar fund or account for the Bonds. The Issuer
has not and will not pledge any moneys or Taxable Obligations in order to pay debt
service on the Bonds or restrict the use of such moneys or Taxable Obligations so as to
give reasonable assurances of their availability for such purposes.

(b)  Any monies which are invested beyond a temporary period are expected to
constitute less than a major portion of the Bonds or to be restricted for investment at a
yield not greater than one-eighth of one percent above the Bond Yield.

(¢)  The Issuer has established and will use the Bond Fund primarily to
achieve a proper matching of revenues and debt service within each Bond Year and the
Issuer will apply moneys deposited into the Bond Fund to pay the principal of and
interest on the Bonds. Such Fund will be depleted at least once each Bond Year except
for a reasonable carryover amount. The carryover amount will not exceed the greater of
(1) one year's earnings on the Bond Fund or (2) one-twelfth of Annual Debt Service. The
Issuer will spend moneys deposited from time to time into such fund within 13 months
after the date of deposit. Revenues, intended to be used to pay debt service on the Bonds,
will be deposited into the Bond Fund as set forth in the Resolution. The Issuer will spend
interest earned on moneys in such fund not more than 12 months after receipt.
Accordingly, the Issuer will treat the Bond Fund as a bona fide debt service fund as

defined in Regulation 1.148-1(b).

Investment of amounts on deposit in the Bond Fund will not be subject to arbitrage rebate
requirements as the Bonds meet the safe harbor set forth in Regulation 1.148-3(k), because the
average annual debt service on the Bonds will not exceed $2,500,000.

(d)  The Minor Portion of the Bonds will be invested without regard to yield.

Section 2.7  Pertaining to Yields

(a) The purchase price of all Taxable Obligations to which restrictions apply
under this Certificate as to investment yield or rebate of Excess Earnings, if any, has been

8






and shall be calculated using (i) the price taking into account discount, premium and
accrued interest, as applicable, actually paid or (ii) the fair market value if less than the
price actually paid and if such Taxable Obligations were not purchased directly from the
United States Treasury. The Issuer will acquire all such Taxable Obligations directly
from the United States Treasury or in an arm's length transaction without regard to any
amounts paid to reduce the yield on such Taxable Obligations. The Issuer will not pay or
permit the payment of any amounts (other than to the United States) to reduce the yield
on any Taxable Obligations. Obligations pledged to the payment of debt service on the
Bonds, or deposited into any reserve fund after they have been acquired by the Issuer will
be treated as though they were acquired for their fair market value on the date of such
pledge or deposit. Obligations on deposit in any reserve fund on the Closing Date shall
be treated as if acquired for their fair market value on the Closing Date.

(b)  Qualified guarantees have not been used in computing yield.

() The Bond Yield has been computed as not less than 1.349475 percent.
This Bond Yield has been computed on the basis of a purchase price for the Bonds equal

to the Issue Price.

Section 2.8  Reimbursement Bonds

(a) Not later than 60 days after payment of Original Expenditﬁres, the Issuer
has adopted an Official Intent and has declared its intention to make a Reimbursement
Allocation of Original Expenditures incurred in connection with Project Segment(s) from

proceeds of the Reimbursement Bonds.

(b)  The Reimbursement Allocation will occur on or before the later of (i)
eighteen months after the Original Expenditures are paid or (ii) eighteen months after the
first Project Segment is placed in service, but in no event more than three years after the

Original Expenditures are paid.

(c) No other Reimbursement Allocation will be made except for Preliminary
Expenditures.

(d)  The Reimbursement Allocation has not been undertaken to avoid, in
whole or in part, arbitrage yield restrictions or arbitrage rebate requirements and will not
employ an abusive arbitrage device under Regulation 1.148-10.

(e) Within one year of the Closing Date, the Reimbursement Allocation will
not be used in a manner that results in the creation of replacement proceeds, as defined in

Regulation 1.148-1.

@ For purposes of Section 2.8, the following terms shall have the meanings
set forth below: '
(D "Official Intent" means a declaration of intent described under
Regulation 1.150-2 to reimburse Original Expenditures with the proceeds of the
Bonds.






(2)  "Original Expenditure" means an expenditure for a governmental
purpose that is originally paid from a source other than the Reimbursement

" Bonds.

3) "Preliminary Expenditures", as defined in Regulation 1.150-
2(f)(2), means architectural, engineering, surveying, soil tests, Reimbursement
Bond issuance costs, and similar costs incurred prior to commencement of
construction, rehabilitation or acquisition of a Project Segment which do not
exceed 20% of the Issue Price of the portion of the Bonds that finances the Project

Segment for which they were incurred.

4) "Project Segment" means the costs, described in an Official Intent
of the Issuer, incurred prior to the Closing Date to acquire, construct, or improve
land, buildings or equipment excluding current operating expenses but including
costs of issuing the Reimbursement Bonds.

(5) "Reimbursement Allocation" means written evidence of the use of
Reimbursement Bond proceeds to reimburse a fund of the Issuer for Original
Expenditures paid or advanced prior to the Closing Date and incurred in
connection with a Project Segment.

(6) "Reimbursement Bonds" means the portion of the Bonds which are
allocated to reimburse the Original Expenditures paid prior to the Closing Date
and incurred in connection with a Project Segment.

~ ARTICLE III
REBATE

" Section3.1  Records

Sale Proceeds of the Bonds will be held and accounted for in the manner provided in the
Resolution. The Issuer will maintain adequate records for funds created by the Resolution and
this Certificate including all deposits, withdrawals, transfers from, transfers to, investments,
reinvestments, sales, purchases, redemptions, liquidations and use of money or obligations until

six years after the Final Bond Retirement Date.

Section 3.2  Rebate FFund

(a) In the Resolution, the Issuer has covenanted to pay to the United States the
Rebate Amount, an amount equal to the Excess Earnings on the Gross Proceeds Funds, if
any, at the times and in the manner required or permitted and subject to stated special

" rules and allowable exceptions. .

(b)  The Issuer may establish a fund pursuant to the Resolution and this
Certificate which is herein referred to as the Rebate Fund. The Issuer will invest and
expend amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund in accordance with this Certificate.

10






() Moneys in the Rebate Fund shall be held by the Issuer or its designee and,
subject to Sections 3.4, 3.5 and 6.1 hereof, shall be held for future payment to the United
States as contemplated under the provisions of this Certificate and shall not constitute
part of the trust estate held for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds or the Issuer.

(d)  The Issuer will pay to the United States from legally available money of
the Issuer (whether or not such available money is on deposit in any fund or account
related to the Bonds) any amount which is required to be paid to the United States.

Section 3.3  Exceptions to Rebate

The Issuer reasonably expects that the Bonds are eligible for one or more exceptions from
the arbitrage rebate rules set forth in the Regulations. If any Proceeds are ineligible, or become
ineligible, for an exception to the arbitrage rebate rules, the Issuer will comply with the
provisions of this Article III. A description of the applicable rebate exception(s) is as follows:

. $5,000,000 Small Issuer Exception -

The reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt bonds (other than private activity
bonds) which will be issued by the Issuer and all subordinate entities of the Issuer during the

calendar year will not exceed $5,000,000.
. Election to Treat as Construction Bonds.

The Issuer reasonably expects that more than 75 percent of the "available construction
proceeds" ("ACP") of the Bonds, as defined in Section 148(£)(4)(C)(vi) of the Code, will be used
for construction expenditures. ACP includes the issue price of the issue plus the earnings on -
such issue [minus the amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund]. Not less than the following

percentages of the ACP will be spent within the following periods:
D 10 percent spent within six months of the Closing Date;
2) 45 percent spent within one year of the Closing Date;
3) 75 percent spent within eighteen monthé of the Closing Date;

4) 100 percent spent within two years of the Closing Date (subject to 5
percent retainage for not more than one year).

In any event, the Issuer expects that the 5% reasonable retainage will be spent within a three-year
period beginning on the Closing Date. A failure to spend an amount that does not exceed the
lesser of (i) 3% of the issue price or (ii) $250,000, is disregarded if the Issuer exercises due

diligence to complete the Project.
. Election with respect to future earnings

Pursuant to Section 1.148-7(f)(2) of the Regulations, the Issuer elects to use actual
investment earnings of the ACP in determining compliance with the above schedule.

11






If the Issuer fails to meet the foregoing expenditure schedule, the Issuer shall comply
with the arbitrage rebate requirements of the Code.

Section 3.4  Calculation of Rebate Amount

(a)  As soon after each Computation Date as practicable, the Issuer shall, if
necessary, calculate and determine the Excess Earnings on the Gross Proceeds Funds (the
"Rebate Amount"). All calculations and determinations with respect to the Rebate
Amount will be made on the basis of actual facts as of the Computation Date and

reasonable expectations as to future events.

(b).  If the Rebate Amount exceeds the amount currently on deposit in the
Rebate Fund, the Issuer may deposit an amount in the Rebate Fund such that the balance
in the Rebate Fund after such deposit equals the Rebate Amount. If the amount in the
Rebate Fund exceeds the Rebate Amount, the Issuer may withdraw such excess amount
provided that such withdrawal can be made from amounts originally transferred to the
Rebate Fund and not from earnings thereon, which may not be transferred, and only if
such withdrawal may be made without liquidating investments at a loss.

Section 3.5 Rebate Requirements and the Bond Fund

It is expected that the Bond Fund described in the Resolution and Section 2.6(c) of this
Certificate will be treated as a bona fide debt service fund as defined in Regulation 1.148-1(b).
As such, any amount earned during a Bond Year on the Bond Fund and amounts earned on such
amounts, if allocated to the Bond Fund, will not be taken into account in calculating the Rebate
Amount if the annual gross eatnings on the Bond Fund for such Bond Year are less than
$100,000 or if average annual debt service will not exceed $2,500,000. However, should annual
gross earnings exceed $100,000 or should the Bond-Fund cease to be treated as a bona fide debt
service fund, the Bond Fund will become subject to the rebate requirements set forth in Section

3.4 hereof.

Section 3.6  Investment of the Rebate Fund

(a)  Immediately upon a transfer to the Rebate Fund, the Issuer may invest all
amounts in the Rebate Fund not already invested and held in the Rebate Fund, to the
extent possible, in (1) SLGS, such investments to be made at a yield of not more than
one-eighth of one percent above the Bond Yield, (2) Tax Exempt Obligations, (3) direct
obligations of the United States or (4) certificates of deposit of any bank or savings and
loan association. All investments in the Rebate Fund shall be made to mature not later

than the next Rebate Payment Date.

~ (b)  Ifthe Issuer invests in SLGS, the Issuer shall file timely subscription
forms for such securities (if required). To the extent possible, amounts received from
maturing SLGS shall be reinvested immediately in zero yield SLGS maturing on or

before the next Rebate Payment Date.

12






Section 3.7  Payment to the United States

(a) On each Rebate Payment Date, the Issuer will pay to the United States at -
least ninety percent (90%) of the Rebate Amount less a computation credit of $1,000 per

Bond Year for which the payment is made.

(b)  The Issuer will pay to the United States not later than sixty (60) days after
the Final Bond Retirement Date all the rebatable arbitrage as of such date and any income
attributable to such rebatable arbitrage as described in Regulation 1.148-3(£)(2).

() If necessary, on each Rebate Payment Date, the Issuer will mail a check to
the Internal Revenue Service Center, Ogden, UT 84201. Each payment shall be
accompanied by a copy of Form 8038-T, Arbitrage Rebate, filed with respect to the
Bonds or other information reporting form as is required to comply with the Code and

applicable Regulations.

Section 3.8 . Records

(a) The Issuer will keep and retain adequate records with respect to the
Bonds, the Gross Proceeds Funds, the Bond Fund, and the Rebate Fund until six years
after the Final Bond Retirement Date. Such records shall include descriptions of all
calculations of amounts transferred to the Rebate Fund, if any, and descriptions of all
calculations of amounts paid to the United States as required by this Certificate. Such
records will also show all amounts earned on moneys invested in such funds, and the
actual dates and amounts of all principal, interest and redemption premiums (if any) paid

on the Bonds.

(b)  Records relating to the investments in such Funds shall completely
describe all transfers, deposits, disbursements and earnings including:

(1)  acomplete list of all investments and reinvestments of amounts in
each such Fund including, if applicable, purchase price, purchase date, type of
security, accrued interest paid, interest rate, dated date, principal amount, date of
maturity, interest payment dates, date of liquidation, receipt upon liquidation,
market value of such investment on the Final Bond Retirement Date if held by the
Issuer on the Final Bond Retirement Date, and market value of the investment on
the date pledged to the payment of the Bonds or the Closing Date if different from

the purchase date.

(2)  the amount and source of each payment to, and the amount,
purpose and payee of each payment from, each such Fund.

Section 3.9  Additional Payments

The Issuer hereby agrees to pay to the United States from legally available money of the
Issuer (whether or not such available money is on deposit in any fund or account related to the
Bonds) any amount which is required to be paid to the United States, but which is not available
in a fund related to the Bonds for transfer to the Rebate Fund or payment to the United States.

13






ARTICLE IV
INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

Section 4.1  Avoidance of Prohibited Payments.

The Issuer will not enter into any transaction that reduces the amount required to be
deposited into the Rebate Fund or paid to the United States because such transaction results in a
smaller profit or a larger loss than would have resulted if the transaction had been at arm's length
and had the Bond Yield not been relevant to either party. The Issuer will not invest or direct the
investment of any funds in a manner which reduces an amount required to be paid to the United
States because such transaction results in a small profit or larger loss than would have resulted if
the transaction had been at arm's length and had the Bond Yield not been relevant to the Issuer.
In particular, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in the Resolution, the
Issuer will not invest or direct the investment of any funds in a manner which would violate any

provision of this Article IV.

Section 4.2  Market Price Requirement

(a) The Issuer will not purchase or direct the purchase of Taxable Obligations
for more than the then available market price for such Taxable Obligations. The Issuer
will not sell, liquidate or direct the sale or liquidation of Taxable Obligations for less than

the then available market price.

(b)  For purposes of this Certificate, United States Treasury obligations
purchased directly from the United States Treasury will be deemed to be purchased at the

market price.

Section 4.3  Investment in Certificates of Deposit

(a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in the
Resolution, the Issuer will invest or direct the investment of funds on deposit in the
Reserve Fund, any other Gross Proceeds Fund, the Bond Fund, and the Rebate Fund, in a
certificate of deposit of a bank or savings bank which is permitted by law and by the
Resolution only if the purchase price of such a certificate of deposit is treated as its fair
market value on the purchase date and if the yield on the certificate of deposit is not less
than (1) the yield on reasonably comparable direct obligations of the United States; and
(2) the highest yield that is published or posted by the provider to be currently available
from the provider on reasonably comparable certificates of deposit offered to the public.

(b) The certificate of deposit described in paragraph 4.3(a) above must be
executed by a dealer who maintains an active secondary market in comparable
certificates of deposit and must be based on actual trades adjusted to reflect the size and
term of that certificate of deposit and the stability and reputation of the bank or savings

bank issuing the certificate of deposit.

14






Section 4.4  Investment Pursuant to Investment Contracts and Agreements

The Issuer will invest or direct the investment of funds on deposit in the Gross Proceeds
Funds, the Bond Fund, and the Rebate Fund pursuant to an investment contract (including a
repurchase agreement) only if all of the following requirements are satisfied:

(a) The Issuer makes a bona fide solicitation for the purchase of the
investment. A bona fide solicitation is a solicitation that satisfies all of the following

requirements:

(1)  Thebid spe(nﬁca’uons are in writing and are timely forwarded to
potential providers.

(2)  The bid specifications include all material terms of the bid. A term
is material if it may directly or indirectly affect the yield or the cost of the

investment.

5

(3) The bid specifications include a statement notifying potential
providers that submission of a bid is a representation that the potential provider
did not consult with any other potential provider about its bid, that the bid was
determined without regard to any other formal or informal agreement that the
potential provider has with the issuer or any other person (whether or not in
connection with the Bonds), and that the bid is not being submitted solely as a
courtesy to the issuer or any other person for purposes of satisfying the
requirements of paragraph (d)(6)({iD)(B)(1) or (2) of Section 1.148-5 of the

Regulations.

(4)  The terms of the bid specifications are commercially reasonable.
A term is commercially reasonable if there is a legitimate business purpose for the
term other than to increase the purchase price or reduce the yield of the

investment.

(5)  For purchases of guaranteed investment contracts only, the terms
of the solicitation take into account the Issuer's reasonably expected deposit and
drawdown schedule for the amounts to be invested.

(6) Al potential providers have an equal opportunity to bid and no
potential provider is given the opportumty to review other bids (i.e., a last look)

before providing a bid.

(7) At least three reasonably competitive providers are solicited for
bids. Areasonably competitive provider is a provider that has an established
industry reputation as a competitive provider of the type of investments being

purchased.

(b)  The bids received by the Issuer meet all of the following requirements:

15






(1) The Issuer receives at least three bids from providers that the
Issuer solicited under a bona fide solicitation meeting the requirements of
paragraph (d)(6)(iii)(A) of Section 1.148-5 of the Regulations and that do not
have a material financial interest in the issue. A lead underwriter in a negotiated
underwriting transaction is deemed to have a material financial interest in the
issue until 15 days after the issue date of the issue. In addition, any entity acting
as a financial advisor with respect to the purchase of the investment at the time
the bid specifications are forwarded to potential providers has a material financial
interest in the issue. A provider that is a related party to a provider that has a
material financial interest in the issue is deemed to have a material financial

interest in the issue.

(2) At least one of the three bids described in paragraph
(d)(6)({ii)(B)(1) of Section 1.148-5 of the Regulations is from a reasonably
competitive provider, within the meaning of paragraph (d)(6)(iii)(A)(7) of Section
1.148-5 of the Regulations. :

(3)  Ifthe Issuer uses an agent to conduct the bidding process, the agent
did not bid to provide the investment.

(c) The winning bid meets the following requirements:

(1) Guaranteed investment contracts. If the investment is a guaranteed
investment contract, the winning bid is the highest yielding bona fide bid
(determined net of any broker's fees).

(2) Other investments. If the investment is not a guaranteed
investment contract, the winning bid is the lowest cost bona fide bid (including

any broker's fees).

(d)  The provider of the investments or the obligor on the guaranteed
investment contract certifies the administrative costs that it pays (or expects to pay, if
any) to third parties in connection with supplying the investment.

()  The Issuer will retain the following records with the bond documents until
three years after the last outstanding bond is redeemed:

(1)  For purchases of guaranteed investment contracts, a copy of the
contract, and for purchases of investments other than guaranteed investment
contracts, the purchase agreement or confirmation.

(2)  The receipt or other record of the amount actually paid by the
Issuer for the investments, including a record of any administrative costs paid by
the Issuer, and the certification under paragraph (d)(6)(iii)(D) of Section 1.148-5
of the Regulations.

(3)  For each bid that is submitted, the name of the person and entity
submitting the bid, the time and date of the bid, and the bid results.

16






(4)  The bid solicitation form and, if the terms of the purchase
agreement or the guaranteed investment contract deviated from the bid solicitation
form or a submitted bid is modified, a brief statement explaining the deviation and

stating the purpose for the deviation.

(5)  For purchases of investments other than guaranteed investment
contracts, the cost of the most efficient portfolio of State and Local Government
Series Securities, determined at the time that the bids were required to be
submitted pursuant to the terms of the bid specifications.

Section 4.5  Records

The Issuer will maintain records of all purchases, sales, liquidations, investments,
reinvestments, redemptions, disbursements, deposits, and transfers of amounts on deposit.

Section 4.6  Investments to be Legal

All investments required to be made pursuant to this Certificate shall be made to the
extent permitted by law. In the event that any such investment is determined to be ultra vires, it
shall be liquidated and the proceeds thereof shall be invested in a legal investment, provided that
prior to reinvesting such proceeds, the Issuer shall obtain an opinion of Bond Counsel to the
effect that such reinvestment will not cause the Bonds to become arbitrage bonds under Sections

103, 148, 149, or any other applicable provision of the Code.
ARTICLE V
GENERAL COVENANTS

The Issuer hereby covenants to perform all acts within its power necessary to ensure that
the reasonable expectations set forth in Article II hereof will be realized, The Issuer reasonably

expects to comply with all covenants contained in this Certificate.

ARTICLE VI
AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS

Section 6.1  Opinion of Bond Counsel; Amendments

The various provisions of this Certificate need not be observed and this Certificate may
be amended or supplemented at any time by the Issuer if the Issuer receives an opinion or

opinions of Bond Counsel that the failure to comply with such provisions will not cause any of
the Bonds to become "arbitrage bonds" under the Code and that the terms of such amendment or

supplement will not cause any of the Bonds to become "arbitrage bonds" under the Code, or
otherwise cause interest on any of the Bonds to become includable in gross income for federal -

income tax purposes.

17






Section 6.2 Addi’;ional Covenants, Agreements

The Issuer hereby covenants to make, execute and enter into (and to take such actions, if
any, as may be necessary to enable it to do so) such agreements as may be necessary to comply
with any changes in law or regulations in order to preserve the tax-exempt status of the Bonds to
the extent that it may lawfully do so. The Issuer further covenants (1) to impose such limitations
on the investment or use of moneys or investments related to the Bonds, (2) to make such
payments to the United States Treasury, (3) to maintain such records, (4) to perform such
calculations, and (5) to perform such other lawful acts as may be necessary to preserve the tax-

exempt status of the Bonds.

Section 6.3  Internal Revenue Service Audits

The Internal Revenue Service has not audited the Issuer regarding any obligations issued
by or on behalf of the Issuer. To the best knowledge of the Issuer, no such obligations of the
Issuer are currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service.

Section 6.4  Amendments

Except as otherwise provided in Section 6.1 hereof, all the rights, powers, duties and
obligations of the Issuer shall be irrévocable and binding upon the Issuer and shall not be subject

to amendment or modification by the Issuer.

ARTICLE VII

~ "QUALIFIED TAX EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The Issuer, a "qualified small issuer," designates the Bonds as "qualified tax exempt
obligations" as defined in Code Section 265(b)(3) and represents that the reasonably anticipated
amount of tax-exempt governmental and qualified 501(c)(3) obligations (including for this
purpose tax exempt installment sales, lease or lease purchase agreements or other tax exempt
obligations) which will be issued during the current calendar year will not exceed ten million

dollars ($10,000,000).
In support of the foregoing, the Issuer states:

(2) In the current calendar year the Issuer has issued governmental or
qualified 501(c)(3) obligations as follows:

$2,290,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2016B (this issue)
.$910,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2016A

(b) The Issuer expects to issue during the remainder of the calendar year
governmental or qualified 501(c)(3) obligations as follows:

NONE

18






() The Issuer has subordinate entities or is subordinate to another entity
governed by separate governing bodies which have issued or expect to issue
governmental or qualified 501(c)(3) obligations on behalf of the Issuer during the
calendar year which must be aggregated under Code Section 265(b)(3)(E) as follows:

NONE

(d)  The Issuer is a member of or affiliated with one or more organizations
(such as an Iowa Code Chapter 28E or 28F organization or other multimember body
under which more than one governmental entity receives benefits) governed by a separate
governing body which has or expects to issue governmental or qualified 501(c)(3)
obligations during the calendar year all or a portion of which are allocable to the Issuer

under Code Section 265(b)(3)(C)(ii) as follows:
NONE

19






IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Certificate to be executed by its
duly authorized officer, all as of the day first above written.

Finance Director, City of Carroll, lowa
(SEAL)

20






EXHIBIT "A"
PURCHASER'S CERTIFICATE

The undersigned officer of Bankers' Bank of Madison, Wisconsin (the "Purchaser"),
hereby certifies as follows:

1. The Purchaser and the City of Carroll, Iowa (the "Issuer"), have entered into a
contract (the "Contract") dated October 24, 2016 (the "Sale Date"), concerning purchase by the
Purchaser from Issuer of $2,290,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2016B,

dated November 30, 2016 (the "Bonds").

2. The Contract is in full force and effect and has not been repealed, rescinded or
amended; and the undersigned is a duly authorized representative of the Purchaser, with the

power to make the representations herein.

3. All of the Bonds have been the subject of a bona fide initial offering to the public
(excluding bond houses, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of
underwriters, placement agents, or wholesalers) (the "Public") at the price for each maturity of
the Bonds as shown on the Official Statement related to the issuance of the Bonds, and any
addenda thereto, resulting in an initial offering price to the Public of $2,290,000 (the "Price"),

plus accrued interest, if any.

For purposes of this certificate, we have assumed the phrase "excluding bond houses, brokers or
similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents, or
wholesalers" refers only to persons who, to our actual knowledge, have an arrangement with the
Issuer, or the Purchaser, to act in such capacity on behalf of the Issuer, or the Purchaser.

4. In offering the Bonds to the Public, the Purchaser did not reserve or hold back any
Bonds for itself, its affiliates or its affiliated accounts or for any other person not part of the
Public. For purposes of this Certificate, "affiliate” means any company that controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with the Purchaser, and "affiliated account" means
any account of the Purchaser or its affiliates that is controlled by the Purchaser or an affiliate or
in which the Purchaser or an affiliate has a beneficial ownership.

5. On the Sale Date based upon the Purchaser's assessment of then prevailing market
conditions, the re-offering yield for each maturity of the Bonds resulting in the Price reflected
herein did not exceed the fair market value of the Bonds for the maturities as of the Sale Date,
resulting in prices greater than, or at yields less than, the prices and yields shown in the Official

Statement attached hereto.

6. At least ten percent (10%) of each maturity of Bonds were sold, or reasonably
expected as of the Sale Date to be sold, to the Public at the prices reflected on the Final Official

Statement.






7. The Purchaser has not and will not receive any compensation with respect to or
related to the issuance of the Bonds in excess of the underwriter's discount in amount of $8,015
(calculated based upon the Price reflected herein as of the Sale Date), payable from proceeds of

the Bonds.

8. The Purchaser certifies that the arbitrage yield on the Bonds is 1.3495%, and that
the weighted average maturity of the Bonds based on the Price reflected herein is 4.0006 years.

9. We have no reason to believe the representations and certifications in Sections 3,
4,5, 6, 7 and 8 hereof are incorrect. The Issuer may rely on the foregoing representations in
making its certification as to the issue price of the Bonds, and bond counsel may rely on the
foregoing representations in rendering their opinion on the exclusion from federal gross income
of the interest on the Bonds; provided, however, that nothing herein represents Purchaser's
interpretation of any laws and, in particular, any regulations under the Internal Revenue Code of

1986, as amended.

IN WITNESS HERETO, I affix my signature this day of ' ,
2016. '

BANKERS' BANK
(PURCHASER)

By:
Title:

(Attach copy of coversheet of Final Official Statement)

01295010-1\10275-058






CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed
and delivered by the City of Carroll, Iowa (the "Issuer"), in connection with the issuance
of $2,290,000 General Obligation Capital I.oan Notes, Series 2016B (the "Notes") dated
the date of delivery (November 30, 2016). The Notes are being issued pursuant to a
Resolution of the Issuer approved on November 14, 2016 (the "Resolution"). The Issuer

covenants and agrees as follows:

Section 1. Purpbse of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is
being executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial
Owners of the Notes and in order to assist the Participating Underwriters in complying

with S.E.C. Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5).
Section 2. Deﬁnitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution,

which apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise
defined in this Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following

meanings: -

"Annual Financial Information" shall mean financial information or operating data
of the type included in the final Official Statement, provided at least annually by the
Issuer pursuant to, and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or
indirectly, to vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Notes

(including persons holding Notes through nominees, depositories or other
intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Notes for federal income tax

purposes.

"Business Day" shall mean a day other than a Saturday or a Sunday or a day on
which banks in Towa are authorized or required by law to close.

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the Issuer or any Dissemination Agent
designated in writing by the Issuer and which has filed with the Issuer a written

acceptance of such designation.

"Holders" shall mean the registered holders of the Notes, as recorded in the
registration books of the Registrar.

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this
Disclosure Certificate.






"Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board" or "MSRB" shall mean the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board, 1300 I Street NW, Suite 1000, Washington, DC 20005.

"National Repository" shall mean the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market
Access website, a/k/a "EMMA" (emma.msrb.org).

"Official Statement" shall mean the Issuer's Official Statement for the Notes, dated
October 31, 2016. ‘

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean any of the original underwriters of the
Notes required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Notes.

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended

from time to time.
"State" shall mean the State of Iowa.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Financial Information.

a) The Issuer shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than

two hundred seventy (270) days after the end of the Issuer's fiscal year (presently

_ June 30th), commencing with information for the 2016/2017 fiscal year, provide
to the National Repository an Annual Financial Information filing consistent with
the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. The Annual Financial
Information filing must be submitted in such format as is required by the MSRB
(currently in "searchable PDF" format). The Annual Financial Information filing
may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a
package. The Annual Financial Information filing may cross-reference other
information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that
the audited financial statements of the Issuer may be submitted separately from the
balance of the Annual Financial Information filing and later than the date required
above for the filing of the Annual Financial Information if they are not available -
by that date. If the Issuer's fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such change
in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c). .

b) If the Issuer is unable to provide to the National Repository the Annual
Financial Information by the date required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall send a
notice to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board if any, in substantlally the

form attached as Exhibit A.

¢) The Dissemination Agent shall;

2






i. each year file Annual Financial Information with the National
Repository; and

ii. (if the Dissemination Agent is other than the Issuer), file a report |
with the Issuer certifying that the Annual Financial Information has been
filed pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate, stating the date it was filed.

Section 4. Content of Annual Financial Information. The Issuer's Annual
Financial Information filing shall contain or incorporate by reference the following:

(a)  The last available audited financial statements of the Issuer for the
prior fiscal year, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board as modified
in accordance with the governmental accounting standards promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board or as otherwise provided under State
law, as in effect from time to time, or, if and to the extent such financial
statements have not been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, noting the discrepancies therefrom and the effect thereof. If
the Issuer's audited financial statements for the preceding years are not available
by the time Annual Financial Information is required to be filed pursuant to
Section 3(a), the Annual Financial Information filing shall contain unaudited
financial statements of the type included in the final Official Statement, and the
audited financial statements shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual
Financial Information when they become available.

(b) A table, schedule or other information reflecting Property
Valuations, prepared as of the end of the preceding fiscal year, of the type
contained in the final Official Statement under the caption "Property Valuations".

(c) A table, schedule or other information reflecting Trend of

Valuations, prepared as of the end of the preceding fiscal year, of the type
contained in the final Official Statement under the caption "Trend of Valuations".

(d) A table, schedule or other information reflecting Larger Taxpayers,
prepared as of the end of the preceding fiscal year, of the type contained in the
~ final Official Statement under the caption "Larger Taxpayers".

(¢) A table, schedule or other information reflecting Direct Debt,
prepared as of the end of the preceding fiscal year, of the type contained in the
final Official Statement under the caption "Direct Debt".






(f)  Atable, schedule or other information reflecting Levies and Tax
Collections, prepared as of the end of the preceding fiscal year, of the type
contained in the final Official Statement under the caption "Levies and Tax

Collections".

(g)  Atable, schedule or other information reflecting Tax Rates, prepared
as of the end of the preceding fiscal year, of the type contained in the final Official

Statement under the caption "Tax Rates". -

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public
entities, which have been filed with the National Repository. The Issuer shall clearly
identify each such other document so included by reference.

Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events.

a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the Issuer shall give, or cause
to be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to
the Notes in a timely manner not later than 10 Business Days after the day of the

occurrence of the event:
i. Principal and interest payment delinquencies;
ii. Non-payment related defaults, if material;

iii. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

iv. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements relating to the Notes
reflecting financial difficulties;

v. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to
perform;

vi. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue
Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of
Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or
determinations with respect to the tax-exempt status of the Series Notes, or
material events affecting the tax-exempt status of the Notes;

vii. Modifications to rights of Holders of the Notes, if material;






viii. Note calls (excluding sinking fund mandatory redemptions), if
material, and tender offers;

ix. Defeasances of the Notes;

x. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of
the Notes, if material;

\

xi. Rating changes on the Notes;

xii. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the
Issuer;

xiii, The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition
involving the Issuer or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Issuer, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a
definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a
definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its

terms, if material; and

xiv. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change
of name of a trustee, if material.

b) Whenever the Issuer obtains the knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed
Event, the Issuer shall determine if the occurrence is subject to notice only if
material, and if so shall as soon as possible determine if such event would be

material under applicable federal securities laws.

¢) If the Issuer determines that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed
Event is not subject to materiality, or determines such occurrence is subject to
materiality and would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the
Issuer shall promptly, but not later than 10 Business Days after the occurrence of
the event, file a notice of such occurrence with the Municipal Securities
Rulemaking Board through the filing with the National Repository.

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under
thls Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prlor redemption or
payment in full of all of the Notes or upon the Issuer's receipt of an opinion of nationally
recognized bond counsel to the effect that, because of legislative action or final judicial
action or administrative actions or proceedings, the failure of the Issuer to comply with
the terms hereof will not cause Participating Underwriters to be in violation of the Rule
or other applicable requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.






Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or
engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this
Disclosure Certificate, and may discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a
successor Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any
manner for the content of any notice or report prepared by the Issuer pursuant to this
Disclosure Certificate. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be the Issuer.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any
provision of this Disclosure Certificate may be waived, provided that the following

conditions are satisfied:

é) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Section 3(a), 4,
or 5(a), it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that
arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the
identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect to the Notes, or the

type of business conducted,

b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would,
in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the
requirements of the Rule at the time of the original issuance of the Notes, after
taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any

change in circumstances; and

¢) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Holders of the
Notes in the same manner as provided in the Resolution for amendments to the
Resolution with the consent of Holders, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the Holders

or Beneficial Owners of the Notes.

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the
Issuer shall describe such amendment in the next Annual Financial Information filing,
and shall include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment
or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a change of accounting principles,
on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by the
Issuer. In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed
in preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same
“manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c), and (ii) the Annual Financial
Information filing for the year in which the change is made will present a comparison or
other discussion in narrative form (and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) describing
or illustrating the material differences between the financial statements as prepared on the






basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former
accounting principles.

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be
deemed to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means
of dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of
communication, or including any other information in any Annual Financial Information
filing or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by
this Disclosure Certificate. If the Issuer chooses to include-any information in any
Annual Financial Information filing or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition
to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall have
no obligation under this Certificate to update such information or include it in any future
Annual Financial Information filing or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any
provision of this Disclosure Certificate, any Holder or Beneficial Owner of the Notes
may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or
specific performance by court order, to cause the Issuer to comply with its obligations
under this Disclosure Certificate. Direct, indirect, consequential and punitive damages
shall not be recoverable by any person for any default hereunder and are hereby waived
to the extent permitted by law. A default under this Disclosure Certificate shall not be
deemed an event of default under the Resolution, and the sole remedy under this '
Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with this
Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

Section 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The
Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this
Disclosure Certificate, and the Issuer agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination
Agent, its officers, directors, employees and-agents, harmless against any loss, expense
and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its
powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees)
of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the
Dissemination Agent's negligence or willful misconduct. The obligations of the Issuer
under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and

payment of the Notes.

Section 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure éolely to the

benefit of the Issuer, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and
Holders and Beneficial Owners from time to time of the Notes, and shall create no rights

in any other person or entity.






Date: day of , 2016.

CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA

Mayor
ATTEST:

By:

City Clerk






EXHIBIT A

NOTICE TO NATIONAL REPOSITORY OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Name of Issuer: City of Carroll, Iowa.

Name of Note Issue: $2,290,000 General Obligation Capital L.oan Notes, Series 2016B

Dated Date of Issue: The date of delivery (November 30, 2016)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Issuer has not provided Annual Financial
Information with respect to the above-named Notes as required by Section 3 of the
Continuing Disclosure Certificate delivered by the Issuer in connection with the Notes.
The Issuer anticipates that the Annual Financial Information will be filed by

Dated: day of , 20

- CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA

By:

Its:

01284430-1\10275-058







City of Carroll
¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

GOVERNMENTAL BODY: Carroll City Council
DATE OF MEETING: November 14, 2016
TIME OF MEETING: 5:15P.M.

LOCATION OF MEETING: City Hall Council Chambers
www.cityofcarroll.com

AGENDA

I. Pledge of Allegiance
II. Roll Call

III. Consent Agenda

A. Approval of Minutes of the October 24 and November 7, 2016 Meetings
B. Approval of Bills and Claims

C. Licenses and Permits:

None

D. Resignation from the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Advisory Board
E. Appointments to Committees, Commissions and Boards
Appointment by Council
1.

LaVern Dirkx - Parks, Recreation and Cultural Advisory Board (unexpired term to expire
May 31, 2019)

IV. Oral Requests and Communications from the Audience
V. Ordinances

None

VI. Resolutions

A. FY 2016/2017 Budget Amendment #1
1. Public Hearing

2. City Budget Amendment and Certification Resolution

B. $2,290,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2016B

1. Resolution Appointing Paying Agent, Note Registrar, and Transfer Agent, Approving the

Paying Agent and Note Registrar and Transfer Agent Agreement and Authorizing the
Execution of the Agreement





2. Resolution approving and authorizing a form of Loan Agreement and authorizing and
proving for the issuance, and levying a tax to pay the Notes; Approval of the Tax
Exemption Certificate and Continuing Disclosure Certificate
C. Resolution setting dates of a consultation and a public hearing on a proposed Fifth Amended and
Restated Urban Renewal Area in the City of Carroll, Jowa
VII. Reports
A. F.Y. 2016 State Annual Financial Report
B. Carroll Municipal Golf Course House
C. Report of Bid Opening — Clubhouse Retaining Wall — Golf Course Clubhouse
D. 2016 Annual Planning Session Report
VIII. Committee Reports
IX. Comments from the Mayor
X. Comments from the City Council
XI. Adjourn

November/December Meetings:
Airport Commission — November 14, 2016
Parks, Recreation and Cultural Advisory Board — November 21, 2016
Library Board of Trustees — November 21, 2016
City Council — November 28, 2016
Board of Adjustment - December 5, 2016
City Council — December 12, 2016
Airport Commission — December 12, 2016
Planning and Zoning Commission — December 14, 2016
Library Board of Trustees — December 19, 2016
City Council — Tuesday, December 27, 2016

www.cityofcarroll.com

disabilities, please notify us at least three business days in advance when possible at

. E ' : The City of Carroll will make every attempt to accommodate the needs of persons with
L/ 712-792-1000, should special accommodations be required.







City of Carroll
5

112 E. 5th Street Carvoll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FROM: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager M-;M)
DATE: November 10, 2016

SUBJECT: 2016 Annual Planning Session Report

Attached please find the 2016 Annual Planning Session Report. Staff has made minor clerical
corrections to the preliminary report and presents this report for Council approval. If there are
corrections you would like to see please advise staff prior to the Council meeting.

Page 7 presents the ON-GOING COMMITMENTS/OBLIGATIONS and NEW PRIORITY
PROJECTS, PROGRAMS, POLICIES AND INITIATIVES. Page 8 presents the
ORGANIZATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS. Please especially take note of these two pages. [ will
review these sections at the meeting and lead a discussion on them.

After the meeting on November 14" 1 will prepare a separate document for a future meeting in
the next 30 days that will outline a work plan on these items over the next 12 months for Council
approval. This work plan will include, for each item; a timeline, the responsible party, and if
needed a targeted date for a future work session on the item.

This document will serve as a guideline for staff to implement the priorities and action steps the
Council has identified and adopted for the next year.

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to receive the 2016 Annual Planning Session Report dated
November 7, 2016.






City of Carroll, Iowa
Planning Session Report
2016

Mayor:
Dr. Eric Jensen

City Council:
Mike Kots
Misty Boes
Clay Haley
Carolyn Siemann

Jerry Fleshner

Brandon Vonnahme

City Staff:
Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager

Laura Schafer, City Clerk/Finance Director
Randy Krauel, Public Works Director
Greg Schreck, Building Official/Fire Chief
Jack Wardell, Parks & Rec Director
Brandie Ledford, Library Director
Brad Burke, Police Chief

L

¥

Facilitated by:
Jeff Schott
Institute of Public Affairs
University of Iowa






CI1TY OF CARROLL, IOWA
PLANNING SESSION
2016

]
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction .....c.oiiiiiii e, PAZE 3

Planning Work SeSSIon ...... ..ovcvviiiiiniiiiiiiiiic Page 3
Major City Accomplishments ..........ccovviiiiiiniiiiiiiiieee e Page 4
Issues, Concerns, Trends, and Opportunities..........ovoeveiiiiiiinieniininennnn. Page 5
On-Going COMMITMENTS. ... euvuintieeitit it e ere e eeees Page 7
New Priority Projects, Programs, Policies, and Initiatives.................covvienns Page 7
Organizational Effectiveness.........ovevieiiiiiiniiiiiciiii e Page 8
Final COMMENTS ...oovvervieieieiineiieninnnn e sieisnssrssiesstesssensssssossssesssesssessasseses Page 9
Exhibit A — Significant New Initiatives or Programs Considered................ Page 10






CI1TY OF CARROLL, IOWA
PLANNING SESSION
2016

Introduction

The City of Carroll requested the Institute of Public Affairs (IPA) to assist the city with
goal setting. IPA agreed to organize and facilitate a process that involved the following
steps:
1. Prepare a questionnaire to identify recent accomplishments,
issues/trends/concerns, potential new initiatives/programs/policies and
suggestions to improve organizational effectiveness.

2. Conduct a planning session with the elected officials and department heads.

3. Preparation of this final report.

Planning Work Session

The Mayor and the City Council held a work session conducted by the IPA on November
7,2016. In attendance and participating at this meeting were Mayor Dr. Eric Jensen and
Council Members Mike Kots, Misty Boes, Clay Haley, Carolyn Siemann, Jerry Fleshner,
and Brandon Vonnahme. Also in attendance and participating in this session were City
Manager Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Clerk/Finance Director Laura Schaefer, City
Engineer/Public Works Director Randy Krauel, Building Official/Safety/Fire Chief Greg
Schreck, Police Chief Brad Burke, Parks and Recreation Director Jack Wardell, and
Library Director Brandie Ledford.






Major City Accomplishments

The following were identified as major accomplishments during the past two years:

Infrastructure

Corridor of Commerce continued. Downtown Streetscape Phase 7
High Ridge Road HMA Resurfacing

10th street project

Sidewalk policy

ADA plan to bring all intersections up to code

Pedestrian Access Route Transition Plan

US 30 Traffic Signal Study

Third Street Storm Sewer Improvements (construction in progress)
Industrial Park Road Sanitary Sewer Extension (construction in progress)
Street Resurfacing - 2014

Street Resurfacing - 2015

Water Supply Wells and Transmission Main Improvements

Water Treatment Plant Filter Rehabilitation

Street Maintenance Facility - Space Needs and Preliminary Design

City Operations and Facilities

Progress on the Library Project

Hiring of new City Manager

Hiring of a new Waste Water Superintendent

New Senior Staff and Management positions filled. New Personnel: 7 of 22
in Public Works (5 due to retirements, 2 new positions)
Implemented police body cameras

Tasers implemented

New equipment building at airport

Airport runway crack sealing

The council has held many work sessions which has helped develop
teamwork and focus to complete goals

Adoption of a new vicious animal ordinance

Parks and Recreation

New weight room/equipment at Rec Center
Progress on cemetery building (under construction)
Progress on future Rec Center pool improvements
Graham Park basketball court

Merchants Park Baseball Stadium renovation
Advancement on trails

Housing

CADC completed housing needs assessment report with the City and County






Issues, Concerns, Trends, and Opportunities

The following were identified as issues, concerns, trends, and opportunities that may
affect future city services, policies, finances or operations:

Infrastructure

Need to have a plan for sidewalks in strategic locations; enforce the City’s
sidewalk ordinance

Rough railroad crossings

Wastewater Treatment - Complying with disinfection and nutrient reduction
requirements

Water Distribution - Maintaining system pressures and chlorine residuals
Street Conditions - Need to move beyond patching and overlay to complete
removal and replacement

Grant Road/Highway 30 projects

Crosswalk signals - traffic signals. Our Traffic light study revealed the
downtown business district values the stoplight locate at N. Adams Street.
After the businesses ran a petition to reactivate the lights, I experienced a
large group of constituents asking for the lights to remain off. I believe the
current direction Mayor Jensen recommended is good. That is to study
leaving the lights, but having them act as a pedestrian crosswalk light

City Operations and Facilities
®

Library Project

Ensure flexibility with the use of LOST funds, as stated in the City’s strategic
plan, versus dedicating large amounts over several years to a single project
People want amenities found in larger cities—we are competing with larger
cities for these workers.

Train horn noise mitigation continues to be on the minds of Carroll citizens
New UTV regulations

City Maintenance Garage

Private/public relations are not as solid as spoken about

Senate File 295 impact, any changes to TIF laws

Economic Development

Purchase of 40 acres for trails could open opportunity for economic

development area or housing development ~ additional land to spread solid

waste?

Need to attract educated/skilled workers to Carroll to fill current positions

and to allow for the expansion of businesses

o Need to grow our workforce/young professionals

o General laborers at minimum wage level to top ranking executives who
command top dollar






Issues, Concerns, Trends, and Opportunities (continued)

Housing
e Housing market - home prices have drastically increased while wages have

not. Possible prediction of housing collapse. Housing development

e Housing concerns —keep looking at viable options to move housing along and
follow the housing study

e The County wide housing study would seem to be a good platform from
which we could begin

Parks and Recreation
o Updates to Aquatic Center - add new slides
e Updates to Recreation Center
e Graham Park District - working with school districts to get the area around
the stadium, Graham Park and the Rec Center additions to get that area
looking the way it should
e The Dog Park continues being brought to my attention. Many are wondering
about locating it near the new Carroll Animal Shelter
e Trails:
o Define; refine plan; look at feasibility along with purpose
o Have had a Master Trails plan for 10 years - need to start implementing
o Expansion. We have begun, but, we need to stay focused and continue
developing our Carroll trail system

Other
e Growth - population lack of growth
o Feeling that population at 10,000 is good enough - no striving for
growth of all kinds not just property tax money
e Median household income rising - doesn’t point to no problems
o As families become wealthier they tend to buy less locally






On-Going Commitments/Obligations

The following were identified as on-going commitments/obligations for the upcoming 24
month period:

e Develop Library/City Hall concept/implementation/financing plan
e Council adoption of Financial Policies
o Waste Water Treatment Plant improvements - comply with disinfection and
nutrient reduction requirements
s Continue street improvements
¢ Continue Corridor of Commerce streetscapes on planned basis
o Phases VIIl and IX
o Develop plan/strategy for Rec Center for long-term viability
o Programming, membership, financing, operational and physical
improvements
e Grant Rd/Hwy 30 improvements
e Street maintenance building - develop financing plan
e Learn more about and provide information about the Community
Endowment Fund
¢ Review Graham Park Athletic district/ISU plan when developed
o Investigate Graham Park parking concept.
e Trails expansion
o (ity signs at entryways to city.
¢ Develop sidewalk repair program.

New Priority Projects, Programs, Policies and Initiatives

The participants reviewed potential projects, programs, policies and initiatives for
consideration and selected the following as new priorities for the upcoming 24 month
period (listed in priority order):

1 (Tie) Start Rec Center improvement projects
1 (Tie) Implement Housing Study

3 Rental Housing Inspection

A complete list of all programs and initiatives considered by the Mayor and City Council
members is attached as Exhibit A.






Organizational Effectiveness

The Mayor and City Council reviewed a variety of ideas relating to improving
organizational effectiveness to accomplish the selected goals and priorities. After review
and discussion, the Mayor and City Council selected the following steps to improve
organizational effectiveness:

¢ Continue to provide City Council timely reports and communications from
department heads and boards/commissions regarding any significant
discussions/issues/decisions with which they are dealing,
Boards/commissions should provide periodic updates/presentations at
Council meetings on such significant discussions/issues/decisions.

e Continue to minimize handouts at meetings; if materials/information is not
available by Thursday, the item should not be placed on the council agenda
(unless it is an emergency, extremely time-sensitive matter).

¢ Review all city policies.

» Continue to hold work sessions for significant projects; have a specific
goal/goals for each work session to ensure we are moving forward.

o Provide information prior to the work session prior to make efficient use
of Council’s time, prepare questions, etc.

o Use a systemic approach towards reviewing the city’s goals - identify
dates, times, and person responsible for coordinating

¢ Identify methods to enhance communications with the public

¢ Continue bi-weekly meetings between elected officials and the City Manager

o Develop policies and procedures regarding establishing committees and
designating committee members

e Review committee structure - eliminate unneeded committees

e Review state public construction laws (bidding, design, RFP’s, etc.)






Final Comments

It was a pleasure to once again assist the City of Carroll with this planning process. 1 was
extremely impressed with the level of cooperation and positive attitudes of the elected
officials and city staff.

It is important to note that the prioritization of projects and initiatives is not “cast in
stone.” They can be modified as new circumstances may occur.

It is recommended that city staff prepare an “action plan” for accomplishing the planning
goals. The action plan would define the steps that would be needed to accomplish each
goal, identify who is responsible for implementation, and establish a timeline for
accomplishment. The action plan should then be presented to the Mayor and City
Council for review and approval. It is also recommended that staff review with the
Mayor and City Council the status of implementing the goals on a quarterly basis.

Jeff Schott

Institute of Public Affairs
University of lowa
November 8, 2016






Exhibit A

City of Carroll
Planning Session — 2016

SIGNIFICANT NEW INITIATIVES OR PROGRAMS CONSIDERED

Golf cart storage at the Golf Course

Start Rec Center improvement projects

Enhancements to the Aquatic Center

Bundling Rec Center, Aquatic Center and Golf Course fees

Program ice skating rink area, close up shelter, small concession, program ice
times

Graham Park improvements - Shelter House

Additional parking at the Youth Sports complex

Dog Park

Maybe Assistant City Manager and Marketing employee

Purchase and removal of some blighted areas along Highway 30
Go-green initiatives (i.e. recycling, trees, etc.)

Blue Zone Initiative - health minded living

Train horn reduction

Acquisition of land to resell at a fair price for new home construction.
Surrounding communities are doing this and drawing some citizens to leave
Carrol for more affordable construction

Implement housing study

Consider crime-free rental housing ordinance

Rental housing inspection

Evaluate pedestrian crosswalk — Adams & Court St @ Hwy 30
Investigate safety issues — Main St/Rolling Hills Park

10







City of Carroll
¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager miﬁ/lp’ V(")
DATE: November 10, 2016
SUBJECT: Appointments to Committees, Commissions and Boards
On October 10, 2016, Kyle Fesenmeyer resigned from the Parks, Recreation and Cultural
Advisory Board via an e-mail to Jack Wardell. LaVern Dirkx has indicated he would like to
fill Kyle Fesenmeyer’s open position. He would fulfill the remainder of the term which will

expire on May 31, 2019.

Members of the Committee are appointed by Council:

Parks, Recreation and

Cultural Advisory Board LaVern Dirkx Unexpired Term Expiring 05-31-19

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to appoint LaVern Dirkx to the Parks, Recreation and
Cultural Advisory Board for an unexpired term expiring May 31, 2019.







11-10-2016 10:40 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 1
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll CPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======1TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
UNPAID ITEMS DATES 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE TAPE 7.49 0.00 000000 0/00/00 7.49
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE LIGHT BULBS 5.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 5.98
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE THEATER SUPPLIES 19.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 19.99
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 3.60 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3.60
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE THEATER SUPPLIES 19.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 19.99
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 25.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 25.99
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 2.40 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2.40
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE REPAIR PARTS 14.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 14.99
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 4.75 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4.75
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 23.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 23.98
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE POWER CORD AND WIRE 35.78 0.00 000000 0/00/00 35.78
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE PAINT ROLLERS 2.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 9.98
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 3.20 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3.20
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 4.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4.99
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE WHEEL CASTER 3.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3.99
** TQOTALS ** 187.10 0.00 187.10
01-001583 ADVANCE SERVICES INC. NIGHT CLEANING W/E 10/23/16 173.25 0.00 000000 0/00/00 173.25
01-001583 ADVANCE SERVICES INC. NIGHT CLEANING W/E 10/30/2016 185.63 0.00 000000 0/00/00 185.63
01-001583 ADVANCE SERVICES INC. NIGHT CLEANING W/E 11/6/2016 173.25 0.00 000000 0/00/00 173.25
*% TOTALS ** 532.13 0.00 532.13
01-001698 ADVANCED LASER TECHNOLOGI TONER CARTRIDGE - PW SECRETARY 59.95 0.00 000000 0/00/00 59.95
01-001698 ADVANCED LASER TECHNOLOGI TONER CARTRIDGES - DEB 579.90 0.00 000000 0/00/00 579.90
*% TOTALS ** 639.85 0.00 639.85
01-002775 ALA STORE BOOKS 70.80 70.80- 106253 10/24/16 0.00
*%* TOTALS *x* 70.80 70.80- 0.00
01-012650 ALLIANT ENERGY-IES UTILIT GAS BILLS 2,508.88 2,508.88- 106399 11/09/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 2,508.88 2,508.88- 0.00
01-002080 AMAZON/GE MONEY BANK BOOKS AND VIDEO 210.71 210.71- 106249 10/24/16 0.00
*%* TOTALS ** 210.71 210.71- 0.00
01-002102 AMERICAN CONCRETE PRODUCT GARAGE BUNKER WALL 220.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 220.00
01-002102 AMERICAN CONCRETE PRODUCT 7TH AND GRANT RD 529.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 529.00
01-002102 AMERICAN CONCRETE PRODUCT BUNKER WALL 3RD ST. STORM 440.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 440.00
01-002102 AMERICAN CONCRETE PRODUCT 8TH & HIGHRIDGE ST. REPAIR 330.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 330.00
01-002102 AMERICAN CONCRETE PRODUCT 2ND & MAIN REPAIRS 330.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 330.00
01-002102 AMERICAN CONCRETE PRODUCT 481 DEER CREEK ROW 440.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 440.00
01-002102 AMERICAN CONCRETE PRODUCT ROW - 823 BROOKDALE 247.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 247.50
** TOTALS ** 2,536.50 0.00 2,536.50






11-10-2016 10:40 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 2
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======ITEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
UNPAID ITEMS DATES  : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-002160 ANDREWS ROOFING AND ROOF REPAIRS 387.14 0.00 000000 0/00/00 387.14
*% TOTALS ** 387.14 0.00 387.14
01-002370 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY MOWER REPAIRS 3.12 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3.12
01-002370 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY GREASE - SHOP 10.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 10.98
*% TOTALS ** 14.10 0.00 14.10
01-002805 BADDING CONSTRUCTION CO. CEMETERY MAINT. BUILDING 32,224.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 32,224.00
*% TOTALS ** 32,224.00 0.00 32,224.00
01-002818 BAKER AND TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 808.15 808.15- 106255 10/24/16 0.00
01-002818 BAKER AND TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 168.55 168.55- 106255 10/24/16 0.00
01-002818 BAKER AND TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 445.28 445.28- 106255 10/24/16 0.00
01-002818 BAKER AND TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 657.52 657.52- 106255 10/24/16 0.00
01-002818 BAKER AND TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 404.14 404.14- 106255 10/24/16 0.00
01-002818 BAKER AND TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 553.75 553.75- 106255 10/24/16 0.00
01-002818 BAKER AND TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 212.34 212.34- 106255 10/24/16 0.00
01-002818 BAKER AND TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 16.50 16.50- 106255 10/24/16 0.00
01-002818 BAKER AND TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 3.00 3.00- 106255 10/24/16 0.00
01-002818 BAKER AND TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 8.00 8.00- 106255 10/24/16 0.00
01-002818 BAKER AND TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 13.00 13.00- 106255 10/24/16 0.00
01-002818 BAKER AND TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 7.75 7.75- 106255 10/24/16 0.00
01-002818 BAKER AND TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 14.00 14.00- 106255 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 3,311.98 3,311.98- 0.00
01-001943 BAUER BUILT TIRE CENTER TIRE REPAIRS 8.68 0.00 000000 0/00/00 8.68
** TOTALS ** 8.68 0.00 8.68
01-002967 BIBLIOLABS LLC DATABASE FEE 2,750.00 2,750.00- 106259 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 2,750.00 2,750.00- 0.00
01-000609 BIERSCHBACH EQUIP & SUPPL SANDBLASTER FILTER & ASSEMBLY 4,620.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4,620.00
*% TOTALS ** 4,620.00 0.00 4,620.00
01-003515 BOMGAARS TRAILER HOSE REPAIRS 23.41 0.00 000000 0/00/00 23.41
01-003515 BOMGAARS CHAIN HOOKS 17.95 0.00 000000 0/00/00 17.95
01-003515 BOMGAARS WEED SPRAY 49.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 49.99
01-003515 BOMGAARS HOSE NOZZLES 23.96 0.00 000000 0/00/00 23.96
01-003515 BOMGAARS TRAILER LIGHT ADAPTER 12.52 0.00 000000 0/00/00 12.52
01-003515 BOMGAARS SUPPLIES 22.93 0.00 000000 0/00/00 22.93
01-003515 BOMGAARS SUPPLIES 68.35 0.00 000000 0/00/00 68.35
01-003515 BOMGAARS HAMMER AND ANTIFREEZE 12.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 12.98
01-003515 BOMGAARS SUPPLIES 49.97 0.00 000000 0/00/00 49.97
01-003515 BOMGAARS TIE STRAPS 6.07 0.00 000000 0/00/00 6.07






11-10-2016 10:40 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABTLE PAGE: 3
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======TEM DATES=c======= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
VENDOR --~-- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
*% TOTALS ** 288.13 0.00 288.13
01-001805 BOOK LOOK BOOKS 499.67 499.67- 106248 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 499.67 _ 499.67- 0.00
01-002630 BRANDIE LEDFORD PROGRAM SUPPLIES 48.09 48.09- 106251 10/24/16 0.00
01-002630 BRANDIE LEDFORD CONFERENCE EXPENSES 496.57 496.57- 106251 10/24/16 0.00
*%* TOTALS ** 544 .66 544 .66~ 0.00
01-003661 BREDA TELEPHONE CORPORATI LOCAL AND LONG DISTANCE 2,086.34 2,086.34- 106395 11/09/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 2,086.34 2,086.34~ 0.00
01-003670 BRIGGS INC OF OMAHA SUPPLIES 37.32 37.32- 106396 11/09/16 0.00
01-003670 BRIGGS INC OF OMAHA REPAIR PARTS 13.36 13.36- 106396 11/09/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 50.68 50.68- 0.00
01-003680 BRODART CO OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES 56.25 56.25- 106262 10/24/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 56.25 56.25- 0.00
01-003693 BRUNER & BRUNER GENERAL WORK : 1,065.80 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,065.80
01-003693 BRUNER & BRUNER POLICE/MAGISTRATE 1,475.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,475.00
01-003693 BRUNER & BRUNER PARKS AND RECREATION 100.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 100.00
01-003693 BRUNER & BRUNER PARKS AND RECREATION 237.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 237.50
01-003693 BRUNER & BRUNER ZONING/SUBDIVISION/BUILDINGS 225.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 225.00
*% TOTALS ** 3,103.30 0.00 3,103.30
01-001155 BRYAN ROCK PRODUCTS INC. BASEBALL STADIUM PARKING LOT 1,410.32 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,410.32
*% TOTALS ** 1,410.32 0.00 1,410.32
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CLEANING SUPPLIES 3.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3.98
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CLEANING SUPPLIES 139.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 139.00
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY DISPENSER SOAP 22.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 22.00
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CLEANING SUPPLIES 11.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 11.00
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY SOAP 143.59 0.00 000000 0/00/00 143.59
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CLEANING SUPPLIES 68.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 68.00
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY PAPER TOWELS 176.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 176.00
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CLEANING SUPPLIES 168.22 0.00 000000 0/00/00 168.22
*%* TOTALS ** 731.79 0.00 731.79
01-000747 CARROLL AUTO SUPPLY OIL FILTER - LIFT STATION 8.22 0.00 000000 0/00/00 8.22
01-000747 CARROLL AUTO SUPPLY BATTERY AIR COMP 91.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 91.50
01-000747 CARROLL AUTO SUPPLY SNOW BLOWER FILTERS 67.27 0.00 000000 0/00/00 67.27
01-000747 CARROLL AUTO SUPPLY BATTERY 95.96 0.00 000000 0/00/00 95.96
01-000747 CARROLL AUTO SUPPLY OIL FILTER UNIT #52 31.45 0.00 000000 0/00/00 31.45






11-10-2016 10:40 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE:
VENDCR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
m===z==PAYMENT DATES=z======= z======]TEM DATES========= ======P0OSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
*%* TOTALS ** 294 .40 0.00 294 .40
01-004133 CARROLL BROADCASTING CO. RADIO ADS 542.97 0.00 000000 0/00/00 542.97
** TOTALS ** 542.97 0.00 542.97
01-004146 CARROLL CONTROL SYSTEMS TEMPERATURE CONTROL AGREEMENT 950.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 950.00
01-004146 CARROLL CONTROL SYSTEMS EXHAUST FAN MOTOR REPAIRS 715.25 0.00 000000 0/00/00 715.25
*% TOTALS ** 1,665.25 0.00 1,665.25
01-004155 CARROLL COUNTY GASOLINE 3,937.42 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3,937.42
*% TOTALS ** 3,937.42 0.00 3,937.42
01-001297 CARROLL COUNTY INFO TECH MAILING LIST 40.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 40.00
** TOTALS ** 40.00 0.00 40.00
01-004166 CARROLL COUNTY ISU EXTENS ADAMS - PESTICIDE APPLICATOR 175.00 175.00- 106263 10/24/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 175.00 175.00- 0.00
01-002169 CARROLL COUNTY PUBLIC HEA FLU SHOTS 1,080.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,080.00
01-002169 CARROLL COUNTY PUBLIC HEA FLU SHOT 30.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 30.00
*% TOTALS ** 1,110.00 0.00 1,110.00
01-004170 CARROLL COUNTY RECORDER SW DEVELOPMENT PARK RECORDING 37.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 37.00
*% TOTALS ** 37.00 0.00 37.00
01-004175 CARROLL COUNTY SOFTBALL SB ASSOC BEER PERMIT REFUND 225.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 225.00
** TOTALS ** 225.00 0.00 225.00
01-004196 CARROLL HYDRAULICS WATER HOSE UNIT #47 302.90 0.00 000000 0/00/00 309.90
*%* TOTALS ** 309.90 0.00 309.90
01-004200 CARROLL LUMBER PLYWOOD 60.45 0.00 000000 0/00/00 60.45
01-004200 CARROLL LUMBER LIME 60.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 60.00
01-004200 CARROLL LUMBER 3RD ST. STORM SEWER 260.40 0.00 000000 0/00/00 260.40
01-004200 CARROLL LUMBER ANCHORS AND MORFLEX 19.50 0.00 000000 ©0/00/00 192.50
*% TOTALS ** 400.35 0.00 400.35
01-000785 CARROLL REFUSE SERVICE LL OCT TRASH COLLECTIONS G4 4,290.96 4,290.96- 106407 11/10/16 0.00
01-000785 CARROLL REFUSE SERVICE LL OCT TRASH COLLECTIONS GL 6,404.72 6,404.72- 106407 11/10/16 0.00
*%* TOTALS ** 10,695.68 10,695.68- 0.00
01-004233 CARROLLTON INN PROGRAM FEE THRANS 246.30 246.30- 106264 10/24/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 246.30 246.30~ 0.00






11-10-2016 10:40 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABTLE PAGE: 5
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll O PEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PATD ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-001148 CERTIFIED TESTING SERVICE TESTING 3RD ST STORM SEWER 306.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 306.00
*% TOTALS ** 306.00 0.00 306.00
01-001393 CHAMPION FORD INC. POLICE EXPLORER INTERCEPTOR 17,389.00 17,389.00- 106244 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS *=* 17,389.00 17,389.00- 0.00
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK WIRE TRANSFER FEE 5.00 5.00- 000000 10/24/16 0.00
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK FEDERAL WITHHOLDINGS 13,188.15 13,188.15- 000000 10/27/16 0.00
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK FEDERAL WITHHOLDINGS 13,781.17 13,781.17- 000000 11/10/16 0.00
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK FICA WITHHCLDING 12,616.12 12,616.12- 000000 10/27/16 0.00
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK FICA WITHHOLDING 13,452.32 13,452.32- 000000 11/10/16 0.00
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK MEDICARE WITHHOLDING 3,830.98 3,830.98- 000000 10/27/16 0.00
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK MEDICARE WITHHOLDING 4,031.54 4,031.54- 000000 11/10/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 60,905.28 60,905.28- 0.00
01-001463 COMMUNITY OF CONCERN FY 16 FUNDING REQUEST 5,000.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 5,000.00
*% TOTALS ** 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00
01-004836 COMMUNITY OIL CO. INC. GENERATOR OIL 365.10 0.00 000000 0/00/00 365.10
** TOTALS ** 365.10 0.00 365.10
01-000366 COMPUTER & NETWORK SPEC MISC. COMPUTER ISSUES 315.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 315.00
** TOTALS ** 315.00 0.00 315.00
01-0009211 COMPUTER CONCEPTS OF IOWA IT MAINTENANCE 5.75 5.75- 106243 10/24/16 0.00
01-0009211 COMPUTER CONCEPTS OF IOWA SOFTWARE RENEWAL 812.00 812.00- 106243 10/24/16 0.00
01-000911 COMPUTER CONCEPTS OF IOWA IT MAINTENANCE 265.00 265.00- 106243 10/24/16 0.00
01-0009211 COMPUTER CONCEPTS OF IOWA IT MAINTENANCE 120.00 120.00- 106243 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 1,202.75 1,202.75~- 0.00
01-002071 COMPUTER REPAIR & SERVICE VPN 37.50 0.00 000000 0/0C0/00 37.50
01-002071 COMPUTER REPAIR & SERVICE STATIC IP 131.25 0.00 000000 0/00/00 131.25
01-002071 COMPUTER REPAIR & SERVICE MISC COMPUTER ISSUES 56.25 0.00 000000 0/C0/00 56.25
*% TOTALS ** 225.00 0.00 225.00
01-001595 COUNSEL OFFICE & DOCUMENT COPIER CONTRACT 175.54 175.54- 106247 10/24/16 0.00
01-001595 COUNSEL OFFICE & DOCUMENT COPIER CONTRACT 54.04 0.00 000000 0/00/00 54.04
*% TOTALS ** 229.58 175.54 -~ 54.04
01-005395 D & K PRODUCTS CHEMICALS 446 .86 0.00 000000 0/00/00 446.86
*% TOTALS ** 446.86 0.00 446 .86
01-005410 DAILY TIMES HERALD PUBLICITY 75.00 75.00- 106265 10/24/16 0.00
01-005410 DAILY TIMES HERALD 1 YR. SUBSCRIPTION 107.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 107.00






11-10-2016 10:40 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 6
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTTAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
UNPAID ITEMS DATES  : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
VENDOR ~--- VENDOR NAME ~----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCEH---
01-005410 DAILY TIMES HERALD POLICE OFFICER ADS 161.60 0.00 000000 0/00/00 161.60
01-005410 DAILY TIMES HERALD OCT. LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 648.85 0.00 000000 0/00/00 648.85
*% TOTALS ** 992.45 75.00- 917.45
01-000854 DEARBORN NATIONAL NOV. LIFE INSURANCE PREMTUMS 329.40 329.40- 106371 10/28/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 329.40 329.40- 0.00
01-005615 DEMCO EDUCATIONAL CORP.  OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES 386.15 386.15- 106266 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 386.15 386.15- 0.00
01-005640 DES MOINES REGISTER SUBSCRIPTION 388.03 388.03- 106267 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 388.03 388.03- 0.00
01-002811 DEVIN PUDENZ STEEL TOED WORK BOOTS 132.67 132.67- 106372 10/28/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 132.67 132.67- 0.00
01-002776 DOLLAR GENERAL - REGIONS PROGRAM SUPPLIES 13.00 13.00- 106254 10/24/16 0.00
01-002776 DOLLAR GENERAL - REGIONS PROGRAM SUPPLIES 24.00 24.00- 106254 10/24/16 0.00
01-002776 DOLLAR GENERAL - REGIONS PROGRAM SUPPLIES 45.75 45.75- 106254 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 82.75 82.75- 0.00
01-006150 DPC INDUSTRIES INC WATER TREATMENT SUPPLIES 2,483.46 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,483 .46
*% TOTALS ** 2,483.46 0.00 2,483 .46
01-006270 DREES HEATING & PLUMBING A/C REPAIRS 207.44 0.00 000000 0/00/00 207.44
*% TOTALS ** 207.44 0.00 207.44
01-006725 EARL MAY STORE LANDSCAPING SUPPLIES 3,380.53 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3,380.53
*% TOTALS ** 3,380.53 0.00 3,380.53
01-012590 ECEO ELECTRIC SUPPLY BULBS 268.44 268.44- 106398 11/09/16 0.00
01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY CODE BOOK 93.85 0.00 000000 0/00/00 93.85
01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY CODE BOOK TABS 18.18 0.00 000000 0/00/00 18.18
01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY LIGHT BULBS 78.40 0.00 000000 0/00/00 78.40
01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY ELECTRICAL ANCHORS 44.92 44.92- 106373 10/28/16 0.00
01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY SHOWER TRANSFORMER 37.44 0.00 000000 0/00/00 37.44
01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY WIRE 57.84 57.84- 106373 10/28/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 599.07 371.20- 227.87
01-006810 ECOWATER SYSTEMS SOFTNER SALT 75.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 75.00
** TOTALS ** 75.00 0.00 75.00
01-004185 EMPLOYMENT RESOURCES OCT. CITY HALL CLEANING 776.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 776.00
*% TOTALS ** 776.00 0.00 776.00






11-10-2016 10:40 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 7
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= m===z===]TEM DATES==c=z=c===== ======POSTING DATES=======
PATD ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
UNPAID ITEMS DATES 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME --~-- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-008027 FAREWAY STORES COUNCIL PLANNING SESSION 18.38 0.00 000000 0/00/00 18.38
** TQTALS ** 18.38 0.00 18.38
01-008035 FARNER-BOCKEN CO. CLEANING SUPPLIES 905.82 .00 000000 0/00/00 905.82
** TOTALS ** 905.82 0.00 905.82
01-008050 FASTENAL COMPANY MARKING PAINT & MARKER 27.18 0.00 000000 0/00/00 27.18
01-008050 FASTENAL COMPANY BUNKER WALL 3RD ST 21.48 0.00 000000 0/00/00 21.48
01-008050 FASTENAL COMPANY PAINT WAND 47.61 0.00 000000 0/00/00 47.61
** TOTALS ** 96.27 0.00 96.27
01-006860 FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. EXTINGUISHER INSPECTIONS 105.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 105.00
01-006860 FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. EXTINGUISHER INSPECTED 10.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 10.00
01-006860 FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. EXTINGUISHER INSPECTION 150.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 150.00
*% TOTALS ** 265.00 0.00 265.00
01-000633 FILTER CARE FILTERS CLEANED 20.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 20.00
*% TOTALS ** 20.00 0.00 20.00
01-000013 FIRE/POLICE RETIREMENT SY MFPRSI CONTRIBUTIONS 11,822.70 11,822.70- 000000 10/27/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 11,822.70 11,822.70- 0.00
01-002806 FOUNDATION ANALYTICAL LAB LAB TESTING 116.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 116.00
01-002806 FOUNDATION ANALYTICAL LAB LAB TESTING 724.10 0.00 000000 0/00/00 724 .10
*% TOTALS ** 840.10 0.00 840.10
01-009315 GALL'S INC. KATHOL: - BOOTS 139.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 139.99
*% TOTALS ** 139.99 0.00 139.99
01-009535 GENERAL RENTAL TAPCON SCREWS 28.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 28.00
01-009535 GENERAIL RENTAL SAW BLADES 42.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 42.00
*% TOTALS ** 70.00 0.00 70.00
01-009540 GENERAL TRAFFIC CONTROLS SIGNAL TIMING CHANGES 875.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 875.00
*%* TOTALS ** 875.00 0.00 875.00
01-010040 GOVERNMENT FINANCE GFOA MEMBERSHIP DUES 190.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 190.00
** TOTALS =** 190.00 0.00 120.00
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD OPERATING SUPPLIES 855.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 855.50
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD OPERATING SUPPLIES 945.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 945.00
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD METERS 4,212.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4,212.00
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD METERS 4,212.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4,212.00






11-10-2016 10:40 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABTLE PAGE: 8
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll O PEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======1TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PATD ITEMS DATES 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
UNPAID ITEMS DATES 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD METERS 4,212.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4,212.00
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD METERS 4,212.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4,212.00
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD OPERATING SUPPLIES 50.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 50.00
*% TOTALS ** 18,698.50 0.00 18,698.50
01-005635 HOLIDAY INN AIRPORT IMFOA CONFERENCE - HOTEL 180.40 0.00 000000 0/00/00 120.40
** TOTALS ** 190.40 0.00 190.40
01-011831 HY-VEE INC. PROGRAM SUPPLIES 30.00 30.00- 106268 10/24/16 0.00
01-011831 HY-VEE INC. TRAINING SUPPLIES 80.29 80.29- 106268 10/24/16 0.00
01-011831 HY-VEE INC. TRAINING EXPENSES 78.30 78.30- 106268 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 188.59 188.59- 0.00
01-002869 I SAW THE SIGN LLC LIBRARY CARD SIGN 45.00 45.00- 106257 10/24/16 0.00
*%* TOTALS ** 45.00 45.00- 0.00
01-000019 ICMA MEMBERSHIP RENEWALS ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 840.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 840.00
*% TOTALS ** 840.00 0.00 840.00
01-012615 IDALS PESTICIDE LICENSE - PROMES 15.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 15.00
**% TOTALS ** 15.00 0.00 15.00
01-012540 IMWCA WORKER COMP #6 6,335.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 6,335.00
01-012540 IMWCA FY AUDIT ADJUSTMENT 5,860.00 0.00 000000 ©0/00/00 5,860.00
** TOTALS ** 12,195.00 0.00 12,195.00
01-012552 INDUSTRIAL BEARING SUPP. PUMP 93.85 0.00 000000 0/00/00 93.85
*% TOTALS ** 93.85 0.00 93.85
01-012561 INSTITUTE OF PUBLIC AFFAI COUNCIL PLANNING SESSION 2,267.10 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,267.10
*%* TOTALS ** 2,267.10 0.00 2,267.10
01-000414 INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCI ICC MEMBERSHIP 135.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 135.00
*%* TOTALS ** 135.00 0.00 135.00
01-012610 IOWA CITY/CO. MGMNT ASSN IACMA MEMBERSHIP DUES 250.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 250.00
** TOTALS ** 250.00 0.00 250.00
01-005825 IOWA DIVISION OF LABOR SE BOILER INSPECTION 40.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 40.00
** TOTALS ** 40.00 0.00 40.00
01-012655 IOWA GOOD ROADS ASSN. IGRA 2017 DUES 95.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 95.00
** TOTALS ** 95.00 0.00 95.00






11-10-2016 10:40 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 9
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OCPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PATD ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-012604 IOWA PEACE OFFICERS ASSOC IPOA DUES 505.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 505.00
*%* TOTALS ** 505.00 0.00 505.00
01-012685 IOWA SMALL ENGINE CENTER ALTERNATOR 74.75 0.00 000000 0/00/00 74 .75
*% TOTALS ** 74.75 0.00 74.75
01-012696 IOWA TURFGRASS INSTITUTE 2017 MEMBERSHIP DUES PARCHER 50.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 50.00
*% TOTALS *+* 50.00 0.00 50.00
01-012706 IPERS IPERS CONTRIBUTIONS 15,137.17 15,137.17- 000000 10/27/16 0.00
*%* TOTALS ** 15,137.17 15,137.17- 0.00
01-001438 J. J. SCHRECK SEXUAL ABUSE ADVOCACY CLASS 9.77 9.77- 106392 11/09/16 0.00
01-001438 J. J. SCHRECK TRACS CONFERENCE AMES 72.36 72.36- 106392 11/09/16 0.00
01-001438 J. J. SCHRECK LEADERSHIP CLASS 8.55 8.55- 106392 11/09/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 90.68 90.68- 0.00
01-002453 JASON MATTHEW LAMBERTZ PRODUCTION COSTS 1,050.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,050.00
*%* TOTALS ** 1,050.00 0.00 1,050.00
01-013917 JEO CONSULTING GROUP INC. WELL AND TRANSMISSION MAIN 3,775.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3,775.00
*% TOTALS ** 3,775.00 0.00 3,775.00
01-000110 JUDY BEHM BACK IN CIRCULATION CONFERENCE 30.39 30.39- 106240 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 30.39 30.39- 0.00
01-000294 KABEL BUSINESS SERVICES - FLEX SPENDING FEES 73.50 73.50- 000000 10/24/16 0.00
01-000994 KABEL BUSINESS SERVICES - SEPT. DED CHECKS 747.20 747.20- 000000 10/24/16 0.00
01-000994 KABEL BUSINESS SERVICES - SEPT. CO-PAY CHECKS 693 .54 693.54- 000000 10/24/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 1,514.24 1,514.24- 0.00
01-014520 KASPERBAUER CLEANING SER LAUNDER MOPS 27.52 0.00 000000 0/00/00 27.52
01-014520 KASPERBAUER CLEANING SER LAUNDER RUGS 77.90 0.00 000000 0/00/00 77.90
01-014520 KASPERBAUER CLEANING SER LAUNDER MOPS 27.52 0.00 000000 0/00/00 27.52
** TOTALS ** 132.94 0.00 132.94
01-014815 KEYSTONE LABORATORIES MONTHLY BAC-T/FLUORIDE 132.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 132.50
*% TOTALS ** 132.50 0.00 132.50
01-001550 KING CONSTRUCTION LLC 3RD ST. STORM SEWER WEST 156,584.30 0.00 000000 0/00/00 156,584.30
*%* TOTALS ** 156,584.30 0.00 156,584.30
01-000560 LAURA SCHAEFER WCICA MEETING 29.1e6 29.16- 106242 10/24/16 0.00

01-000560 LAURA SCHAEFER CARROLL COUNTY ROUNDTABLE 30.00 30.00- 106370 10/28/16 0.00






11-10-2016 10:40 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABTLE PAGE: 10
VENDCR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= mm=====]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PATD ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-000560 LAURA SCHAEFER IMFOA CONFERENCE 103.14 103.14- 106370 10/28/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 162.30 162.30- 0.00
01-002433 LAW OFFICE OF JAMES H GIL MISC EMPLOYMENT ISSUES 80.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 80.50
*% TOTALS ** 80.50 0.00 80.50
01-010827 LEON HENDRICKS OCT. CONTRACT METER READER 1,793.02 1,793.02- 106397 11/09/16 0.00
*%* TOTALS ** 1,793.02 1,793.02- 0.00
01-002969 LINKEDIN CORPORATION DATABASE FEES 1.00 1.00- 106261 10/24/16 0.00
01-002969 LINKEDIN CORPORATION DATABASE FEES 2,500.00 2,500.00- 106261 10/24/16 0.00
*%* TOTALS ** 2,501.00 2,501.00- 0.00
01-001401 LYNETTE LICHT BACK IN CIRCULATION CONFERENCE 398.42 398.42- 106357 10/25/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 398.42 398.42- 0.00
01-017123 MANGOLD ENVIRONMENTAL SAMPLE ANALYSIS 1,310.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,310.00
01-017123 MANGOLD ENVIRONMENTAL NITRITE SAMPLE ANALYSIS 210.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 210.00
*% TOTALS ** 1,520.00 0.00 1,520.00
01-012680 MID AMERICAN ENERGY ELECTRIC RBRILLS 32,678.93 32,678.93- 106400 11/09/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 32,678.93 32,678.93-~ 0.00
01-002951 MIKE POGGE-WEAVER COUNTY ROUNDTABLE MEETING 14.04 0.00 000000 0/00/00 14.04
** TQTALS ** 14.04 0.00 14.04
01-018105 MUNICIPAL PIPE TOOL CO. PRESSURE REGULATOR 1,355.04 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,355.04
*% TOTALS *=* 1,355.04 0.00 1,355.04
01-002906 MYE ENTERTAINMENT INC WIRELESS TRANSMITTER 2,486.20 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,486.20
*% TOTALS ** 2,486.20 0.00 2,486.20
01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS OIL DRY 18.70 0.00 000000 0/00/00 18.70
01-018408 NAPA AUTO PARTS #24 EXHAUST TUBING 117.84 0.00 000000 0/00/00 117.84
01-018408 NAPA AUTC PARTS EXHAUST CLAMP - SHOP 33.72 0.00 000000 0/00/00 33.72
*%* TOTALS ** 170.26 0.00 170.26
01-002975 NATIONWIDE BLANKET BOND RENEWAL 446.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 446.00
*% TOTALS ** 446.00 0.00 446.00
01-002970 NEPOST USA INC FOLDER/INSERTER MACHINE 10,984.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 10,984.00
** TOTALS ** 10,984.00 0.00 10,984.00
01-018634 NEU MINNICH COMITO & NEU LEGAL FEES 50.00 50.00~ 106374 10/28/16 0.00






11-10-2016 10:40 AM

VENDOR SET: 01

City of Carroll

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL

PAID ITEMS DATES

UNPAID ITEMS DATES

01-019123

01-020208
01-020208
01-020208
01-020208

01-020207

01-002054
01-002054

01-002956

01-020326

01-001520

01-021050
01-021050
01-021050
01-021050

01-001949
01-0019429
01-001949
01-0019429
01-00194¢9
01-001949
01-001949

01-001540

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
OPEN ITEM REPORT
SUMMARY
=======]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT
** TOTALS ** 50.00 50.00-
LAB SUPPLIES 383.16 0.00 000000 0/00/00
*% TOTALS ** 383.16 0.00
FUEL AND OIL FILTERS 73.41 0.00 000000 0/00/00
OIL AND GAS FILTER 18.06 0.00 000000 0/00/00
FILTERS 36.44 0.00 000000 0/00/00
EXHAUST CLAMP #24 31.36 0.00 000000 0/00/00
** TOTALS ** 159.27 0.00
#16 - BATTERY 126.49 0.00 000000 0/00/00
*% TOTALS ** 126.49 0.00
2016 COURT ST. RESURFACING 20,309.57 0.00 000000 0/00/00
2016 HIGH RIDGE RD RESURFACING 11,069.31 0.00 000000 0/00/00
*% TOTALS ** 31,378.88 0.00
PRO. SERVICES 10/1-10/31/16 4,143.60 0.00 000000 0/00/00
** TOTALS ** 4,143.60 0.00
NEWSLETTERS 166.50 166.50- 106269 10/24/16
** TOTALS ** 166.50 166.50-
SUBSCRIPTION 19.98 19.98- 106246 10/24/16
** TOTALS ** 19.98 19.98~
BALL VALVES - LUBE LINES 121.51 121.51- 106375 10/28/16
REPAIR PARTS 15.19 15.19- 106401 11/09/16
IRRIGATICN PARTS 18.65 18.65- 106401 11/09/16
IRRIGATION REPAIR PARTS 51.43 51.43- 106401 11/09/16
** TOTALS ** 206.78 206.78-
#15 - OIL CHANGE 34.51 0.00 000000 0/00/00
OIL CHANGE #20 26.78 0.00 000000 0/00/00
#19 OIL CHANGE 26.46 0.00 000000 0/00/00
#18 - OIL CHANGE 26.11 0.00 000000 0/00/00
#19 - OIL CHANGE 26.11 0.00 000000 0/00/00
#15 - OIL CHANGE 25.44 0.00 000000 0/00/00
#18 - OIL CHANGE 26.11 0.00 000000 0/00/00
*% TOTALS ** 191.52 0.00
REPLENISH PETTY CASH 42.16 42.16- 106393 11/03/16
**% TOTALS ** 42 .16 42.16-

NORTH CENTRAL CROP INS.

O'HALLORAN INTERNATIONAL
O'HALLORAN INTERNATIONAL
O'HALLCRAN INTERNATIONAL
O'HALLORAN INTERNATIONAL

O.K. AUTOMOTIVE & MACHINE

OMG MIDWEST
OMG MIDWEST

OPN ARCHITECTS

OPTIONS INK

OUR IOWA

P & H WHOLESALE INC.

P & H WHOLESALE INC.

P & H WHOLESALE INC.

P & H WHOLESALE INC.
PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC
PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC
PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC
PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC
PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC
PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC
PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC

PETTY CASH

10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016

PAGE: 11
BANK: AP

- ---BALANCE- - -

0.00

383.16
383.16

73.41
18.06
36.44
31.36
159.27

126.49
126.49

20,309.57
11,069.31
31,378.88

4,143.60
4,143.60

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00






11-10-2016 10:40 AM A
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll o]
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID,

U N P A
I R

o
SR
o uw

TS E PAGE: 12
TEM T BANK: AP

PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES=======
10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016

=======1TEM DATES=========
10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016

======POSTING DATES=======
10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016

PATD ITEMS DATES :
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES:
UNPAID ITEMS DATES :

VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-001490 PITNEY BOWES POSTAGE 2,015.00 2,015.00- 106245 10/24/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 2,015.00 2,015.00- 0.00
01-001327 POLICE LEGAL SCIENCES INC PLS SUBSCRIPTION 1,800.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,800.00
** TOTALS ** 1,800.00 0.00 1,800.00
01-021735 POSTMASTER POSTAGE TO MAIL WATER BILLS 1,562.27 1,562.27- 106358 10/25/16 0.00
01-021735 POSTMASTER POSTAGE TO MAIL WATER BILLS 81.80 81.80- 106369 10/27/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 1,644.07 1,644.07~ 0.00
01-000625 PRCODUCTIVITY PLUS ACCOUNT WATER VALVE SWEEPER 108.51 108.51- 106391 11/09/16 0.00
01-000625 PRODUCTIVITY PLUS ACCOUNT EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 157.74 157.74- 106391 11/09/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 266.25 266.25- 0.00
01-023640 RAY'S REFUSE SERVICE OCT. GARBAGE PICKUP 1,212.16 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,212.16
01-023640 RAY'S REFUSE SERVICE OCT. TRASH COLLECTIONS G1 16,128.97 16,128.97- 106402 11/09/16 0.00
01-023640 RAY'S REFUSE SERVICE OCT. TRASH COLLECTIONS GS 8,652.70 8,652.70- 106402 11/09/16 0.00
01-023640 RAY'S REFUSE SERVICE OCT. TRASH COLLECTIONS SS 5,489.95 5,489.95- 106402 11/09/16 0.00
01-023640 RAY'S REFUSE SERVICE OCT. TRASH COLLECTIONS OS 1,391.73 1,391.73- 106402 11/09/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 32,875.51 31,663.35- 1,212.1
01-000326 RECORDED BOOKS LLC AUDIO BOOKS 19.99 19.99- 106241 10/24/16 0.00
01-000326 RECORDED BOOKS LLC AUDIO BOOKS 58.60 58.60- 106241 10/24/16 0.00
01-000326 RECORDED BOOKS LLC AUDIO BOOKS 62.99 62.99- 106241 10/24/16 0.00
01-000326 RECORDED BOOKS LLC AUDIO BOOKS 41.60 41.60- 106241 10/24/16 0.00
01-000326 RECORDED BOOKS LLC AUDIO BOOKS 44 .99 44.99- 106241 10/24/16 0.00
01-000326 RECORDED BOOKS LLC AUDIO BOOKS 35.99 35.99- 106241 10/24/16 0.00
01-000326 RECORDED BOOKS LLC AUDIO BOOKS 204.28 204.28- 106241 10/24/16 0.00
01-000326 RECORDED BOOKS LLC AUDIO BOOKS 71.98 71.98- 106241 10/24/16 0.00
01-000326 RECORDED BOOKS LLC AUDIO BOOKS 40.50 40.50- 106241 10/24/16 0.00
01-000326 RECORDED BOOKS LLC AUDIO BOOKS 31.50 31.50- 106241 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 612.42 612.42- 0.00
01-023815 REGION XII COG OCT. TAXI PROGRAM DONATIONS 3,660.00 3,660.00- 106403 11/09/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 3,660.00 3,660.00- 0.00
01-000514 ROGNES CORPORATION 3RD ST. STORM WATER - EAST 5,444 .26 0.00 000000 0/00/00 5,444 .26
*% TOTALS ** 5,444 .26 0.00 5,444 .26
01-000459 ROTERT CONSTRUCTION BASEBALL STADIUM PAY APP #5 163,063.69 0.00 000000 0/00/00 163,063.69
*% TOTALS ** 163,063.69 0.00 163,063.69
01-024630 RUTTEN'S VACUUM CENTER VACUUM BAGS 18.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 18.99






11-10-2016 10:40 AM

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 13
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= —======TTEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
UNPAID ITEMS DATES 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
VENDOR ~--- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
*% TOTALS ** 18.99 0.00 18.99
01-024905 SAFETY-KLEEN CORP. CLEANING SOLVENT 271.09 0.00 0000600 0/00/00 271.09
*% TOTALS ** 271.09 0.00 271.09
01-025105 SEARS COMMERCIAL ONE TOOLS 34.99 34.99- 106270 10/24/16 0.00
01-025105 SEARS COMMERCIAT, ONE TOOLS AND TOOL BAG 127.92 127.92- 106270 10/24/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 162.91 162.91- 0.00
01-002977 SGS LLC OCT. TRASH COLLECTIONS SG 679.21 679.21- 106408 11/10/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 679.21 679.21- 0.00
01-002976 SHATTUCK/RPM INC. BASEBALL STADIUM SOD 1,025.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,025.00
*% TOTALS ** 1,025.00 0.00 1,025.00
01-000155 SHIVE HATTERY INC TRAILS - ENGINEERING SERVICES 7,310.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 7,310.00
** TOTALS ** 7,310.00 0.00 7,310.00
01-002973 SHOW TIME CATERING COUNCIL PLANNING SESSION 200.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 200.00
*% TOTALS ** 200.00 0.00 200.00
01-002586 SMART SHOPPER PUBLICITY SUPPLIES 29.00 29.00- 106250 10/24/16 0.00
** TOTALS ** 29.00 29.00- 0.00
01-025335 SNYDER TREE SERVICE STUMP REMOVAL 1407 SIMON 350.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 350.00
*% TOTALS ** 350.00 0.00 350.00
01-028180 STATE HYGIENIC LABORATORY WATER SAMPLE ANALYSIS 39.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 39.50
*#% TOTALS ** 39.50 0.00 39.50
01-002974 STETSON BUILDING PRODUCTS SIDEWALKS/PEDESTRIAN CURB RAMP 3,895.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3,895.50
01-002974 STETSON BUILDING PRODUCTS SIDEWALKS/PEDESTRIAN RAMPS 3,895.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3,895.50
*% TOTALS ** 7,791.00 0.00 7,791.00
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. SUPPLIES 5.67 5.67- 106271 10/24/16 0.00
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. SUPPLIES 35.33 35.33- 106271 10/24/16 0.00
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. BINDER CLIPS 0.89 0.00 000000 0/00/00 0.89
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. SUPPLIES 35.99 35.99- 106271 10/24/16 0.00
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. OFFICE SUPPLIES 74.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 74.50
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. FALL/WINTER PROGRAM BOOKS 1,140.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,140.00
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. SUPPLIES 51.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 51.99
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. OFFICE SUPPLIES 77.95 0.00 000000 0/00/00 77.95
*% TOTALS ** 1,422.32 76.99- 1,345.33






11-10-2016 10:40 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 14
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= m=======]TEM DATES========= ======PQOS8TING DATES====m===
PAID ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
UNPAID ITEMS DATES 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
VENDOR ~--~ VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-002968 STU CAMPBELL BOOKS 63.00 63.00- 106260 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 63.00 63.00- 0.00
01-025935 SUBWAY AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM 71.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 71.00
01-025935 SUBWAY EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 20.20 0.00 000000 0/00/00 20.20
01-025935 SUBWAY EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 28.90 0.00 000000 0/00/00 28.90
*% TOTALS ** 120.10 0.00 120.10
01-002118 TELVUE TELEVUE SOFTWARE 4,692.20 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4,692.20
*% TOTALS ** 4,692.20 0.00 4,692.20
01-002272 TIGGES OVERHEAD DOORS WEST DOOR REPATRS 35.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 35.00
*% TOTALS ** 35.00 0.00 35.00
01-002944 TRACES CENTER FOR HISTORY PROGRAM FEE AND BOOKS 330.00 330.00- 106258 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 330.00 330.00- 0.00
01-027060 TREASURER OF IOWA 10/1-10/15/2016 SALES TAX 500.00 500.00- 000000 10/25/16 0.00
01-027060 TREASURER OF IOWA SEPT. SALES TAX 15,293.00 15,293.00- 000000 10/31/16 0.00
01-027060 TREASURER OF IOWA 10/16-10/31/16 SALES TAX 10,193.00 10,193.00- 000000 11/10/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 25,986.00 25,986.00- 0.00
01-027079 TRIPLE A SEEDS INC. SUNLAWN 57.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 57.50
*%* TOTALS ** 57.50 0.00 57.50
01-001088 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES ONLINE BILLING ACCESS 180.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 180.00
*% TOTALS ** 180.00 0.00 180.00
01-028168 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE FREIGHT W/E 10/15/2016 82.91 82.91- 106272 10/24/16 0.00
01-028168 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE FREIGHT W/E 10/22/2016 47.33 47.33- 106404 11/09/16 0.00
01-028168 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE FREIGHT W/E 10/239/2016 56.10 56.10- 106405 11/09/16 0.00
*x TOTALS ** 186.34 186.34- 0.00
01-028174 UNITED STATES CELLULAR CELL PHONE - KRAUEL 78.45 78.45- 106376 10/28/16 0.00
01-028174 UNITED STATES CELLULAR CELL PHONES 255.29 255.29- 106377 10/28/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 333.74 333.74- 0.00
01-002691 UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-E CONFERENCE FEE 300.00 300.00- 106252 10/24/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 300.00 300.00- 0.00
01-028814 VAN METER COMPANY, THE OIL AND FILTERS #35 185.62 0.00 000000 0/00/00 185.62
01-028814 VAN METER COMPANY, THE OIL AND FILTERS 154 .53 0.00 000000 0/00/00 154.53
01-028814 VAN METER COMPANY, THE OIL 11.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 11.98
01-028814 VAN METER COMPANY, THE LIGHT BULBS 130.14 0.00 000000 0/00/00 130.14






11-10-2016 10:40 aM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 15
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES : 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
UNPAID ITEMS DATES 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016 10/21/2016 THRU 11/10/2016
VENDOR ~---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
*% TOTALS ** 482.27 0.00 482.27
01-002666 VAN WALL EQUIPMENT INC. 60" MOWER REPLACEMENT 23,718.89 23,718.89- 106394 11/09/16 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 23,718.89 23,718.89- 0.00
01-029013 VERIZON WIRELESS ATR CARDS - CAR 240.06 240.06- 106406 11/09/16 0.00
*%* TOTALS ** 240.06 240.06- 0.00
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 30.15 0.00 000000 0/00/00 30.15
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 FLAG FOOTBALL STORAGE 201.08 0.00 000000 0/00/00 201.08
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 PROGRAM EXPENSES 171.02 0.00 000000 0/00/00 171.02
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 21.60 0.00 000000 0/00/00 21.60
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 167.82 0.00 000000 0/00/00 167.82
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 114.77 0.00 000000 0/00/00 114.77
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 CLEANING SUPPLIES 39.39 0.00 000000 0/00/00 39.39
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION l6.14 0.00 000000 0/00/00 16.14
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 CLEANING SUPPLIES 18.21 0.00 000000 0/00/00 18.21
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 20.79 0.00 000000 0/00/00 20.79
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM SUPPLIES 334.39 0.00 000000 0/00/00 334.39
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 13.48 0.00 000000 0/00/00 13.48
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 CLEANER 11.76 0.00 000000 0/00/00 11.76
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 70.56 0.00 000000 0/00/00 70.56
*% TOTALS ** 1,231.16 0.00 1,231.16
01-002972 WIN TECHNOLOGY INC. TRUE ELLIPTICAL REPAIRS 342.40 0.00 000000 0/00/00 342.40
01-002972 WIN TECHNOLOGY INC. TRUE ELLIPTICAL REPAIRS 841.60 0.00 000000 0/00/00 841.60
** TOTALS ** 1,184.00 0.00 1,184.00
01-000386 ZIMCO SUPPLY CO SUPPLIES 2,672.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,672.00
01-000386 ZIMCO SUPPLY CO FERTILIZER 280.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 280.00
** TOTALS ** 2,952.00 0.00 2,952.00

* Payroll Expense

288,885.39






ST

6T ¥18'¥%eZS
00°0
00°0
6T°%18'v2ZS

6T %18 '%CS

0070
61°%18'%ZS
00°0
00°0

HONY'IVE

9T0Z/0T/TIT DMHL 9T0Z/T12/0T
9T0Z/0T/TT DMHI 9102/12/0T
9T0Z/0T/TT MMHLI 9102/T2/0T
=======§HIVJ ONILSOd======

d¥ :MNVE
SADYd

*» STIVIOL JIVANN xx

STYIOL OWAW LIOHID QIITIdVNN
STYLOL OWHW ILIddd dIVdNN

dv¥Y o dHd

qD0Z " S¥€’'ZSS

dIVvYd4dNDn

6E°6ST LLO'T

000 0070
0070 61°%18'¥v2S
00°0 000
¥D0Z Sye’zss 0Z°S¥€E’2SS
SINHNAYS SSOoUD

STY¥Y L O L

9T0Z/0T/TT NYHL 9T102/TZ/0T
9T0Z/0T/TT NAKL 9T102/1Z/0T
9T0Z/0T/TT N¥HL 9T0Z/TZ/0T
”HHH“"”HHWM,H_.@Q ZM.HH"”HHHHN

AdYNRKNAOS
gl WH LI
Y 4 S I NQ

m o
[
>

L d¥404d4dy

STYLOL HEDIOANI dIVANQ

¥x STYILIOL xx

SWHLI dIOA
SWHLT dIVdNQ
aivd ATIVILYYd
SWHLI dIV¥d

9T0Z/0T/TT Q¥HL 9T0Z/TZ/0T
9T0Z/0T/TT O¥HL 9T0Z/1Z/0T
"”"“””“WMH«D Bzméﬁq&””"”““”

SHLYJ SWHILI dIYdNQ
SHILVA SWALI ATIVILIVYA
SHIVd SWILI dIvd

TYILYYd ‘dIVAND ‘dIvd :ONILIOdHTd

T10IIR®D JO A3TID

TO :*LHS YOANHA
WY 0%:0T 91T02-0T-1T





LT

6E"6ST'LLO'T

6€£°588'88¢C
YT 0LL'T
Y¥ 9LZT €91
00°860°T
ST SLT €2
00°520°9S
08°59L’LS
T1°9LZ'90¢C
LS 60€7°0T
TE690'TT
90°0%2
99°02s’'81
TO €TY

SL vEE’6LT

9T0Z/0T/TT NIHL 910Z/12/0T
9T0Z/0T/TT N¥HIL 9T0Z/TZ/0T
9T0Z/0T/TT N¥YHL 9T10Z/T2/0T
s======gI¥(J ONIISOJ======

9TO0ZT/0T/TIT QVHL 9T0Z/1Z/0T
9T0Z/0T/TT N¥HI 9T0Z/TZ/0T
9T0Z/0T/TT N¥HL 910Z/1Z/0T
”“""”““"”WML‘L@Q ZMHH””""”"”

AdYWRWNAOS
d¥ :MNVd b=t NddLT
s UDYd ¥ d S L NAQ

m o
[
>

TYIOL ANVYED

HSNHEIXH TTIOUAYd =«

aNNd HONVANSNI TYOIJHEN 0ss8
TAWI T 4AYD ¥HIVM WJIOLS TZS
ALITILN YHIYM WIOLS 0c9o
aNOd ALITILO JHMES 019

TdWNI TdVD ALITTILN ¥IIVM z09
aNd ALITILO JHLYM 009
NOILVHIDHE ® SMUVd-"d D TT¢E
TWWOD A0 JOAI¥d0D - "d°D 60¢
SLEFALS "d°D 70t

SIOELO¥d DEdS/AR¥d FWNIUD 8LT
aNQdg XvI gsn a¥od 0TT

X¥I THIOW/THIOH 0TO

aNQd TYIEANED T00

STYIOL aNnA

° SHEIYA SWEILI QIVANA
9T0Z/0T/TT N¥HL 910Z/TZ/0T :SHIVA SWALI ATIVILNYA
9T0Z/0T/TIT QUHL 910Z/TZ/0T * SEIYA SWHELI QIVd
=======5EIVA INIWAYI======

TYILNYd ‘dIVAND ‘dI¥d :HONILIOAEY
o TIOxxeD J0 A3TD IO :1dS MOANIA
4 Z@owHOHwHONroﬁ|HH










City of Carroll
\4

112 E. 5th Sireet Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO:  Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager;&@?» “(/J

FROM: Jack Wardell, Director of Parks & Recreation W.P j
Greg Schreck, Fire Chief

DATE: November 8, 2016

SUBJECT:  Carroll Municipal Golf Course House

The City of Carroll requested sealed bids for the removal of the residential house
located on Carroll Municipal Golf Course however no sealed bids were received at
the time of the proposed bid opening. The notice to bidders was posted in the Daily
Times Herald several times.

It would be staff's recommendation to have the house removed from the site and
bring the area back to open green space. This would entail having the Carroll Fire
Department do a controlled burn for training purposes. There are a few steps/
requirements needed before removal of the house. These steps would include:

e Acquire a burn permit
e Asbestos testing
¢ |f needed, asbestos abatement

Fire Chief Greg Schreck mentioned the volunteer fire department would try plan a
day this winter with snow on the ground and little to no wind. Once the training is
complete the City will have the contents removed and the site brought back to grade
and all areas being reseeded and will return to green space.

RECOMMENDATION: For the Mayor and City Council consideration and approval
to allow the Carroll Fire Department to do a controlied burn for training purposes.
Once the house ftraining is complete the contents will be removed and the site
brought back to grade and all areas reseeded and will return to green space.







City of Carroll
¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM:  Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager|\/<& ™
DATE: November 9, 2016

SUBJECT: Committee Reports

I. Library Board (meets 3" or 4" Monday of month) —
Board of Adjustment (meets 1** Monday of month) —
Planning and Zoning Commission (meets 2" Wednesday of month) —

Carroll Airport Commission (meets 2" Monday of month) —

A

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Advisory Board (meets 3™ Monday of January, March,

May, July, September and November) —

Carroll County Solid Waste Management Commission (meets 2" Tuesday of month) — November 8, 2016
Historical Preservation Commission (no regular meeting dates) —

Safety Committee (no regular meeting dates) —

A P )

Civil Service Commission (as needed) —






CARROLL COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT COMMISSION
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING--UNOFFICIAL MINUTES

November 8, 2016

10.
1.
12,
13.
14.
15.
16.

The mesting was called to order at 8:00 a.m. by Chairman Marty Danzer, in the offices of the solid waste commission. Others in attendance were Harvey
Dales, City of Manning and Mike Schwabe, City of Breda. Also attending were Bob Muhlbauer, Commission CPA; Mary Wittry, Director and Dan Halbur,

Office Manager.
Agenda: Dales made the motion to approve the agenda and Schwabe seconded. Motion carried, all voting aye.

Schwabe made the motion and Dales seconded to approve the minutes of the Executive Board Meeting on October 11, 2016. Motion carried, all voting
aye.

Dales reviewed the Bills Payable--see attached. Wittry went over the following: King Construction --$565560.77—3rd payment: leachate force main project
work completion to date less retainage; Carroll Hydraulics--$1511.56— baler hose rebuild and replace; Foth--$16069.58— consulting, sampling, force
main project; lowa Communities Assurance Pool--$15400.63—liability insurance; Metta Technologies--$24395.00—windscreens; R & R Septic Services --
$1924.89—recycle center hook up to sanitary sewer; Tiefenthaler Ag-Lime --$2108.88—freight on 5 loads of glass. Dales made the motion and Schwabe
seconded to approve the bills as presented. Motion carried, all voting aye.

Halbur presented the financial report --see attached. Schwabe made the motion and Dales seconded to approve the financial report as presented. Motion
carried, all voting aye.

Muhlbauer discussed the final June 30, 2016 audit report. Dales made the motion and Schwabe seconded to approve the June 30, 2016 audit as
presented. Motion carried, all voting aye.

Force main/sanitary sewer update: Leachate system completed and operational and sanitary sewer hookup to recycle center completed.

Inmate transportation and supervision update: Wittry reported that Midas has transported inmates last Tuesday for the first time and discussed the need
to transport inmates from the litter site to the restroom and breakroom. This service will not be provided by Midas.

Update on special waste: Wittry updated the board on the special waste of a local business. No action taken.

Discussion on budget items: Witty discussed the replacement of equipment for the next year, No action taken.

Landfill update: Wittry reported that the drone survey was last Thursday and results will be presented next spring.

Recycling update: Prices have been holding steady.

Free compost give away information: Wittry reported there were 40 participants and that ¥ will be using compost for the first time.
Next meeting date: December 13, 2016 at 8:00 a.m.

Other: Nothing new discussed,

Schwabe made the motion and Dales seconded to adjourn the meeting at 9:08 a.m. Motion carried, all voting aye.

Respectfully submitted by:

Dan Halbur







COUNCIL MEETING
OCTOBER 24, 2016

(Please note these are draft minutes and may be amended by Council before final approval.)

The Carroll City Council met in regular session on this date at 5:15 p.m. at the Council
Chamber of the Farner Government Building. Members present: Misty Boes, Jerry Fleshner,
Clay Haley, Mike Kots, Carolyn Siemann and Brandon VVonnahme. Absent: None. Mayor Eric
Jensen presided and City Attorney Dave Bruner was in attendance.

R e

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the City Council. No Council action taken.

R I i e

New City Manager Mike Pogge-Weaver was introduced. No Council action taken.
* ok ok ok ok kk
It was moved by Kots, seconded by Haley, to approve the minutes of the October 10,
2016 council meeting as written. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion
carried.
* ok ok ok ok kk
It was moved by Kots, seconded by Haley, to approve the bills and claims in the amount
of $507,338.54. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.
* ok ok k ok kk
It was moved by Kots, seconded by Haley, to approve the renewal of the following
licenses and permits:
1. Renewal of Class “B” Beer Permit including Wine Coolers with Sunday Sales —
Godfather’s Pizza
2. Renewal of Class “E” Liquor License with Carryout Beer and Carryout Wine
including Native Wine — Fareway Stores, Inc. #409
3. Renewal of Class “C” Liquor License with Outdoor Service — Ossy’s Show
Club/Piranha Club
4. Renewal of Class “C” Liquor License with Outdoor Service and Sunday Sales —
Rancho Grande
5. Renewal of Class “C” Liquor License with Sunday Sales — Hy-Vee Market Cafe
On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.

*khk Kk Kk k%





Becky Law, owner of Denny’s, addressed Council during the oral requests and
communications from the audience. No Council action taken.
* ok k k kK K
It was moved by Haley, seconded by Vonnahme, to approve Resolution No. 1674,
Assignment of Residential Solid Waste Hauling Agreement. On roll call, all present voted aye.
Absent: None. Motion carried.
* ok k k kK K
It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Haley, to accept the receipt of bids and approve
Resolution No. 1675, Directing Sale of General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2016B.
On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.
* ok ok k kK
It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Haley, to approve Resolution No. 1676,
Preliminary Plat for Re-Subdivision of Part Outlot “B” of Southwest Development Park to the
City of Carroll, Carroll County, lowa, Exc. Lot 7 said Southwest Development Park. On roll call,
all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.
* ok ok ok ok kk
It was moved by Kots, seconded by Siemann, to approve Resolution No. 1677, Final Plat
for Re-Subdivision of Part Outlot “B” of Southwest Development Park to the City of Carroll,
Carroll County, lowa, Exc. Lot 7 said Southwest Development Park. On roll call, all present
voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.
* ok ok k kK K
It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Vonnahme, to approve Resolution No. 1678,
Accepting a Standard Agreement for Professional Services — Graham Park Well Installation and
Site Monitoring with Allender Butzke Engineers, Inc. in the amount of $7,500.00. On roll call,
all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.
* ok ok k kK K
It was moved by Siemann, seconded by Haley, to decline the proposal from FEH Design
for a tennis court repair and renovation study. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None.
Motion carried.
* ok k k kK K
It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by VVonnahme, to approve the Letter of Intent, as
presented, with DMBA Properties and Consulting, Inc. On roll call, all present voted aye.

Absent: None. Motion carried.





* Kk Kk ik

It was moved by Haley, seconded by Fleshner, to approve Change Order No. 1 to the
High Ridge Road HMA Resurfacing Project. The effect of Change Order No. 1 on the contract
price is as follows:

Original Contract Price $1,149,123.40
Change Order No. 1 110,832.76
Contract Price with Change Order $1,259,956.16

On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.
*ok ok k kKK
It was moved by Haley, seconded by Vonnahme, to approve Change Order No. 1 to the
Carroll Merchants Baseball Stadium Renovation — 2016 Contract. The effect of Change Order
No. 1 on the contract price is as follows:

Original Contract Price $831,000.00
Change Order No. 1 25,377.00
Contract Price with Change Order $856,377.00

On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.

* k kX kK %

It was moved by Vonnahme, seconded by Fleshner, to accept the bid from Van Wall

Equipment for the purchase of a 60” front mount mower (with cab and blower) at their bid price of

$25,499.00. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.

* *k k* Kk Kk k%

It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kots, to accept the bid from Van Wall Equipment for

the purchase of a 100” front mount mower at their bid price of $23,718.89. On roll call, all present
voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.
* ok ok k kK K
It was moved by Vonnahme, seconded by Haley, to set Monday, November 14, 2016 as the
date for a public hearing for the FY 2016/2017 Budget Amendment #1. On roll call, all present
voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.
* ok kkk Kk
Public Works Director/City Engineer Randy Krauel conducted a work session with
Council regarding the Wastewater National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
Permit which becomes effective November 1, 2016. No Council action taken.

* Kk k* Kk kK%





It was moved by Vonnahme, seconded by Fleshner, to adjourn at 6:59 p.m. On roll call,

all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.

Eric P. Jensen, Mayor
ATTEST:

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk






COUNCIL MEETING

NOVEMBER 7, 2016
The Carroll City Council met in special session on this date at 4:00 p.m. at Region
X1l Council of Government offices. Council Members present: Misty Boes, Jerry
Fleshner, Clay Haley, Mike Kots (arrived at 4:10 p.m.), Carolyn Siemann, and Brandon

Vonnahme (arrived at 4:15 p.m.). Absent: None. Mayor Eric Jensen presided.

The City Council held their annual goal setting session with Jeff Schott, Program

Director for the Institute of Public Affairs, serving as facilitator. No Council action taken.

The Council properly adjourned at 7:25 p.m.

Eric P. Jensen, Mayor
ATTEST:

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk






City of Carroll
¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

e’
MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager {’M’\? 7
/h
FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerk w
DATE: November 1, 2016

SUBJECT: F.Y. 2016 State Annual Financial Report

Attached is a copy of the State Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2016.
This report is required by Chapter 384.22 of the Code of lIowa and is to be filed with the
Office of the Auditor of Sate by December 1, 2016. Also, the first page of the report is
required to be published and a proof of publication must be mailed when the report is returned
to the Office of the Auditor of State. The report summarizes all the revenues and expenses as
well as the outstanding debt for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016.

If you have any questions about the report, please stop by City Hall or call me.

RECOMMENDATION: Council acceptance and authorization for publication of the State
Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2016.






Form F-66 (IA-2)
{6-30-2016)

STATE OF IOWA

2016
FINANCIAL REPORT
FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2016
CARROLL
CITY OF CARROLL

DUE: December 1, 2016

16201400300000
City Clerk

112 E 5th Street
Carroll, 1A 51401

(Please correct any error in name, address, and ZIP Code)

Mary Mosiman, CPA

c orml_?;ED, Office of Auditor of State NOTE - The information supplied in this report will be shared by the lowa State
PLEASE Lucas State Office Building Auditor’s Office, th.e U.S. Census Bureau, various public interest groups, and State
RETURN TO 321 E. 12th Street, 2nd Floor and federal agencies.
Des Moines, IA 50319
ALL FUNDS
Item description Governmental Proprietary Total actual Budget
(a) (b) © (d)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Taxes levied on property 5,459,701 5,459,701 5,337,980
Less: Uncoliected property taxes-levy year 0 0
Net current property taxes 5,459,701 5,459,701 5,337,980
Delinquent properly taxes 0 0
TIF revenues 896,827 896,827 924,411
Other city taxes 1,728,626 0 1,728,626 1,854,367
Licenses and permits 82,998 0 82,998 66,375
Use of money and property 81,388 71,847 153,235 112,995
Intergovernmentat 1,945,618 0 1,945 518 2,553,159
Charges for fees and service 1,720,850 3,706,318 5,427,168 5,295,924
Special assessments 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 297,625 84,372 381,897 285,480
Other financing sources 4,711,184 1,640,792 6,351,976 7,357,564
Total revenues and other sources 16,924,617 5,503,329 22,427,946 23,788,255
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Public safety 1,938,331 0 1,938,331 2,131,026
Public works 2,065,192 0 2,065,192 2,240,199
Health and social services 100,325 0 100,325 109,945
Culture and recreation 2,521,116 0 2,521,116 3,202,700
Community and economic development 145,531 0 145,531 162,598
General government 974,942 [} 974,942 1,074,629
Debt service 2,850,790 0 2,850,790 2,850,825
Capital projects 2,551,695 0 2,551,695 4,537,100
Total governmental activities
expenditures 13,147,922 0 13,147,922 16,309,022
Business type aclivities 0 4,531,548 4,531,548 6,021,997
Total ALL expenditures 13,147,922 4,531,548 17,679,470 22,331,019
Other financing uses, including transfers out 3,434,127 2,007,849 5,441,976 6,447,564
Total ALL expenditures/And
other financing uses 16,582,049 6,539,397 23,121,446 28,778,583
Excess revenues and other sources over
{Under) Expenditures/And other
financing uses 342,568 -1,036,068 -693,500 -4,990,328
| Beginning fund balance July 1, 2015 10,078,802 8,263,422 18,342,224 18,342,224
Ending fund balance June 30, 2016 10,421,370 7,227,354 17,648,724 13,351,896
Note - These balances do not include $ 439,919 held in non-budgeted internal service funds; $
held in Pension Trust Funds; $ held in Private Purpose Trust funds and $
held in agency funds which were not budgeted and are not available for city operations.
Indebtedness at June 30, 2016 Amount - Omit cents Indebtedness at June 30, 2016 Amount - Omit cents
General obligation debt $ 2,605,000| Other long-term debt $ 0
Revenue debt $ 5,766,000| Short-term debt $ 0
TIF Revenue debt $ 0
General obligaﬁon debt limit $ 37,881,592
CERTIFICATION
THE FOREGOING REPORT IS CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF
Signature of city clerk Date Published/Posted|  Mark (x) one
[X] pate Published
[ ] Date Posted
Printed name of city clerk Area Code Number Extension
Laura A. Schaefer Telephone — 712 792-100
Signature of Mayor or other City official (Name and Title) Date signed

PLEASE PUBLISH THIS PAGE ONLY






Part| REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 CITY OF CARROLL DGAAP ENON-GAAP = CASH BASIS
Indicate by entering an X in the appropriate box on this sheet ONLY
Total
TIF special governmental GRAND TOTAL
Line ltem description General Special revenue revenue Debt service | Capital projects Permanent (Sum of cols, Proprietary Code| (Sumofcols. | Line
No. (a) through (f)) (@) and (h)) No.
(@ (b) (©) (d) (e} ® (@) (h) 10)

1 |Section A - TAXES 1

2 |Taxes levied on property 3,983,734 824,723 651,244 5,459,701 5,4589,701] 2

3 Less: Uncollected property taxes - Levy year 0 o 3

4 Net current property taxes 3,983,734 824,723 651,244 0 5,459,701 T01 5459,701] 4

5 Delinquent property taxes o] T01 0] 5

6 Total property tax 3,983,734 824,723 651,244 0 0 5,459,701 5,459,701 6

7 __|TIF revenues 896,827 896,827 T01 896,827| 7

Other city taxes

8 Utility tax replacement excise taxes 0 T15 0 8

] Utility franchise tax (Chapter 364.2, Code of lowa) 69,352 69,352 T15 69,352 9
10 | Parimutuel wager tax 0 C30 0] 10
11 Gaming wager tax o] C30 0y 11
12 | Mobile home tax 0 T19 of 12
13 Hotelimotel tax 259,272 259,272 T19 259,272| 13
14 | Other local option taxes 1,400,002 1,400,002 T09 1,400,002 14
15 TOTAL OTHER CITY TAXES 328,624 1,400,002 0 0 0 0 1,728,626 [¢] 1,728,626 15
16 [Section B - LICENSES AND PERMITS 82,998 82,998 T29 82,998] 16
17 |Section C - USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY 17
18 Interest 26,744 7,568 1,011 4,667 5,008 1,887 46,883 34,167| U20 81,050 18
19 | Rents and royalties 34,505 34,505 37,680| U40 72,185] 19
20 | Other miscellaneous use of money and property 0 U20 0] 20
21 0 0 21
22 TOTAL USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY 61,249 7,568 1,011 4,667 5,006 1,887 81,388 71,847 153,235[ 22
23 23
24 |Section D - INTERGOVERNMENTAL 24
25 25
26 |Federal grants and reimbursements 26
27 Federal grants 41,163 299,399 340,562 B89 340,862 27
28 | Community development block grants 0 B50 0| 28
29 | Housing and urban development 0 B50 0| 29
30 | Public Ice grants 0 B79 0] 30
31 Payment in lieu of taxes 0 B30 0] 31
32 0 0} 32
33 Totai Federal grants and reimbursements 41,163 0 Q 0 299,399 0 340,562 0 340,562 33
34 34
35 35
36 36
37 37
38 38
39 39
40 40

Continued on next page
Continued on next page Page 2

FORM F-66(IA-2) (6-1-2016)






REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 — Continued CITY OF CARROLL DGAAP ENON-GAAP = CASH BASIS
Total
TIF special governmental GRAND TOTAL
Line Item description General Special revenue revenue Debt service | Capital projects Permanent (Sum of cols. Proprietary Code| (Sum of cols. | Line
No. (a) through (f)) (@) and (h)) No.
(a) (b) () (d) (e) ® (q) (h) 0]

41 _|Section D - INTERGOVERNMENTAL - Continued i R 41
42 | 42
43 |State shared revenues 43
44 | Road use taxes 44
45 | 45
46 46
YA R Rt 47
48 i sl ] 48
49 | State grants 0 C89 0] 49
50 | lowa Department of Transportation 0 Cc89 0} 50
51 lowa Department of Natural Resources 0 C89 0} 51
52 | lowa Economic Development Authority 0 C89 0} 52
53 | CEBA grants o] C89 0| 53
54 Commercial & Industrial Replacement Claim 198,967 41,190 10,039 30,615 280,811 C89 280,811| 54
55 State Library Approriations 5,835 3,245 9,080 9080 55
56 State Tobacco Funding 900 900 900]| 56
57 0 0] 57
58 0 0| 58
59 0 0| 59
60 Total state 1,539,312 60
61 ol 61
62 |Local grants and reimbursements ] 62
63 | County contributions 37,745 37,745 37,745] 63
64 | Library service 0 D89 0| 64
65 | Township contributions 27,899 27,899 D89 27,899 65
66 | Fire/EMT service Q D8g 0| 66
67 0 D89 0] 67
68 0 0] 68
69 0 0| 69
70 Total local grants and reimbur 1t 65,644 0 0 0 0 0 65,644 0 65644| 70
71 TOTAL lNTERGO_\QERNMENTAL {Sum of lines 33, 60, and 70) 311,609 1,293,856 10,039 30,615 299,39 0 1,945,518 0 1,945,518| 71
72 _|Section E - CHARGES FOR FEES AND SERVICE BN 72
73 Water 0 1,398,764 A91 1.398,7641 73
74 Sewer 0 2,047 ,445| A8Q 2,047 445 74
75 | Electric 0 A92 0| 75
76 Gas 0 A93 0] 76
77 | Parking [¢] ABY o 77
78 | Airport 0 Ag1 0| 78
79 | Landfilllgarbage 511,519 511,519 A1 511,5619| 79
80 | Hospital 0 A36 0] 80

Continued on next page

Page 3

FORM F-66(IA-2) (6-1-2016)






REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 — Continued CITY OF CARROLL DGAAP ENON-GAAP = CASH BASIS
Total
TIF special governmental GRAND TOTAL
Line Item description General Special revenue revenue Debt service |Capital projects Permanent (Sum of cols. Proprietary Code| (Sum ofcols. | Line
No. (a) through (f)) (g) and (h)) No.
@ (b) (c) (d) (e) [0} Q) (h (0]
81 [Section E - CHARGES FOR FEES AND SERVICE - Continued 81
82 | Transit 46,370 48,370 A94 46,370 82
83 | Cable TV 0 T15 0| 83
84 | Internet 0 A03 0| 84
85 | Telephone 0 A03 ol 85
86 | Housing authority 0 AS50 0| 86
87 Storm water 0 260,109| A80 260,109| 87
88 | Other: 88
89 Nursing home 0 A89 0| 89
90 Police service fees 270 6,050 6,320 A89 6,320{ 90
91 Prisoner care 0 A89 o] 91
92 Fire service charges 10 10 A89 10{ 92
93 Ambulance charges 0 A89 0] 93
94 Sidewalk street repair charges 11,385 11,385 Ad4 11,385| 94
385 Housing and urban renewal charges 0 ASQ 0} 95
96 River port and terminal fees 0 A87 0| 96
97 Public scales 0 AB9 0| 97
98 Cemetery charges 36,705 36,705 A03 36,705 98
99 Library charges 0 A89 0f 99
100 Park, recreation, and cultural charges 1,108,541 1,108,541 AB1 1,108,541 100
101 Animal control charges 0 AB9 0f 101
102 Other charges - Specity 0 0} 102
103 0 0j 103
104 TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICE 1,714,800 6,050 0 0 1,720,850 3,706,318 5,427,168 104
105 105
106 {Section F - SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 0 Uo1 0] 106
107 |Section G - MISCELLANEOUS 107
108 | Contributions 64,652 7,023 20,000 91,675 4,368] Ug9 96,043| 108
109 | Deposits and sales/fuel tax refunds 1,871 1,871 12,650 U99 14,521} 109
110 | Sale of property and merchandise 107,112 8.852 18,450 134,414 32,070| U11 166,484 110
111 | Fines 69,565 69,565 35,284 U30 104,849| 111
112 | Internal service charges 0 NR 0] 112
113 | Other miscellaneous - Specify 0 0} 113
114 0 0] 114
115 0 0| 115
116 0 0] 116
117 0 ol 117
118 0 0] 118
119 0 0] 119
120 TOTAL MISCELLANEOQUS 243,200 15,875 20,000 18,450 297,525 84,372 381,897| 120
Continued on next page Page 4

FORM F-66(IA-2) (6-1-2016)






Part| REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 ~ Continued CITY OF CARROLL. I:IGAAP ENON-GAAP = CASH BASIS
Total
TIF special governmental GRAND TOTAL
Line Item description General Special revenue revenue Debt service | Capital projects Permanent (Sum of cols. Proprietary Code| (Sum ofcols. | Line
No. (a) through (f)) (g) and (h)) No.
(@) (b (© (d) (e) ® 1)) (W) (0]

TOTAL ALL REVENUES (Sum of lines 6, 7, 15,16,22
121 71, 104, 106, and 120) 6,726,214 3,548,074 907,877 686,526 324,405 20,337 12,213,433 3,862,537 16,075,970 121
122 122
123 |Section H - OTHER FINANCING SQURCES 123
124 | Proceeds of capital asset sales 0 NR ol 124
125 | Proceeds of long-term debt (Excluding TIF internal borrowing ) 910,000 910,000 NR 910,000| 125
126 | Proceeds of anticipatory warrants or other short-term debt 0 A89 0] 126
127 Regular transfers in and interfund loans 872,217 146,697 398,730 1,281,991 2,700,635 766,872 3,467,507| 127
128 Internal TIF loans and transfers in 1,232 34,317 1,065,000 1,100,549 873,920 1,974,469| 128
129 0 0] 128
130 0 0] 130
131 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 873,449 146,697 0 434,047 3,256,991 0 4,711,184 1,640,792 6,351,976 131

TOTAL REVENUES except for beginning balances
132 (Sum of lines 121 and 131) 7,599,663 3,694,771 907,877 1,120,573 3,581,396 20,337 16,924,617 5,503,329 22,427,946| 132
133 133
134 [Beginning fund balance July 1, 2015 3,549,536] 2,392,602] 64,170] 1,825,629 1,791,887] 454,978] 10,078,802] 8,263,422] 18,342,224 134
135 135

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (Sum
136 of lines 132 and 134) 11,149,199 6,087,373 972,047 2,946,202 5,373,283 475,315 27,003 419 13,766,751 40,770,170| 136
737 137
138 138
139 139
140 140
141 141
142 142
143 143
144 144
145 145
146 146
147 147
148 148
149 149
150 150
151 151
152 152
153 153
154 154
155 155
156 156
157 157
158 158
159 159

Continued on next page Page 5 FORM F-66(IA-2) (6-1-2016)






Part Il EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 CITY OF CARROLL DGAAP ENON-GAAP = CASH BASIS
Total
TIF special governmental GRAND TOTAL|
Line ltem description General Special revenue revenue Debt service | Capital projects Permanent (Sum of cols. Proprietary Code (Sum of Line
No. (a) through (f)) col. (@) No.
@ (b) (© (d) (e) ® @ (h) 0]
1 Section A — PUBLIC SAFETY 1
2 |Police department/Crime prevention — Current operation 1,415,353 9,389 1,424,742 E62 1424742 2
3 Purchase of land and equipment 53,512 53,512 G62 53,512 3
4 Construction 0 F62 0] 4
5 |Jail — Current operation 0 E04 0] 5
6 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G04 0] 6
7 Construction 0 F04 ol 7
8 _|Emergency management — Current operation 4] E89 ol 8
9 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G89 o] 9
10 |Flood control — Current operation 0 E59 of 10
11 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G59 0] 11
12 Construction 0 F59 of 12
13 _|Fire department — Current operation 90,461 90,461 E24 90,461 13
14 Purchase of land and equipment 46,719 46,719 G24 46,719 14
15 Construction 0 F24 o] 15
16 _|Ambulance ~— Current operation 0 E32 0] 16
17 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G32 0] 17
18 |Building inspections — Current operation 139,038 139,039 E66 138,039| 18
19 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G66 0] 18
20 Construction 0 F66 0] 20
21__[Miscellaneous protective services — Current operation 181,353 181,353 EE6 181,353] 21
22 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G686 of 22
23 Construction 0 F66 0l 23
24 |Animal control — Current operation 0 E32 0] 24
25 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G32 0] 25
26 Construction 0 F32 0] 26
27 |Other public safety — Current operation 2,505 2,505 E89 2,505 27
28 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G89 0] 28
29 0 0] 239
30 0 0] 30
31 0 0] 31
32 0 0| 32
33 0 0| 33
34 0 0] 34
35 0 0| 35
36 0 0| 36
37 0 0| 37
38 0 0| 38
39 0 0| 39
40 TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 1,928,942 9,389 0 1,938,331 1,938,331] 40
Continued on next page Page 6 FORM F-66(IA-2) (6-1-20186)






Part 1l EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 — Continued CITY OF CARROLL DGAAP ENON-GAAP = CASH BASIS
Total
TIF special governmental GRAND TOTAL
Line Item description General Special revenue revenue Debt service | Capital projects Permanent (Sum of cols. Proprietary Code (Sum of Line
No. (a) through () col. (g)) No.
(@) &) () (d) (e) ® @ (h) ®
41 |Section B — PUBLIC WORKS 41
42 |Roads, bridges, sidewalks — Current operation 36,043 550,461 586,504 E44 586,504| 42
43 Purchase of land and equipment 26,015 26,015 G44 26,015] 43
44 Construction 0 F44 0] 44
45 | Parking meter and off-street — Current operation 0 E60 0] 45
46 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G60 0| 46
47 Construction 0 F60 of 47
48 |Street lighting — Current operation 164,178 164,178 E44 164,178 48
49 |Traffic control safety — Current operation 0 E44 0 49
50 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G44 0| 50
51 Construction 0 F44 of 51
52 |Snow removal — Current operation 125,259 125,259 E44 125,259 52
53 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G44 0| 53
54 |Highway engineering — Current operation 0 E44 0| 54
55 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G44 0| 55
56 Construction 0 F44 o 56
57 | Street cleaning — Current operation 19,539 19,539 E81 19,639| &7
58 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G381 0] 58
59 |Airport (if not an enterprise) — Current operation 162,400 162,400 E01 162,400 59
60 Purchase of land and equipment 0 Go1 0] 60
61 Construction 0 FO1 0] 61
62 |Garbage (if not an enterprise) — Current operation 639,722 639,722 E81 639,722] 62
63 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G81 0] 63
64 Construction 0 F81 0] 64
85 |Other public works — Current operation 182,934 158,641 341,575 E89 341,575| 65
66 Purchase of land and equipment o] G89 0} 66
67 Construction 4} F89 0] 67
68 0 0} 68
69 o] 0f 69
70 o] 0] 70
71 0 0 7
72 0 0] 72
73 0 0 73.
74 0 0| 74
75 0 ol 75
76 0 0| 76
77 0 0l 77
78 0 0| 78
79 0 0] 79
80 TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 1,185,277 879,915 0 2,065,192 2,085,192| 80
Continued on next page Page 7 FORM F-66(IA-2) (6-1-2016)






Part 11 EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 — Continued CITY OF CARROLL DGAAP ENON-GAAP = CASH BASIS
Total
TIF special governmental GRAND TOTAL
Line Item description General Special revenue revenue Debt service | Capital projects Permanent (Sum of cols. Proprietary Code (Sum of Line
No. (a) through (f)) col. (g)) No.
(a) (b) © (d) (e) ® (@ ()] 0]
81 _[Section C — HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES 81
82 |Welfare assistance — Current operation 0 E79 0] 82
83 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G79 0] 83
84 |City hospital — Current operation 0 E36 0] 84
85 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G36 0| 85
86 Construction 0 F36 0| 86
87 [Payments to private hospitals — Current operation 0 E36 0] 87
88 _|Health regulation and inspections — Current operation 0 E32 0j 88
89 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G32 0] 89
90 Construction 4] F32 0} 90
91 |Water, air, and mosquito control — Current operation 4] E32 0] o1
92 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G32 0] 92
93 Construction 0 F32 of 93
94 _|Community mental health — Current operation 0 E32 0] 94
95 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G32 of 95
96 Construction 0 F32 of 96
97 |Other health and social services — Current operation 100,325 100,325 E79 100,325 97
98 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G79 0| @98
99 Construction 0 F79 0| 99
100 0 0| 100
101 0 0] 101
102 0 0| 102
103 TOTAL HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES 100,325 0 0 100,325 100,325| 103
104 104
105 105
106 106
107 107
108 108
109 108
110 110
111 111
112 112
113 113
114 114
115 115
116 116
117 117
118 118
119 119
120 120
Continued on next page Page 8 FORM F-66(IA-2) (6-1-2016)






Part II EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 ~ Continued CITY OF CARROLL DGAAP ENON-GAAP = CASH BASIS
Total
TIF special governmental GRAND TOTAL
Line Item description General Special revenue| revenue Debt service | Capital projects Permanent (Sum of cols. Proprietary Code (Sum of Line
No. (a) through (f)) col. (@) No.
(@ (b) © (d) (e) ® )] (h) 0]
121 [Section D — CULTURE AND RECREATION 121
122 |Library services — Current operation 416,961 9,062 426,023 ES2 426,023| 122
123 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G52 0] 123
124 Construction 0 F52 0] 124
125 |Museum, band, theater — Current operation 10,538 10,538 E61 10,538] 125
126 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G81 0| 126
127 _|Parks — Current operation 397,186 397,186 E61 397,186| 127
128 Purchase of land and equipment 61,096 61,096 G61 61,096 128
129 Construction 0 F61 o[ 129
130_[Recreation — Current operation 1,373,744 4,608 283 1,378,635 E61 1,378,635] 130
131 Purchase of land and equipment 98,768 11,138 109,906 G61 109,906 131
132 Construction 0 F61 0] 132
133 |Cemetery ~— Current operation 124,670 124,670 EO03 124,670] 133
134 Purchase of land and equipment 12,650 12,650 Go3 12,650] 134
135 |Community center, zoo, marina, and auditorium 0 E61 0] 135
136 _|Other culture and recreation 412 412 E61 412| 136
137 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G61 0] 137
138 Construction 0 F&1 0] 138
139 TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION 2,496,025 24,808 0 283 0 2,521,116 2,521,116{ 139
140 |Section E -~ COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 140
141_|Community beautification — Current operation 0 E89 ol 141
142 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G89 0o 142
143 _|Economic development — Current operation 66,150 66,150 E89 66,150 143
144 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G89 0| 144
145 |Housing and urban renewal — Current operation 20,000 1,685 21,685 ES0 21,685| 145
146 Purchase of land and equipment Q G50 0| 146
147 Construction 0 F50 0| 147
148 |Planning and zoning — Current operation 271 271 E29 271] 148
149 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G298 0] 149
150 |Other community and economic development — Current operation 57,177 57,177 E89 57,177] 150
151 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G8g 0] 151
152 Construction 0 F89 0] 152
153 TIF Rebates 248 248 E89 248| 153
154 TOTAL COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 143,598 0 1,933 0 0 0 145,531 1455311 154
1:2 TIF Rebates are expended out of the TIF Special 1:2
Revenue Fund within the Community and Economic
1 gg Development program's activity "Other” 155_,;

Continued on next page

Page 9

FORM F-86(IA-2) (6-1-2016)






Partll EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 — Continued CITY OF CARROLL DGAAP ENON-GAAP = CASH BASIS
Total
TIF special governmental GRAND TOTAL
Line Item description General Special revenue revenue Debt service | Capital projects Permanent (Sum of cols. Proprietary Code (Sum of Line
No. (2) through (f)) col. () No.
@ ()] (©) )] (© @ @ (h) ®
159 |Section F — GENERAL GOVERNMENT 159
160 |Mayor, council and city manager — Current operation 26,115 26,115 £29 26,115] 160
161 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G29 0| 161
162 |Clerk, Treasurer, financial administration — Current operation 433,467 433,467 E23 433,467] 162
163 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G23 0} 163
164 _|Elections — Current operation 5,034 5,034 E89 5,034 164
165 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G89 0] 165
166_[Legal services and city attorney -— Current operation 38,445 38,445 E25 38,445| 166
167 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G25 0} 167
168 _|City hall and general buildings — Current operation 84,484 84,484 E31 84,484| 168
169 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G31 0| 169
170 Construction 0 F31 o 170
171_|Tort liability — Current operation 274,473 274,473 E89 274,473] 171
172 _|Other general government — Current operation 112,924 112,924 E89 112,924 172
173 Purchase of land and equipment 0 G89 of 173
174 0 0| 174
175 0 0] 175
176 TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 974,942 0 0 0 0 0 974,942 974,942| 176
177 |Section G — DEBT SERVICE 2,850,790 2,850,790 2,850,790 177
178 0 0] 178
179 0 0] _179
180 0 0| 180
181 0 of 181
182 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 0 0 0 2,850,790 0 0 2,850,790 2,850,790 182
183 |Section H — REGULAR CAPITAL PROJECTS — Specify 0| 183
184 | Street Sweeper/street improvements 1,550,687 1,550,687 1,550,687| 184
185 Airport runway improvements 294,280 294,280 294,280| 185
186 | Rec projects 572,901 572,901 572,901 186
187 Subtotal Regular Capital Projects 4] 0 [4] 2,417,868 0 2,417,868 2,417,868| 187
188 — TIF.CAPITAL PROJECTS — Specify -0] 188
189 | Streetscape improvements 90,400 90,400 90,400| 189
180 | US 30/Hwy 30 Intersection 43,427 43,427 43,427| 190
191 0 o 191
192 Subtotal TIF Capital Projects 0 0 0 0 133,827 0 133,827 133,827 192
193 TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 0 0 0 0 2,551,695 0 2,551,695 2,551,695 193
194 TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES EXPENDITURES 6,829,109 914,112 1,933 2,850,790 2,551,978 0 13,147,922 13,147,922 194
195 igum of lines 40, 80, 103, 139, 154, 176, 182, 193) 195
196 196
Continued on next page Page 10 FORM F-66(IA-2) (6-1-2016)






Part II EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 — Continued CITY OF CARROL.L DGAAP ENON-GAAP = CASH BASIS
Total current
TIF governmental GRAND TOTAL
Line Item description General Special revenue |Special revenue| Debt service |Capital projects| Permanent Fund| (Sum of cols. Proprietary Code (Sum of Line
No. (a) through (f)) col. (h)) No.
(@ (b) © (d) (e) ® (@) (h) ®
197 [Section | — BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - 197
198 [Water — Current operation 562,334| E91 562,334| 198
199 Purchase of land and equipment 530,137| G91 530,137 199
200 Construction F91 0 200
201 [Sewer and sewage disposal — Current operation 627,902| E80 627,902{ 201
202 Purchase of land and equipment G80 0} 202
203 Construction F80 0] 203
204 |Electric — Current operation E92 0] 204
205 Purchase of land and equipment G92 0| 205
206 Construction F92 0| 208
207 |Gas Utility — Current operation E93 0] 207
208 Purchase of land and equipment G93 0| 208
209 Construction F93 0| 209
210 |Parking — Current operation E60 0] 210
211 Purchase of land and equipment G60 0] 211
212 Construction F60 0] 212
213 _|Airport — Current operation EO1 0} 213
214 Purchase of land and equipment GO01 0l 214
215 Construction FO1 0] 215
216 |Landfill/Garbage — Current operation E81 0} 216
217 Purchase of land and equipment G81 0| 217
218 Construction F81 0] 218
218 |Hospital — Current operation E36 0f 219
220 Purchase of land and equipment G36 0f 220
221 Construction F36 0] 221
222 |Transit — Current operation E94 0| 222
223 Purchase of land and equipment G94 0] 223
224 Construction F94 0| 224
225 |Cable TV, telephone, Internet — Current operation E03 0| 225
226 Purchase of land and equipment G03 0] 226
227 [Housing authority — Current operation E50 0| 227
228 Purchase of land and equipment G50 0] 228
229 Construction F50 o 229
230 |Storm water — Current operation 6,584| E80 6,684| 230
231 Purchase of land and equipment G80 ol 231
232 Construction 140,946| F80 140,946( 232
233 233
234 234
235 235
236 236
Continued on next page Page 11 FORM F-66(IA-2) (6-1-2016)






Part Il EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANGING USES FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 — Continued CITY OF CARROLL DGAAP ENON-GAAP = CASH BASIS
Total
TIF special govemmental GRAND TOTAL
Line ltem description General Special revenue revenue Debt service | Capital projects Permanent (Sum of cols. Proprietary Code| (Sum of cols. | Line
No. (a) through (f)) (@) and (h)) No.
@ ()] (©) (@) (&) (U] @ )] 0]
237 _|Section | — BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES — Cont. 237
238 |Other business type — Current operation E89 0| 238
239 Purchase of land and equipment G89 0| 239
240 Construction F89 0} 240
241 241
242 Enterprise Debt Service 675,300 675,300 242
243 Enterprise_Capital Projects 1,988,345 1,988,345] 243
244 Enterprise TIF Capital Projects 0 244
245 Internal service funds — Specify 245
246 0] 246
247 0 247
248 0} 248
249 0 249
250 0] 250
251 TOTAL BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES 4,531,548 4,531,548| 251
252 252
253 TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Sum of lines 194 and 2517) 6,829,109] 914,112] 1,933] 2,850,790] 2,551,078] o] 13147,922] 4,531,548 17,679,470 253
Section J — OTHER FINANCING USES INCLUDING TRANSFERS
254 |OUT NE 254
255 Regular transfers out 256,990 2,257,951 9,717 2,524,658 942,849 3,467,507| 255
256 Intemmal TIF loans/repayments and transfers out 909,469 909,469 1,065,000 1,974,469 256
257 Y] 0] 257
258 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES 256,990 2,257,951 909,469 0 9,717 0 3,434,127 2,007,849 5,441,976 258
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
259 (Sum of lines 253 and 2582 7.086,099 3.172.063 911,402 2.850.790 2 561,695 o] 16.582.049 6.539.397 23 121,446 259
260 260
261 |Ending fund balance June 30, 2016: 261
262 |Governmental: 262
263 Nonspendable 475,315 475,315 475315| 263
264 Restricted 289,155 2,757,986 60,645 95412 3,203,198 3,203,198 264
265 Committed 571,285 2,811,588 3,382,873 3,382,873} 265
266 Assigned 302,778 167,324 460,102 460,102| 266
267 Unassigned 2,899,882 2,899,882 2,899,882 267
268 Total Governmental 4,063,100 2,915,310 60,645 95,412 2,811,588 475,315 10,421,370 10,421,370 268
269 |Proprietary 7,227,354 7,227,354 269
270 Total ending fund balance June 30, 2016 4,063,100] 2,915,310} 60,645] 95.412] 2,811,588] 475,315] 10,421,370 7,227,354 17,648,724 270
271 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS (Sum of fines 259 and 270} 11,149,199] 6,087,373] 972,047] 2,946,202] 5,373,283] 475,315] 27,003,419 13,766,751 40,770,170] 271
272 272
Continued on next page Page 12 FORM F-66(1A-2) (6-1-2016)






Part ili INTERGOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES CITY OF CARROLL
Please report below expenditures made to the State or to other local governments on a reimbursement or cost sharing basis.
Include these expenditures in part Il. Enter amount, omit cents.
Purpose Amount paid to other Purpose Amount paid
local governments to State
Correction.. L|M@5 8 Highways.......jL44 §
Health.... M32 Allother.........[L89 § 2,230
Highways. M44
Transit subsidies...... [M94 16,025
Libraries.........coooees [MB2
Police protection...... {M62
Sewerage.. M@
Sanitation.. . |M81 122,980
Allother.......c.coene.. [MB9 181,363
Part IV SALARIES AND WAGES
Report here the total salaries and wages paid to all employees of your government before deductions of social security,
retirement, etc. Include also saiaries and wages paid to employees of any utility owned and operated by your government,
as well as salaries and wages of municipal employees charged to construction projects.
Amount - Omit cents
200
Total salaries and Wages PaId......ovri it i ittt et et et e s s st e e e ne $ 3,673,966
PartV DEBT OUTSTANDING, ISSUED, AND RETIRED
A. Long-term debt Debt during the fiscal year Debt Outstanding  JUNE 30, 2016
Debt
outstanding Interest paid
JULY 1, Issued Retired General TIF Revenue Other this year
Purpose 2018 obligation revenue
(@) (b © (d) (e) (4] @ ()]
19U 29U 38U 49U 49U 49U 48U 191
1. Water utility $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
18U 28U 39U 49U 49U 49U 49U 189
2. Sewer utility 6,316,000 549,000 5,766,000
19U 29U 39y 49U 490 48U 192
3. Electric utility
19U 28U 38U 49U 49U 49U 193
4. Gas utility
19U 29U 39U 49U 490 48U 194
5. Transit-bus
6. Industrial 19T 24T 34T 44T 44T 189
Revenue
7. Mortgage 19T 24T 34T 447 44T 189
revenue
19U 28U 33U 48U 49U 49U 49U 189
8. TIF revenue 270,000 135,000 135,000 1,688
Other-Specify {19U 29U 394 49U 49U 490 48U 189
9. _Aquatic Center 1,870,000 100,000 1,770,000 70,953
2013 refunding [ 15U 29U 38U 49U 49U 49U 49U 189
10, of '05 235,000 235,000 1,292
2014 Streets 19U 29U 39y 49U 49U 480 49U 189
11, GO Bond 345,000 170,000 175,000 2,160
2016A - 19U 29U 39U 49U 49U 49U 49U 189 ,
12, Streets/Rec 910,000 386,000 525,000 1,071
18U 29U 39U 49U 49U 49U 48U 189
13,
19U 29U 39U 49U 49U 49U 49U 189
14,
Total long-term
debt 9,035,000 910,000 1,574,000 2,606,000 Y] 5,766,000 [¢] 77,164
B. Short-term debt Amount - Omit cents
61V
Outstanding as of JULY 1, 2015 $
84V
Quitstanding as of JUNE 30, 2016 $
Part Vi DEBT LIMITATION FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS Amount - Omit cents
Assessed Valuations by Levy Authority and County, AY2014/FY2016
Actual valuation -- January 1, 2014 $ 757,631,838 x.06=$ 37,881,592
Part VIl CASH AND INVESTMENT ASSETS AS OF  JUNE 30, 2016
Amount - Omit cents
Type of asset Bond and Bond construction Pension/retirement all other funds Total
interest funds funds funds funds
(a) (b) ©) (d) (e)
Cash and investments - Include
cash on hand, CD's, time,
checking and savings deposits,
Federal securities, Federal agency
securities, State and local
government securities, and all
other secuntes. kxclude value ot W@ W31 W61
real property. $ $
156,057 17,932,586 18,088,643
REMARKS Vo8
Continged on next page Page 13 FORM F-66(1A-2) (6-1-2016)







City of

112 E. 5th Street

MEMO TO:
FROM:
DATE:

SUBJECT:

Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager }/M(‘?J UD ’

Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerk&\ﬁ/&

<

November 1, 2016

FY 2016/2017 Budget Amendment #1
1. Public Hearing
2. City Budget Amendment and Certification Resolution

As required by the Iowa Code 384.18, the Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Daily
Times Herald on Monday, October 31, 2016.

Attached please find a summary of all items to be amended and a resolution approving the

amendment.

RECOMMENDATION: After public hearing, Council consideration and approval of

FY 2016/2017 Budget Amendment #1.






BUDGET AMENDMENT #1 FY 16/17

GENERAL FUND AMENDMENTS

Emerald Ash Borer

Resurface NW Park tennis courts
Reshingle NW Park Shelterhouse
Golf course Clubhouse Landscaping
Rec Center exercise equipment

Rec Center Fire Alarm System

Rec Center 24 Hour Access

Rec Center adjustable hoops
Cemetery software program

Graham Park Master Plan
Library/City Hall Building Project Study
Alley: Block 10 LUST

Graham Park LUST

7/1/2016 General Fund Balance
Estimated Revenues

Estimated Expenses

6/30/2015 Projected Balance

(75,000)
(50,000)

(7,000)
(22,650)
(36,164)
(49,000)
(16,000)

(5,200)
(15,000)
(30,000)
(37,000)
(26,000)
(10,200)

3,773,945
7,092,117
7,818,271

3,047,791

Note: Some of the above budget amendment includes expenses for
items of projects that were started in FY 2016 or earlier and have
been or are expected to be completed in current FY 2017, A few of
the items were additional projects approved by Council action that
were not part of the original FY 2017 budget. The remaining items
were budgeted in FY 2016 with expectations to be completed in FY

2017.

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND

Rec Center Improvements
Theater Curtains

REC CENTER TRUST FUND
Rec Center exercise equipment

C.P. STREETS
Street Rehab - 2013
Street Rehab - 2015
High Ridge - Streets - 16

C.P. - PARKS & RECREATION
Cemetery Maintenance Bldg
GO Debt - cemetery bldg
Merchant's Park
Merchant Park donations
Merchants Park CAT Grant
REAP Trails Grant
Rec Weight Room

WATER UTILITY FUND
Water Pickup Truck

WATER UTILITY CAP IMP FUND
Well Transmission Main Project
Wells Project

STORM WATER CAP. IMP. FUND
Third Street Storm Sewer Project

(26,000)
(35,000)

(4,000)

(30,000)
(11,000)
(300,760)

(155,000)
155,000
(705,000)
140,000
133,766
122,218

(41,000)

(25,000)

(47,500)
(100,000)

(1,046,000)






To the Auditor of

The City Council of Carroll

14-116

CITY BUDGET AMENDMENT AND CERTIFICATION RESOLUTION - FY 2017 - AMENDMENT #1
CARROLL

the amendment.

in said County/Counties met on
,at the place and hour set in the notice, a copy of which accompanies this certificate and is certified as to
publication. Upon taking up the proposed amendment, it was considered and taxpayers were heard for and against

County, lowa:

11/14/2016

The Council, after hearing all taxpayers wishing to be heard and considering the statements made by them, gave
final consideration to the proposed amendment(s) to the budget and modifications proposed at the hearing, if any.
thereupon, the following resolution was introduced.

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CURRENT BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 3

(AS AMENDED LAST ON

Be it Resolved by the Council of the City of
Section 1. Following notice published

and the public hearing held, 11/14/2016

RESOLUTION No.

03/07/2016

)

Carroll

10/31/2016

2017

the current budget (as previously amended) is amended as set out

herein and in the detail by fund type and activity that supports this resolution which was considered at that hearing:

Total Budget
as certified
or last amended

Current
Amendment

Total Budget
after Current
Amendment

Revenues & Other Financing Sources

23,115,970

Taxes Levied on Property 1 5,402,746 0 5,402,746
Less: Uncollected Property Taxes-Levy Year 2 0 0 0

Net Current Property Taxes 3 5,402,746 0 5,402,746
Delinquent Property Taxes 4 0 0 0
TIF Revenues 5 798,570 0 798,570
Other City Taxes 6 1,865,570 Q 1,865,570
Licenses & Permits 7 65,375 0 65,375
Use of Money and Property 8 116,695 0 116,695
Intergovernmental 9 2,365,218 255,984 2,621,202
Charges for Services 10 5,407,529 0 5,407,529
Special Assessments 11 0 0 0
[Miscellaneous 12 268,075 140,000 408,075
Other Financing Sources 13 1,156,565 155,000 1,311,565
Transfers In 14 5,669,627 0 5,669,627
Total Revenues and Other Sources 15 550,984 23,666,954

Expenditures & Other Financing Uses

Public Safety 16 2,130,320 Q 2,130,320
Public Works 17 2,403,832 0 2,403,832
Health and Social Services 18 111,945 0 111,945
Culture and Recreation 19 3,046,293 341,014 3,387,307
Community and Economic Development 20 129,925 0 129,925
General Government 21 1,013,154 103,200 1,116,354
Debt Service 22 1,065,382 0 1,065,382
Capital Projects 23 4,697,125 1,242.760 5,939,885

Total Government Activities Expenditures 24 14,597,976 1,686,974 16,284,950
Business Type / Enterprises 25 4,754,546 1,218,500 5,973,046
Total Gov Activities & Business Expenditures 26 19,362,522 2,905,474 22,257,996
Transfers Out 27 5,669,627 0 5,669,627
Total Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 25,022,149 2,905,474

Excess Revenues & Other Sources Over
nder) Expenditures/Transfers Out Fiscal Year

27,927,623

21,651,780

éeginning Fund Balance July 1 30 17,648,724 4,003,056
Ending Fund Balance June 30 31 15,742,545 1,648,566 17,391,111
Passed this 14 day of November 2016
{Day) (Month/Year}
Signature Signature
City Clerk/Finance Officer Mayor







City of Carroll
¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO:  Mike Pogge-Weaver, City ManagerW(SV »
FROM: Jack Wardell, Director of Parks and Recreation mg}t%}
DATE: November 8, 2016

SUBJECT: Report of Bid Opening — Clubhouse Retaining Wall — Golf Course
Clubhouse

Pre Bid Estimate: F.Y.2016-17 - Budgeted Item $7,000.00

On November 8, 2016 two bid proposals were received at the time of the bid opening and the
result is listed below:

Tunning Lawn Care — Coon Rapids $5,846.40
Moonlighting Landscape & Masonry — Sac City, lowa $5,800.00

This project will require the removal of the existing retaining wall and all vegetation plus landfill
fees. The proposed wall must match the existing retaining wall that is on northeast corner of
the clubhouse. The flagpole will be removed and then reset in concrete. The retaining wall
must sit on 6”x 24" leveling pad and backfill the new wall at least 1" aggregate up to 13” high.
The rest of the backfill will be with acceptable dirt. This bid does not include installation of

landscaping plants.

RECOMMENDATION: For the Mayor and City Council to approve the bid from Moonlighting
Landscape and Masonry for the amount of $5,800.00.






CITY OF CARROLL
Department of Parks & Recreation
112 E 5th Street, Carroll lowa 51401

(712) 792-1000

For: Clubhouse Retaining Wall Project - 2016
Bids were opened on: November 8, 2016 @ 10:00 AM

Pre-Bid Estimate

1. Tunning Lawn Care - Coon Rapids, lowa $ 5,846.40
2 Moonlight Landscaping & Masonry - Sac City, lowa $ 5,800.00
3
4
5

Slgneddw &} J@ZM%ZM./

Date: // >? /é;







City of Carroll
¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO:  Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager %;V:‘W ”"'J "
{1/
FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Cleﬂ(\)}\@u&
DATE: November 8, 2016

SUBJECT: Resolution setting dates of a consultation and a public hearing on a proposed Fifth
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Amended and Restated Central
Business District Urban Renewal Area in the City of Carroll, lowa

At the October 24, 2016 Council meeting, action was taken to proceed with creating a development/rebate
agreement with DMBA Properties & Consulting, Inc. and Biokinemetrics for the re-development of Lots 1-4,
Block 25, Carroll (Original Town). The first step in the process is to amend the Central Business District
Urban Renewal (UR) Plan (aka Downtown UR Plan).

A map is attached to a proposed amended UR plan depicting the original areas and the proposed new
expanded area. The main changes to the UR plan include identifying the projects to be completed using tax
increment financing (TIF) as the funding source (see Section IV) and expand the UR area.

The City has been working with Bill Noth, bonding attorney with Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., to make necessary
changes to the UR plan. Also attached is a resolution to start the process to amend the current UR plan. The
resolution accomplishes a number of legally required steps in this process including:

(1) setting the date for a consultation with all affected tax entities (November 29),

(i1) designating the City Manager as the representative for the city for the consultation,

(i)  directing notice to be mailed to all affected taxing entities (Carroll County and Carroll Community
School District),

(iv)  setting a public hearing for the proposed plan (December 27),

v) directing notice of public hearing to be published, and

(vi)  directing a copy of the proposed plan be on file in the City Clerk’s office for inspection.

Upon Council approval of the attached resolution, consultation with the affected taxing entities will be
scheduled for November 29, 2016 at 2PM and public hearing and adoption of the proposed UR plan to be
held at the December 27, 2016 Council meeting. After amending the UR plan, the Council would need to
amend the current TIF district in order to collect TIF from the newly amended UR area. That ordinance will
be brought to the Council at the appropriate time.

RECOMMENDATION: Council consideration and approval of the attached resolution setting dates of a
consultation and a public hearing on a proposed Fifth Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the
Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal Area.





(This Notice to be posted)

NOTICE AND CALL OF PUBLIC MEETING

Governmental Body: The City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa.

Date of Meeting: , 2016.

Time of Meeting: o'clock M.

Place of Meeting: Council Chambers, City Hall, 112 E. 5th Street, Carroll,
Towa.

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the above mentioned governmental
body will meet at the date, time and place above set out. The tentative agenda for the

meeting is as follows:

o Resolution setting dates of a consultation and a public hearing on a proposed Fifth
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Amended and Restated
Central Business District Urban Renewal Area in the City of Carroll, Iowa.

Such additional matters as are set forth on the additional page(s) attached hereto.
(number)

This notice is given at the direction of the Mayor pursuant to Chapter 21, Code of
Iowa, and the local rules of the governmental body.

City Clerk, City of Carroll, Iowa






,2016

The City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa, met in regular session, in the
Council Chambers, City Hall, 112 E. 5th Street, Carroll, Iowa, at 5:15 P.M., on the above
date. There were present Mayor , in the chair, and the following named

Council Members:

Absent:

* ok ok ok ok ook ook





~ Council Member : then introduced the following proposed

Resolution entitled "RESOLUTION SETTING DATES OF A CONSULTATION AND
A PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED FIFTH AMENDED AND RESTATED
URBAN RENEWAL PLAN FOR THE AMENDED AND RESTATED CENTRAL
BUSINESS DISTRICT AREA IN THE CITY OF CARROLL, JIOWA", and moved that
the same be adopted. Council Member seconded the motion to
adopt. The roll was called and the vote was,

AYES:

NAYS:

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the Resolution duly adopted as follows:
RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION SETTING DATES OF A CONSULTATION AND
A PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED FIFTH AMENDED
AND RESTATED URBAN RENEWAL PLAN FOR THE
AMENDED AND RESTATED CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT
AREA IN THE CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA

WHEREAS, this Council previously found and determined that certain areas
located within the City are eligible and should be designated as an urban renewal area
under Iowa law, and approved and adopted the Fourth Amended and Restated Urban
Renewal Plan (the "Current Plan") for the Amended and Restated Central Business
District Urban Renewal Area (the "Urban Renewal Area") described therein, which
Current Plan is on file in the office of the City Clerk; and

WHEREAS, City staff has caused there to be prepared a form of Fifth Amended
and Restated Urban Renewal Plan (the "Proposed Plan"), a copy of which has been
placed on file for public inspection in the office of the City Clerk and which is
incorporated herein by reference, the purpose of which is to amend, restate and otherwise
update the Current Plan to reflect current City objectives and to describe current and
anticipated project activities and City actions that may be undertaken in the Urban
Renewal Area, including but not limited to the construction of curb and gutter and other
utility improvements in the 4th Street parking lot and on 5th Street, the funding of annual

2






grants under a tax increment financing agreement with DMBA Properties & Consulting,
Inc. and Biokinemetrics, and to add certain adjacent real property to the Urban Renewal
Area, to be referred to as the Seventh Amended Project Area; and

WHEREAS, the Iowa statutes require the City Council to notify all affected taxing
entities of the consideration being given to the Proposed Plan and to hold a consultation
with such taxing entities with respect thereto, and further provides that the designated
representative of each affected taxing entity may attend the consultation and make written
recommendations for modifications to the proposed division of revenue included as a part
thereof, to which the City shall submit written responses as provided in Section 403.5, as

amended; and

WHEREAS, the Iowa statutes further require the City Council to hold a public
hearing on the Proposed Plan subsequent to notice thereof by publication in a newspaper
having general circulation within the City, which notice shall describe the time, date,
place and purpose of the hearing, shall generally identify the urban renewal area covered
by the Proposed Plan and shall outline the general scope of the urban renewal project
activities under consideration, with a copy of the notice also being mailed to each

affected taxing entity.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA:

Section 1. That the consultation on the proposed Fifth Amended and Restated
Urban Renewal Plan required by Section 403.5(2) of the Code of Iowa, as amended, shall
be held on the 29th day of November 2016, in the City Manager’s Office, City Hall, 112
E. 5th Street, Carroll, Iowa, at 2 P.M., and the City Manager is hereby appointed to serve
as the designated representative of the City for purposes of conducting the consultation,
receiving any recommendations that may be made with respect thereto, and responding to
the same in accordance with Section 403.5(2).

Section 2. That the City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause a notice of such
consultation to be sent by regular mail to all affected taxing entities, as defined in Section
403.17(1), along with a copy of this Resolution and the Proposed Plan, the notice to be in
substantially the following form:





NOTICE OF A CONSULTATION TO BE HELD
BETWEEN THE CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA AND ALL
AFFECTED TAXING ENTITIES CONCERNING THE
PROPOSED FIFTH AMENDED AND RESTATED
URBAN RENEWAL PLAN FOR THE AMENDED AND
RESTATED CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT AREA OF
THE CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA

The City of Carroll, Iowa will hold a consultation with all affected taxing entities,
as defined in Section 403.17(1) of the Code of Iowa, as amended, commencing at 2 P.M.
on November 29, 2016, in the City Manager’s Office, City Hall, 112 E. 5th Street,
Carroll, Iowa concerning a proposed Fifth Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, a

copy of which is attached hereto.

Each affected taxing entity may appoint a representative to attend the consultation.
The consultation may include a discussion of the estimated growth in valuation of taxable
property included in the Urban Renewal Area, the fiscal impact of the division of revenue
on the affected taxing entities, the estimated impact on the provision of services by each
of the affected taxing entities in the Urban Renewal Area, and the duration of any bond

issuance included in the Proposed Plan.

The designated representative of any affected taxing entity may make written
recommendations for modifications to the proposed division of revenue no later than
seven days following the date of the consultation. The City Manager, as the designated
representative of the City of Carroll, Iowa, shall submit a written response to the affected
taxing entity, no later than seven days prior to the public hearing on the proposed Fifth
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, addressing any recommendations made by
that entity for modification to the proposed division of revenue.

This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa, as
provided by Section 403.5 of the Code of Iowa, as amended.

Dated this day of , 2016.

City Clerk, City of Carfoll, Iowa

(End of Notice)






Section 3. That a public hearing shall be held on the Proposed Plan before the
City Council at its meeting which commences at 5:15 P.M. on December 27, 2016, in the
Council Chambers, City Hall, 112 E. 5th Street, Carroll, Iowa.

Section 4. That the City Clerk is authorized and directed to publish notice of this
public hearing in The Daily Times Herald, once on a date not less than four (4) nor more
than twenty (20) days before the date of the public hearing, and to mail a copy of the
notice by ordinary mail to each affected taxing entity, such notice in each case to be in
substantially the following form:





(One publication required)

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER
APPROVAL OF A PROPOSED FIFTH AMENDED AND
RESTATED URBAN RENEWAL PLAN FOR THE
AMENDED AND RESTATED CENTRAL BUSINESS
DISTRICT URBAN RENEWAL AREA IN THE CITY OF

CARROLL, IOWA

The City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa, will hold a public hearing before
itself at its meeting which commences at 5:15 P.M. on December 27, 2016 in the Council
Chambers, City Hall, 112 E. 5th Street, Carroll, Iowa, to consider adoption of a proposed
Fifth Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan (the "Proposed Plan") concerning the
Amended and Restated Central Business District Urban Renewal Area ("Urban Renewal
Area") in the City of Carroll, Iowa, which is now legally described as follows:

A.

Original Project Area (1967) (Blighted Area)

Commencing at the intersection of the centerline of Sixth Street and the
easterly right of way line of Court Street; thence South along said easterly
right of way line of Court Street to the southerly right of way line of Fifth
Street; thence West along said southerly right of way line of Fifth Street to
the easterly right of way line of Main Street; thence south along the right of
way line of Main Street to the southerly right of way line of Fourth Street;
thence west along said southerly right of way line of Fourth Street to a
point approximately 15 feet northeasterly and parallel to the northeastern-
most track of the Chicago & Great Western Railroad; thence northwesterly
(approximately 15°) parallel to the railroad track to the westerly line of the
north-south alley extended between West Street and Carroll Street; thence
north along the westerly line of said alley to the centerline of Sixth Street;
thence east along said centerline of Sixth Street to the point of beginning.

First Amended Project Area (1971) (Blighted Area)

Block 23 located between 5th, Main, 4th, and Court Streets.

Second Amended Project Area (1985) (Blighted Area)

Commencing at the southeast corner of the intersection of Fourth Street
with Adams Street; thence westerly along the southerly right of way line of
Fourth Street to the easterly right of way line of Carroll Street; thence
southerly to a point approximately 40 feet north of the northerly track of the
Chicago and Northwestern Railroad; thence westerly approximately 40 feet

6






parallel to said northerly track to a point approximately 600 feet west of the
westerly right of way line of West Street; thence northerly parallel to and
600 feet west of West Street to the middle of Sixth Street; thence easterly
along the middle of Sixth Street to the westerly line of the alley between
West Street and Carroll Street; thence south along the westerly line of said
alley to a point 15 feet northeast of the former northeast track of the
Chicago and Great Western Railroad; thence southeasterly 15 feet parallel
to said former track to the point of beginning.

Fourth Amended Project Area (1990) (Blighted Area)

Commencing at the center of the intersection of Fourth Street with the
centerline of Adams Street; thence southerly to a point approximately 30
feet north of the westerly main track of the Chicago and Northwestern
Railroad; thence westerly, approximately 30 feet parallel to said westerly
track, to the intersection with the centerline of Highway 71; thence
northerly along the centerline of Highway 71 to its intersection with the
centerline of Highway 30; thence southeasterly along the centerline of
Highway 30 to the intersection with West Sixth Street extended; thence
westerly along the centerline of West Sixth Street to a point 600 feet west
of West Street; thence southerly parallel to and 600 feet west of West Street
to a point 30 feet north of the northerly track of the Chicago and
Northwestern Railroad; thence Southeasterly 30 feet parallel to the
northerly track of the Chicago and Northwestern Railroad to the easterly
right of way line of Carroll Street; thence north to the Southerly right of
way line of Fourth Street; thence easterly along the Southerly right of way
line of Fourth Street to the point of beginning.

Fourth Amended Project Area (1991) (Blighted Area)

Beginning at the Intersection of U.S. Highway No. 30 and U.S. Highway
No. 71 in Carroll, Carroll County, Iowa; thence Northwesterly along the
centerline of said U.S. Highway 30 to the South line of the Northeast
Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 23, Township 84 North, Range
35 West of the 5% P.M., Carroll County, lowa; thence East to the Easterly
line of the northeast access road extended, running parallel to and east of
U.S. Highway 71, thence southerly along the east line of the northeast
access road to the centerline of Tenth Street, thence westerly along the
centerline of Tenth Street to the centerline of Highway No. 30; thence
northwesterly to the point of beginning.





Fifth Amended Project Area (2008) (Economic Development Area)

Commencing at the intersection of the centerline of Sixth Street (U.S.
Highway 30) and the easterly right of way line of Court Street; thence
southerly along said easterly right of way line of Court Street to the
southerly right of way line of Fifth Street; thence easterly along said
southerly right of way line of Fifth Street to the easterly right of way line of
Grant Road; thence northerly along said easterly right of way line of Grant
Road to the northerly right of way line of Seventh Street; thence westerly
along said northerly right of way line of Seventh Street to the easterly right
of way line of Simon Avenue; thence northerly along said easterly right of
way line of Simon Avenue to the northerly right of way line of Eighth
Street; thence westerly along said northerly right of way line of Eighth
Street to the easterly right of way line of Salinger Avenue; thence northerly
along said easterly right of way line of Salinger Avenue to the northerly
right of way line of Ninth Street; thence westerly along said northerly right
of way line of Ninth Street to the easterly right of way line of Boylan
Avenue; thence northerly along said easterly right of way line of Boylan
Avenue to the northerly right of way line of Tenth Street; thence westerly
along the northerly right of way line of Tenth Street to the southeast corner
of Lot 7 of Neu Add., Sub of Blk 4 and Resub of Lot 5; thence northerly
along the westerly lot lines of Neu Add., Sub of Blk 4 and Resub of Lot 5
to the northerly right of way line of Fifteenth Street; thence westerly along
the northerly right of way line of Fifteenth Street to the easterly line of the
northeast access road extended, east of U.S. Highway 71; thence southerly
along the easterly line of the northeast access road to the northerly right of
way line of Tenth Street; thence westerly along said northerly right of way
line of Tenth Street to the centerline of Sixth Street (U.S. Highway 30);
thence southeasterly along said centerline of Sixth Street (U.S. Highway

30) to the point of beginning.

Sixth Amended Project Area (2014) (Economic Development Area)

Commencing at the intersection of the centerline of Sixth Street (U.S.
Highway 30) and the easterly right of way line of Grant Road; thence
southerly along the easterly right of way line of Grant Road to the northerly
right-of-way line of the Union Pacific Railroad; thence southeasterly along
said northerly right-of-way line of the Union Pacific Railroad to the
southwest corner of the East 81 feet of that part of the East Half of the
Northwest Quarter of Section 30, Township 84 North, Range 34 West of
the 5th P.M., lying north of the right-of-way of the Union Pacific Railroad;
thence northerly along said westerly property line thereof to the southwest
corner of Lot 26 of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of

8






Section 30, Township 84 North, Range 34 West of the 5th P.M.; thence
easterly along said southerly property line of Lot 26 to the southeast corner
of said Lot 26; thence northerly to the southerly right of way line of
Highway 30; thence easterly along the said southerly right of way line of
Highway 30 to the easterly right of way line of Bella Vista Drive; thence
northerly along said easterly right of way line of Bella Vista Drive to a
point parallel with the north property line of Lot E of Bella Vista First
Addition First Resubdivision to the City of Carroll; thence westerly across
Bella Vista Drive, and continuing westerly along the north property line of
said Lot E of Bella Vista First Addition First Resubdivision; thence
southerly along the west property line of said Lot E of Bella Vista First
Addition First Resubdivision; thence westerly along the south property line
of Lot F of Bella Vista First Addition First Subdivision to the City of
Carroll to the easterly right of way line of Monterey Drive; thence northerly
along said easterly right of way line of Monterey Drive to a point parallel
with the northerly right of way line of Eighth Street; thence westerly across
Monterey Drive and continuing westerly along said northerly right of way
line of Eighth Street, continuing westerly along the north property line of
Lot 2, (except Lots A, C, D, E, and F thereof) Southeast Quarter of the
Southwest Quarter of Section 19, Township 84 North, Range 34 West of
the 5th P.M., Carroll, and continuing westerly along the northerly right of
way line of Eighth Street, to the westerly right of way line of Vine Street;
thence southerly along said westerly right of way line of Vine Street to the
northerly right of way line of Seventh Street; thence westerly along said
northerly right of way line of Seventh Street to the easterly right of way line
of Grant Road; thence southerly along said easterly right of way line of
Grant Road to the point of beginning.

The general scope of the urban renewal activities under consideration in the
Proposed Plan is to promote the continued growth and development of commercial
activity within the Urban Renewal Area through various public purpose and special
financing activities outlined in the Proposed Plan. The Proposed Plan generally would
amend, restate and otherwise update the existing urban renewal plan for the Urban
Renewal Area to reflect current City objectives and to describe current and anticipated
project activities and City actions that may be undertaken in the Urban Renewal Area,
including but not limited to the construction of certain curb and gutter and other utility
improvements in the 4th Street parking lot and on 5th Street, the funding of annual grants
under a tax increment financing agreement with DMBA Properties & Consulting, Inc.
and Biokinemetrics, and to add certain adjacent real property to the Urban Renewal Area,
to be referred to as the Seventh Amended Project Area and which is legally described as

follows:





Seventh Amended Project Area (2016) (Economic Development Area)

Commencing at the intersection of the westerly right of way line of Court
Street and the Southerly right of way line of Fifth Street; thence East along
said southerly right of way line of Fifth Street to the easterly right of way
line of Clark Street; thence South along said easterly right of way line of
Clark Street to the northern boundary of the railroad right of way; thence
West along the northern boundary of the railroad right of way to the '
easterly right of way line of Main Street; thence North along said easterly
right of way line of Main Street to the northerly right of way line of Fourth
Street; thence East along said northerly right of way line of Fourth Street to
the westerly right of way line of Court Street; thence North along said
westerly right of way line of Court Street to the southerly right of way line

of Fifth Street.

The Proposed Plan provides that the City may issue bonds or use available funds

for purposes allowed by the Proposed Plan, as amended, and that tax increment
reimbursement of such costs will be sought if and to the extent incurred by the City. The

Proposed Plan may be further amended from time to time to respond to future
development opportunities.

A copy of the Proposed Plan is on file for public inspection in the office of the
City Clerk, City Hall, Carroll, Iowa.

Any person or organization desiring to be heard shall be afforded an opportunity
to be heard at such hearing.

This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa, as
provided by Section 403.5 of the Code of Towa.

Dated this day of , 2016.

City Clerk, City of Carroll, Iowa

(End of Notice)

10






Section 5. That the Proposed Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit 1, for the proposed
Urban Renewal Area described therein is hereby officially declared to be the proposed
Fifth Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan referred to in the notices for purposes
of such consultation and hearing and that a copy of the Proposed Plan shall be placed on
file in the office of the City Clerk. '

PASSED AND APPROVED this 14th day of November, 2016.

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk

11





Prepared by and return to: Laura Schaefer, City of Carroll, 112 E 5% Street, Carroll, IA 51401

FIFTH AMENDED and RESTATED
CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT
URBAN RENEWAL PLAN

CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA

ADOPTED BY
CARROLL CITY COUNCIL
ON

. 2016

Attachments

Exhibit A:  Project Area Map(s)






L INTRODUCTION

This Fifth Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan (the “Urban Renewal Plan” or
“Plan™) has been prepared to provide for the continued development of the Central Business
District Project Area (the “Project Area”) of the City of Carroll, Iowa (the “City”), and to
stimulate, through public actions, financings and commitments, private investment in the re-
development and in rehabilitation in the urban renewal Project Area. In order to achieve this
objective, the City will undertake the urban renewal actions specified in this Plan, pursuant to the
powers granted to it under Chapter 403 and 15A of the Code of Iowa, 2015, as amended (the

“Code™).

This Plan is a further amendment and restatement of the original Urban Renewal Plan for
the Central Business District, adopted by the City Council in 1967 and amended in 1971, 1985,
1990 and 1991, and amended and restated in 2008, 2012, 2014 and 2015. This Plan shall serve
as a new Urban Renewal Plan for the expanded and combined urban renewal project areas

described herein.

II. DESCRIPTION OF URBAN RENEWAL AREFA

The Project Area is an “urban renewal area” as defined in the Code and is located within
the city of Carroll, County of Carroll, State of Iowa. The general boundaries of the Project Area
are illustrated on the Project Area Map(s) attached hereto as Exhibit A. The entire urban renewal
area is comprised of eight (8) contiguous parcels or areas described as follows:

A. Original Project Area (1967) (Blighted Area)

Commencing at the intersection of the centerline of Sixth Street and the easterly right
of way line of Court Street; thence South along said easterly right of way line of
Court Street to the southerly right of way line of Fifth Street; thence West along said
southerly right of way line of Fifth Street to the easterly right of way line of Main
Street; thence south along the right of way line of Main Street to the southerly right of
way line of Fourth Street; thence west along said southerly right of way line of Fourth
Street to a point approximately 15 feet northeasterly and parallel to the northeastern-
most track of the Chicago & Great Western Railroad; thence northwesterly
(approximately 15°) parallel to the railroad track to the westerly line of the north-
south alley extended between West Street and Carroll Street; thence north along the
westerly line of said alley to the centerline of Sixth Street; thence east along said
centerline of Sixth Street to the point of beginning.

B. First Amended Project Area (1971) (Blighted Area)

Block 23 located between 5%, Main, 4, and Court Streets.





C. Second Amended Project Area (1985) (Blighted Area)

Commencing at the southeast corner of the intersection of Fourth Street with Adams
Street; thence westerly along the southerly right of way line of Fourth Street to the
easterly right of way line of Carroll Street; thence southerly to a point approximately
40 feet north of the northerly track of the Chicago and Northwestern Railroad; thence
westerly approximately 40 feet parallel to said northerly track to a point
approximately 600 feet west of the westerly right of way line of West Street; thence
northerly parallel to and 600 feet west of West Street to the middle of Sixth Street;
thence easterly along the middle of Sixth Street to the westerly line of the alley
between West Street and Carroll Street; thence south along the westerly line of said
alley to a point 15 feet northeast of the former northeast track of the Chicago and
Great Western Railroad; thence southeasterly 15 feet parallel to said former track to

the point of beginning.

D. Third Amended Project Area (1990) (Blighted Area)

Commencing at the center of the intersection of Fourth Street with the centerline of
Adams Street; thence southerly to a point approximately 30 feet north of the westerly
main track of the Chicago and Northwestern Railroad; thence westerly,
approximately 30 feet parallel to said westerly track, to the intersection with the
centerline of Highway 71; thence northerly along the centerline of Highway 71 to its
intersection with the centerline of Highway 30; thence southeasterly along the
centerline of Highway 30 to the intersection with West Sixth Street extended; thence
westerly along the centerline of West Sixth Street to a point 600 feet west of West
Street; thence southerly parallel to and 600 feet west of West Street to a point 30 feet
north of the northerly track of the Chicago and Northwestern Railroad; thence
Southeasterly 30 feet parallel to the northerly track of the Chicago and Northwestern
Railroad to the easterly right of way line of Carroll Street; thence north to the
Southerly right of way line of Fourth Street; thence easterly along the Southerly right
of way line of Fourth Street to the point of beginning.

E. Fourth Amended Project Area (1991) (Blighted Area)

Beginning at the Intersection of U.S. Highway No. 30 and U.S. Highway No. 71 in
Carroll, Carroll County, Iowa; thence Northwesterly along the centerline of said U.S.
Highway 30 to the South line of the Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of
Section 23, Township 84 North, Range 35 West of the 5™ P.M., Carroll County,
Towa; thence East to the Easterly line of the northeast access road extended, running
parallel to and east of U.S. Highway 71, thence southerly along the east line of the
northeast access road to the centerline of Tenth Street, thence westerly along the
centerline of Tenth Street to the centerline of Highway No. 30; thence northwesterly

to the point of beginning.






F. Fifth Amended Project Area (2008) (Economic Development Area)

Commencing at the intersection of the centerline of Sixth Street (U.S. Highway 30)
and the easterly right of way line of Court Street; thence southerly along said easterly
right of way line of Court Street to the southerly right of way line of Fifth Street;
thence easterly along said southerly right of way line of Fifth Street to the easterly
right of way line of Grant Road; thence northerly along said easterly right of way line
of Grant Road to the northerly right of way line of Seventh Street; thence westerly
along said northerly right of way line of Seventh Street to the easterly right of way
line of Simon Avenue; thence northerly along said easterly right of way line of Simon
Avenue to the northerly right of way line of Eighth Street; thence westerly along said
northerly right of way line of Eighth Street to the easterly right of way line of
Salinger Avenue; thence northerly along said easterly right of way line of Salinger
Avenue to the northerly right of way line of Ninth Street; thence westerly along said
northerly right of way line of Ninth Street to the easterly right of way line of Boylan
Avenue; thence northerly along said easterly right of way line of Boylan Avenue to
the northerly right of way line of Tenth Street; thence westerly along the northerly
right of way line of Tenth Street to the southeast corner of Lot 7 of Neu Add., Sub of
Block 4 and Resubdivision of Lot 5; thence northerly along the westerly lot lines of
Neu Add., Sub of Block 4 and Resubdivision of Lot 5 to the northerly right of way
line of Fifteenth Street; thence westerly along the northerly right of way line of
Fifteenth Street to the easterly line of the northeast access road extended, east of U.S.
Highway 71; thence southerly along the easterly line of the northeast access road to
the northerly right of way line of Tenth Street; thence westerly along said northerly
right of way line of Tenth Street to the centerline of Sixth Street (U.S. Highway 30);
thence southeasterly along said centerline of Sixth Street (U.S. Highway 30) to the
point of beginning.

G. Sixth Amended Project Area (2014) (Economic Development Area)

Commencing at the intersection of the centerline of Sixth Street (U.S. Highway 30)
and the easterly right of way line of Grant Road; thence southerly along the easterly
right of way line of Grant Road to the northerly right-of-way line of the Union Pacific
Railroad; thence southeasterly along said northerly right-of-way line of the Union
Pacific Railroad to the southwest corner of the East 81 feet of that part of the East
Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 30, Township 84 North, Range 34 West of
the 5™ P.M., lying north of the right-of-way of the Union Pacific Railroad; thence
northerly along said westerly property line thereof to the southwest corner of Lot 26
of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 30, Township 84 North,
Range 34 West of the 5™ P.M.; thence easterly along said southerly property line of
Lot 26 to the southeast corner of said Lot 26; thence northerly to the southerly right of
way line of Highway 30; thence easterly along the said southerly right of way line of
Highway 30 to the easterly right of way line of Bella Vista Drive; thence northerly
along said easterly right of way line of Bella Vista Drive to a point parallel with the
north property line of Lot E of Bella Vista First Addition First Resubdivision to the
City of Carroll; thence westerly across Bella Vista Drive, and continuing westerly





along the north property line of said Lot E of Bella Vista First Addition First
Resubdivision; thence southerly along the west property line of said Lot E of Bella
Vista First Addition First Resubdivision; thence westerly along the south property
line of Lot F of Bella Vista First Addition First Subdivision to the City of Carroll to
the easterly right of way line of Monterey Drive; thence northerly along said easterly
right of way line of Monterey Drive to a point parallel with the northerly right of way
line of Eighth Street; thence westerly across Monterey Drive and continuing westerly
along said northerly right of way line of Eighth Street, continuing westerly along the
north property line of Lot 2, (except Lots A, C, D, E, and F thereof) Southeast
Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 19, Township 84 North, Range 34 West
of the 5™ P.M., Carroll, and continuing westerly along the northerly right of way line
of Eighth Street, to the westerly right of way line of Vine Street; thence southerly
along said westerly right of way line of Vine Street to the northerly right of way line
of Seventh Street; thence westerly along said northerly right of way line of Seventh
Street to the easterly right of way line of Grant Road; thence southerly along said
easterly right of way line of Grant Road to the point of beginning.

H. Seventh Amended Project Area (2016) (Economic Development Area)

Commencing at the intersection of the westerly right of way line of Court Street and
the Southerly right of way line of Fifth Street; thence East along said southerly right
of way line of Fifth Street to the easterly right of way line of Clark Street; thence
South along said easterly right of way line of Clark Street to the northern boundary of
the railroad right of way; thence West along the northern boundary of the railroad
right of way to the easterly right of way line of Main Street; thence North along said
easterly right of way line of Main Street to the northerly right of way line of Fourth
Street; thence East along said northerly right of way line of Fourth Street to the
westerly right of way line of Court Street; thence North along said westerly right of
way line of Court Street to the southerly right of way line of Fifth Street.

III.  URBAN RENEWAL PLAN OBJECTIVES

The overall goal of the Plan is to formulate and execute a workable program using public
and private resources to eliminate blight and obsolescence within the renewal area and to
alleviate and prevent conditions of unemployment by assisting and retaining local industries and
commercial enterprises to strengthen and revitalize the economy while fostering redevelopment
and rehabilitation activities consistent with the sound needs of the Central Business District and

the City as a whole.

In accordance with the above overall goal, the primary re-development and rehabilitation
objectives of the renewal area are as follows:

1. To preserve and create an environment which will protect the health,

safety and general welfare of the City, preserve existing values of properties to remain
within and adjacent to the Project Area, and to preserve taxable values of property within

the area.






2. To eliminate substandard and obsolescent buildings, blighting influences,
and environmental deficiencies which presently detract from the functional unity,
aesthetic appearance, and economic welfare of the City, and to establish conditions which
will prevent the recurrence of blight and blighting conditions.

3. To strengthen Carroll as the retail trade, business, financial,
administrative, governmental, and cultural center of the regional area by attracting new
industries and businesses to the City and to encourage the expansion of existing city
industries and businesses.

4. To provide a more marketable and attractive investment climate through
the use of various federal, state and local incentives.

5. To strengthen the economic well-being of Carroll and the Central Business
District area by increasing retail and commercial activity, taxable values, and job
opportunities.

6. To establish a pattern of land-use activities arranged in compact,
compatible groupings so as to enhance the efficiency of operation and economic inter-
relationships.

7. To provide for the orderly physical and economic growth of the Central
Business District area through controlled re-development and rehabilitation.

8. To achieve development which is integrated both functionally and
aesthetically with existing development which is to remain.

9. To ensure that the area is adequately served with public infrastructure and
utilities, including roadways, storm and sanitary sewers, streetscape improvements,
water, power, gas and telephone.

10.  To improve the appearance of buildings, rights-of-way and open spaces,
and to encourage high standards of design.

11.  To provide sites to allow for an orderly expansion and professional up-
grading of existing retail, commercial, professional and business uses and for the
construction of new major retail or commercial and retail-related uses.

12.  To provide sites for offstreet public parking facilities.

13. To encourage land uses compatible with the retail, professional and
commercial functions of the Central Business District area, and the removal, prevention
and discouragement of uses incompatible with that function.

14.  To preserve major existing concentrations of sound retail and business
uses through private rehabilitation and code enforcement.





Iv.

15.  To encourage beautification of the Central Business District area through
appropriate public and private improvements.

16.  The establishment of a circulation system which will enhance vehicular
and pedestrian access to all parts of the expanded retail area and facilitate the proper
growth and development of the community in accordance with sound planning standards

and local community objectives.

PROJECT AREA ACTIVITIES

As a means of assisting in the continued development of the Project Area and fulfilling of

the objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan, the City may determine:

1. To undertake and carry out urban renewal project activities through the
execution of contracts and other instruments;

2. To arrange for or cause to be provided the construction or repair of public
infrastructure improvements, including alley, street and streetscape improvements
(including those street and streetscape improvements being undertaken as part of the
Corridor of Commerce Streetscape projects), water, sanitary sewer and storm sewer
systems, traffic signals, sidewalks, and public utilities or other facilities in connection

with urban renewal projects;

3. To dispose of property so acquired (by sale, lease, exchange or otherwise)
for purposes of private redevelopment;

4 To undertake the construction of improvements at or adjacent to the
intersection of U.S. Highway 30 and Grant Road including demolition, grading and site
preparation; utility, bridge, roadway and sidewalk construction; right-of-way and other
property purchase; safety and traffic control improvements and other work necessary for

a complete project;

5. To make loans or grants to private persons or businesses for economic
development purposes on such terms as may be determined by the City Council;

6. To borrow money and provide security therefor;

7. To establish and enforce controls, standards and restrictions on land use
and buildings;

8. To make or have made surveys and plans necessary for the

implementation of the urban renewal program and specific urban renewal project
activities;
9. To use tax increment financing to achieve a more marketable and

competitive land offering price, to provide for necessary physical improvements and
infrastructure, and to fund other urban renewal project costs; or






10.  To use any and all other powers, without limitation, granted by the Code
to develop and provide for improved economic conditions in the City of Carroll.

The urban renewal projects currently in process or anticipated consist of the following:

e Streetscape improvements as part of the Corridor of Commerce Master Plan

e Intersection and approach improvements at Highway 30 and Grant Road

e Street resurfacing projects including:

o Court Street: 4" Street to 7™ Street

o East Street: US 30 to 7% Street

o Quint Avenue: US 30 to 7™ Street

o Sixth Street: Quint Avenue (Ext.) to US 30
o Fifth Street: Court Street to Clark Street

e Streetscape improvements along NE Access Road: 10% Street to 15 Street

e Curb and gutter and other utility improvements in the 4% Street parking lot
and along 5™ Street.

e Tax increment financing rebate agreement for up to 15 years with DMBA
Properties & Consulting, Inc. and Biokinemetrics for the re-development of
Lots 1-4, Block 25, Carroll (Original Town, Carroll, Iowa.

e Downtown business identification signage improvements

e Community and wayfinding signage improvements

V. SPECIAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

To meet the objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan and to encourage continued private
investment in and the development of the Project Area, the City may determine to provide
financial assistance to qualified private businesses through the making of loans or grants under
Chapter 15A of the Code and through the use of tax increment financing under Chapter 403 of

the Code.

A. Chapter 15A Loans or Grants. The making of loans or grants of public funds to
private businesses within the Project Area may be deemed necessary or appropriate for economic
development purposes (as defined in Chapter 15A of the Code) and to aid in the planning,
undertaking and carrying out of urban renewal project activities authorized under this Urban
Renewal Plan and the Code. Accordingly, in furtherance of the objectives of this Urban
Renewal Plan, the City may determine to issue general obligation bonds, tax increment revenue
bonds or other such obligations, or loan agreements for the purpose of making loans or grants of
public funds to private businesses located in the Project Area. Alternatively, the City may
determine to use available funds for making such loans or grants. In determining qualifications
of recipients and whether to make any such individual loan or grant, the City shall consider,
among other things, one or more of the factors set forth in Section 15A.1 of the Code on a case-

by-case basis.






B. Tax Increment Financing. The City intends to utilize tax increment financing as a
means to help pay for the costs associated with the continued development and improvement of
the Project Area. General obligation bonds, tax increment revenue bonds or other such
obligations or loan agreements may be issued by the City, and the City may advance available
funds to pay project costs in anticipation of such borrowing, and tax increment reimbursement
may be sought for, among other things, the following costs (if and to the extent incurred by the

City):

1. The construction of public improvements, such as streets and streetscape
improvements, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, water mains or sidewalks;

2. The acquisition of land and preparation of same for sale to private
developers;
3. The making of loans or grants to private businesses under Chapter 15A of

the Code, including the grants/rebate payments to be made to DMBA Properties &
Consulting, Inc. and Biokinemetrics (described in Section IV) and any debt service
payments on any bonds or notes issued to finance such loans or grants; or

4. Providing the local matching share of CEBA, RISE or other state, federal
or local grants and loan programs.

5. The costs associated with any of the other Project Area Activities
described in Section IV of this Plan that are undertaken by the City, including any related
legal, engineering or other consultant costs.

Nothing herein shall be construed as a limitation on the power of the City to exercise any
lawful power granted to the City under Chapter 15A, Chapter 260E, Chapter 384, Chapter 403,
Chapter 404, Chapter 427B, or any other provision of the Code in furtherance of the objectives

of this Urban Renewal Plan.

VI.  PROPERTY ACQUISITION

The City does not presently intend to acquire land in the Project Area for purposes of
private development, although the City may acquire certain property, right-of-way or easements
for purposes of constructing public infrastructure necessary to serve the Project Area. Areas may
be identified for acquisition in the future for the following purposes:

1. To provide sites for needed private and public improvements or facilities
in proper relationship to the projected demand for such facilities and in accordance with
accepted criteria for the development of such facilities;

2. To assemble land into parcels of adequate size and shape to meet
contemporary development needs and standards and to allow new construction to meet

the objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan; or






3. To acquire any and all interests in any property within the Project Area
which in any way dominates or controls usage of other real property proposed to be
acquired.

VII. CLEARANCE AND DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

The City may make improvements in preparation for redevelopment or transfer of land to
private developers. Improvements will be accomplished in accordance with the goals and
objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan and in concert with other actions to ensure timely

improvement of the land.

The City may advertise and solicit development proposals, may negotiate directly with
prospective developers, and may dispose of all or a portion of the property acquired by it for the
purpose of redevelopment in accordance with the goals and objectives of this Urban Renewal
Plan. The property so disposed of may include vacated right-of-way and other lands under
public ownership which are not needed for public purposes.

The City may subdivide, vacate or otherwise change the recorded arrangement of
property under its control to accomplish the goals and objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan.

VIII. LAND USE DEVELOPMENT

The planning criteria to be used to guide the physical development of the Project Area are
those standards and guidelines contained within the City of Carroll's zoning ordinances and other
applicable local, state and federal codes and ordinances.

IX. RELOCATION

The City does not anticipate the need to relocate persons or businesses in the Project
Area. However, if relocation becomes necessary, the City will provide relocation assistance to
or with respect to persons displaced by development activities in the Project Area for moving
expenses and losses of property for which reimbursement or compensation is not otherwise
made, as and to the extent authorized by the Federal Uniform Relocation Act, as defined in

Chapter 316 of the Code.

X. DEVELOPER REQUIREMENTS

In consideration of the efforts to be made by the City in furthering the development of the
Project Area, developers that desire City assistance in connection with a project will be required
to observe the land use requirements of this Urban Renewal Plan and to enter into a contractual
agreement with the City in order to assure that the objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan are

furthered or achieved.

Developers of City-owned properties will be selected on the basis of the conformance of
their proposals to the Urban Renewal Plan and a determination of their ability to carry out such
proposals. This may be through fixed-price offerings, through negotiation or by other means





which, in the determination of the City, will best assure the attainment of the development of the
Project Area and the objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan.

Developers will not be permitted to defer the start of construction for a period longer than
that required to prepare architectural plans, obtain satisfactory financing, and the review and
approval of such plans by the City in order to establish their conformance with the provisions of
this Urban Renewal Plan. In addition, it is expected that the following provisions will be

included in agreements with developers:

1. Developers will submit plans and schedules for the proposed development
to the City and will keep the City informed regarding progress on implementing these

plans;

2. Any land purchased from the City can only be used for the purpose of
development, and not for speculation;

3. Any ownership parcel made up in part of land acquired from the City will
be built upon and improved in conformity with the objectives and provisions of this

Urban Renewal Plan;

4. Construction of improvements will be initiated and completed within a
reasonable time; and

5. There will be no discrimination against any person or group of persons on
account of race, creed, color, national origin or ancestry in the sale, lease, sublease,
transfer, use of enjoyment of the premises therein conveyed, nor will the developers
themselves, or any claiming under or through them, establish or permit such practices of
discrimination or segregation with respect to the selection, location, number, use or
occupancy of tenants, lessees, or sublessees in the premises therein conveyed.

The contract and other disposition documents to be executed by the developer will set
forth, in detail, the provisions, standards and criteria for achieving the objectives and land use

requirements established in this Urban Renewal Plan.

XI. PROJECT AND CITY INDEBTEDNESS

At this time, the extent of public improvements and other urban renewal activities to be
undertaken within the Project Area is only generally known. A variety of unidentified private
improvements, as well as public infrastructure improvements, are expected to be constructed
within the Project Area during the duration of this Urban Renewal Plan. As such, the eventual
level of City participation in both private and public improvements for the economic
development of the Project Area cannot be fully determined at this time. However, to the extent
that new tax increment revenues are generated and other appropriate funding sources are
identified, the City may undertake a variety of project-related activities in the future.






At the present time, it is anticipated that future City tax increment collections for project-
related activities within the Project Area will not exceed $10,000,000. Proceeds of such tax
increment collections will be used to reimburse the City for the costs of undertaking the Project
Area Activities described in this Plan within the Project Area.

As of June 30, 2016, the City of Carroll's outstanding general obligation indebtedness
was $2,605,000. Article XI, Section 3 of the Constitution of the State of Iowa limits the amount
of City debt outstanding at any time to no more than five percent of the value, as shown by the
last certified state and county tax list, of all taxable property within the City. Based upon the
actual value for 2015 of $774,381,176 (total actual value) on all taxable property within the City
of Carroll, the City currently is limited to $36,114,059 of additional general obligation

indebtedness.

XII. STATE AND LOCAL REQUIREMENTS

All provisions necessary to conform with state and local law will be complied with by the
City in implementing this Urban Renewal Plan and its supporting documents.

XIII. SEVERABILITY

In the event one or more provisions contained in this Urban Renewal Plan shall be held
for any reason to be invalid, illegal, unauthorized or unenforceable in any respect, such
invalidity, illegality, lack of authorization or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision
of this Urban Renewal Plan, and this Urban Renewal Plan shall be construed and implemented as
if such provisions had never been contained herein.

XIV. PROCEDURE FOR CHANGES IN THE APPROVED URBAN RENEWAL PLAN

If the City of Carroll desires to modify this Plan, it may do so after holding a public
hearing on the proposed change in accordance with applicable State and local law.

Any change affecting any property or contractual right can be effectuated only in
accordance with applicable State and local law.

XV. DURATION OF URBAN RENEWAL PLAN

This Urban Renewal Plan shall be effective upon adoption by the City Council of the
City of Carroll, Iowa, and shall remain in full force and effect until amended or rescinded by the
City Council. However, the use of tax increment financing revenues (including the amount of
loans, advances, indebtedness or bonds which qualify for payment from the division of revenue
provided in Section 403.19 of the Code) by the City for activities carried out under this Urban
Renewal Plan shall be limited as deemed appropriate by the City Council and consistent with all
applicable provisions of law.





Exhibit A
Urban Renewal Area Boundary Map
(il A

4

First
Project Area

Seventh Amended
Project Area
2016)






E Fourth Amended
=l Project Area
(1991)

L
=

Ty

Fifth Amended
Project Area
(2008)

ixth Amended
Project Area
(2014)

First Amended [ & ¥, > 3
Project Area :

TR
At

mended
Project Area
Second
Amended
Project Area

Project Area
(2016





Proposed
Urban
Renewal Area










